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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 for the fiscal year ended Deaaber 31, 2002.

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 for the Transition Period from to

Commission file number 000-24821

eBay Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)
Delaware 77-0430924
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incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

2145 Hamilton Avenue
San Jose, California 95125

(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

(408) 376-7400
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(the@Securities Exchange Act of 1934: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghe@Securities Exchange Act of 1934: Common Stock

Indicate by check mark whether the regist(apfiled all reports required to be filed by Sent13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days/es No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of dglient filers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation &Kot contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowtedig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registisuain accelerated filer (as defined in ExchangeRde 12b-2). YedXl No O

As of June 28, 2002, the last business dalgeofegistrant’'s most recently completed secosahfiquarter, there were 281,627,707 shares o
the registrant’'s common stock, $0.001 par valuéstanding, which is the only class of common oingstock of the registrant issued as of
that date. The aggregate market value of the vatiogk held by nomfiliates, computed by reference to the closiniggfor the common stoi
as quoted by the Nasdaq National Stock Market disadfdate, was approximately $10,505,600,000.&3hafrcommon stock held by each
executive officer and director and by each persho ewns 5% or more of the outstanding common stasle been excluded in that such
persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This détetion of affiliate status is not necessarily adasive determination for other purpos
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Certain exhibits filed with the registra;prior annual reports to security holders, regigin statements and current reports are incorpd
by reference into Item 15(a)(3) of this report.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |
ITEM 1: BUSINESS
ITEM 2: PROPERTIES
ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITMOLDERS
PART II
ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRAN”S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER:!
ITEM 6: SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIMNCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
PART IlI
ITEM 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RESTRANT
ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIALWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACIONS
ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
PART IV
ITEM 15: EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM-K
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW:
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT?
SIGNATURES
POWER OF ATTORNEY
CERTIFICATIONS
EXHIBIT INDEX

EXHIBIT 10.14
EXHIBIT 21.01
EXHIBIT 23.01




Table of Contents
PART |
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardKimg statements based on our current expectaabosit our company and our
industry. You can identify these forward-lookingtsinents when you see us using words such as “riaifl,” “should,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “pla n” and other similar expressions. You can also iifgrforward-looking statements by
discussions of strategy, plans or intentions. THesgard-looking statements involve risks and utaieties. Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forwdodking statements as a result of the factors deedrin the “Risk Factors That May Affect
Results of Operations and Financial Condi” section of Management’s Discussion and Analy$iBinancial Condition and Results of
Operations and elsewhere in this report. We undertao obligation to publicly update any forward-kany statements for any reason, even if
new information becomes available or other eventainin the future.

ITEM 1: BUSINESS

eBay Inc. was formed as a sole proprietorshpeptember 1995, and was incorporated in Califoin May 1996. In April 1998, we
reincorporated in Delaware and in September 1998amapleted the initial public offering of our commetock. Our principal executive
offices are located at 2145 Hamilton Avenue, Sa®eJGalifornia, 95125, and our telephone numbgt(8) 376-7400. When we refer to “we,”
“our” or “eBay” in this Annual Report on Form 10-Kye mean the current Delaware corporation (eBay brad its California predecessor, as
well as all of our consolidated subsidiaries. Winenrefer to “eBay.com,” we mean the online marlaatpllocated abww.ebay.comWhen we
refer to “PayPal,” or “PayPal.com,” we mean thebgllopayments platform locatedwtvw.paypal.com

Our Mission

Our mission is to build the worklmost efficient and abundant marketplace in whityone, anywhere, can buy or sell practically aingtl
We pioneered online trading by developing a Welebamarketplace in which a community of buyers ailbss are brought together in an
entertaining, intuitive, easy-to-use environmenbttowse, buy and sell an enormous variety of itéthsough our PayPal service, we enable
any business or consumer with email to send arelveonline payments securely, conveniently and-effsctively.

Our Marketplace

Our marketplace exists as an online tradlatfgrm that enables a global community of buyerd sellers to interact and trade with one
another. Our role is to create, maintain, and edpha technological functionality, safety, easaisé, and reliability of the trading platform
while at the same time, supporting the growth amatess of our community of users.

Our Platform

Our trading platform is a fully automatedpiteally arranged, intuitive and easy-to-use onfieevice that is available, 24 hours-a-day, seven
days-a-week (subject to a weekly scheduled two-hmintenance period), enabling sellers to list #dar sale in either auction or fixed-price
formats, buyers to bid for and/or purchase itemisitgfrest, and all eBay users to browse throudadigems from any place in the world at any
time. The platform includes software tools and se&w available either for no charge or for a feat tllow buyers and sellers to more easily
trade with one another. Our software tools suckeBay Anywhere, which provides wireless connegtitat eBay; Seller's Assistant, Turbo
Lister, and Selling Manager, which automate thérgeprocess; the Freight Resource Center, whildwal users to calculate shipping costs;
and PayPal, which facilitates online exchange nflf are all designed to make our trading
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process easier and more efficient. Whether provigeds or our commercial partners, services suaiuasrust and safety programs, user
verification, buyer protection and assurance pnugravehicle inspections, escrow, authenticationapqtaisal are all intended to create a safer
trading environment.

Our Community

Our community of users is the largest andafrte most loyal online trading communities oa Web. We have aggregated a significant
number of buyers, sellers and items listed for,sahéch in turn has resulted in an extremely vibtaading environment. Our sellers enjoy
generally high conversion rates and buyers enjogxéensive selection of broadly priced goods amdiges. Key components of our
community philosophy are maintaining an honest@meh marketplace and treating individual users vatipect. We seek to maintain the
satisfaction and loyalty of our frequent buyers aalllers by offering a variety of community and gog features such as announcement and
bulletin boards, customer support boards and patgmges as well as other topical or category-fipanformation exchanges. By ensuring
that all users are subject to the same rules ag] fee have created a level playing field enalilidividuals and businesses of all types and
sizes to access broad markets and compete equally.

Our Value Proposition

Our marketplace makes inefficient marketseredficient.
Traditional offline marketplaces can be if@ént because:

» They are fragmented and regional in nature makidgficult and expensive for buyers and sellersneet, exchange information a
complete transaction

* They offer a limited variety and breadth of goods;

» They often have high transaction costs due tonmeeliaries; an

* They are information inefficient, as buyers andessllack a reliable and convenient means of getiiices.

We make these inefficient marketplaces méfieient because:

« Our global community of users can easily and inespely communicate, exchange information and cetepiransactions;
» Our marketplace includes tens of millions of itecnsating a very wide variety and selection of gt

» We bring buyers and sellers together for a fee nmaxler than those of traditional intermediariesg an

« Our marketplace provides for efficient informatiexchange.

In particular, large markets with broad buged seller bases, wide product ranges, and medengiping costs have been successful on
eBay. Our marketplace is most effective, relativevailable alternatives, at addressing marketewf and scarce goods, end-of-life products,
and used and vintage items.

Our Strategy

We intend to achieve our mission of becontirgworld’s most efficient and abundant marketplagereating marketplace conditions that
enable our users’ success. By continuing to fasewribrancy of the world’s largest network of brg/and sellers and by making the online
trading experience faster, easier and safer, wertable the success of our user community.
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Growth of eBay User Activity

Our success has been largely dependent hposutcess of our community of individual userss Baccess is reflected in the growth of
confirmed, registered users from two million at Beder 31, 1998 to 62 million at December 31, 2@@December 31, 2002, we had nearly
28 million active users, based on activity overadling 12-month period, compared to nearly 18 imillat December 31, 2001. We define an
active user as any user who bid on, purchasedstedlan item during the prior 12 months. We attbaryers and sellers to our community by
offering:

Buyers

* Selection

» Convenienct
» Entertainmen
* Value

Sellers

» Access to broad marke

 Low distribution costt

* Ability to maximize prices and increase se

A Faster, Easier and Safer Trading Experient
Payment Service

Providing more efficient and more effectivethmods of payment is essential to creating a fasésier and safer online trading experience.
Traditional payment methods such as checks, moragr® and credit cards via merchant accountgedlgmt various obstacles to the online
trading experience, including lengthy processintetiinconvenience, and high costs.

Through our acquisition of PayPal, Inc. ortdder 3, 2002, we intend to accelerate the velagfityade on eBay by eliminating the various
obstacles presented by traditional payment methalgPal enables any business or consumer with ewéks in 38 countries to send and
receive online payments securely, convenientlyaad-effectively. PayPal’'s network builds on thésérg financial infrastructure of bank
accounts and credit cards to create an interndtaenent system. PayPal delivers a product wétddor small businesses, online merch:
individuals and others.

Our goal for PayPal is to become the Web’stngonvenient, secure, and cost-effective paynmauatien. PayPal currently offers its
account-based system in English to users in 38tdesrincluding the United States. For the postu&ition period from October 4, 2002
through December 31, 2002, PayPal’'s payment vosengto business accounts, which we refer to aal Patyment Volume, or TPV, totaled
$2.1 billion. PayPal’'s TPV consists mainly of paytgeto small businesses. Currently, the majoritthese payments relate to sales of goods
and services through online trading platforms, pritg on eBay. As of December 31, 2002, PayPal2#dillion accounts. During the post-
acquisition period from October 4, 2002 through &aber 31, 2002, users of eight million of thesebaats sent or received a payment that
resulted in a fee. As of December 31, 2001, Pai&élnearly 13 million total accounts, of which digtillion sent or received a payment that
resulted in a fee during the year ended Decembe2(B11.

PayPal has achieved its rapid growth thrcugbmbination of wide adoption on eBay.com andveetssite in the United Kingdom, user
convenience, competitive pricing and robust custssageguards. During the year ended December 32, BayPal’s total number of accounts
grew by 10.5 million, an average of 29,000 per day.the post-acquisition period from October 402¢hrough December 31, 2002, PayPal
processed an average of 440,000 payments peradalng $24.0 million in daily volume. The avergogyment amount sent during this period
was $55.

Geographic Expansion

The continued geographic expansion of theyeBarketplace is critical to creating a fasterjeaand safer online trading experience. In
2002, eBay, together with certain minority-ownednpanies, unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiljateseased its geographic reach to 27
countries including websites
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in the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan. ABetember 31, 2002, through our wholly owned angbritg-owned subsidiaries and
affiliates, we reached the following countries:

 Australia
 Austria

* Belgium

» Canade

* France

* Germany

* Ireland

* Italy

» the Netherland
* New Zealanc

* Singapore

» South Kores

* Spain

* Sweder

» Switzerland

» Taiwan

* United Kingdom
» United State:

As of December 31, 2002, through investmentsiconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, eeched the following countries:

* Argentina

* Brazil

* Chile

* Columbia

» Ecuador

* Mexico

* Peopl¢'s Republic of Chini
* Uruguay

* Venezuele

The globalization of the eBay marketplacevfites buyers access to an even greater supplgraiand provides sellers an even broader
audience of potential customers.

Category Growth

Category growth both in number and size withie eBay marketplace is a key element in creatifagter, easier, and safer online trading
experience. In 2002, we made significant investsiemgrow existing categories and to expand thebmurof categories in the eBay
marketplace. By focusing development and markedfifigrts around re-organized major categories, vwéeaed greater than 10% growth in all
of our major categories and increased the numbeatefyories under which eBay users can list goadsdle from 10, when eBay was first
introduced, to more than 22,000 as of Decembe?@02.

As of December 31, 2002, listings on eBayensnganized under the following categories:
Major Categories

* Antiques

* Art

* Books

* Business & Industric

* Cars & Other Vehicle

* Cars

» Motorcycles

* Parts

* Clothing and Accessorit
» Coins

* Collectibles

* Dolls & Bears

* Electronics and Compute
» Computers & Office



» Consumer Electronics
» Networking

* PDAs

» Photo

* Video Games

* Home

» Baby

» Home Décor

* Lawn & Garden

* Kitchen

* Pet Supplies

* Tools

» Jewelry & Watche:
* Movies & DVDs
» Music

* Musical Instrument
* Pottery & Glas:

* Real Estatt

* Sports

» Fan Shop

» Memorabilia

* Sporting Goods
» Stamps

* Tickets

» Toys & Hobbies

* Crafts

* Diecast

* Travel

* Everything Else

* Gifts

* Health & Beauty
* More

Specialty Sites

» eBay Motors

* eBay Store:

* Half.com by eBay
* PayPa

* Sothebys.cor
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Each major category has numerous subcategoridsthétmost popular items sold on eBay being thieaedre relatively standardized, w
represented with a photo, small and easily shigmebrelatively inexpensive.

The eBay Online Trading Experience

The eBay online trading experience beging witisit to the eBay home page at www.ebay.coangrof eBay’s international sites. eBay’s
home page contains a listing of major categorestuired items and theme-oriented promotions. Usersearch for items to browse and buy,
go to a specific item category, go to a specidttysuch as eBay Motors, eBay Stores, or Half.colmegin listing an item for sale.

Registration

Any visitor to eBay.com and our international wedsican browse through the eBay service and vievitems listed for sale. To bid on,
or purchase an item, buyers and sellers mustréggster with eBay by completing a short onlinenfcand confirmation process.

Buying on eBay

Users can search for specific items by brogigiirough a list of items within a category or category and then “click through” to a
detailed description for a particular item. Useaas also search specific categories, interest pagtee entire database of listings using
keywords to describe their areas of interest. @arch engine generates lists of relevant items hnikis to detailed descriptions. Each item is
assigned a unique identifier so that users cafyesesirch for and track specific items. Users alw search for a particular bidder or seller by
name to review his or her listings and feedbactohysand search for products by specific regiontber attributes. Once a user has found an
item and registered on eBay.com, the user may artt@ for the maximum amount he or she is williagay at that time, or for those listings
that offer the Buy-It-Now feature, purchase thenitey accepting the Buy-It-Now price establishedhwy seller. In the event of competitive
bids, the eBay service automatically increasesibglih increments based upon the current highudgcdto the bidder's maximum price.

We encourage direct interaction between lsigad sellers. Potential buyers wishing additiamfarmation about a listed item can contact
the seller through email. We believe that thisrmtéon between potential buyers and sellers erdsatite trading experience on eBay and is an
important element of our service. Once each bidasle, we send an email confirmation to the bidddran outbid notice to the next highest
bidder and automatically update the item’s aucsitatus. During the course of the transaction, wi#ynoidders immediately via emalil if they
are outbid. Buyers are not charged for making bigsurchases through eBay. In addition, buyersspatify items of interest on a service
called “Favorite Searches” (previously called “P@a Shopper”) and receive automated email messalges these particular items are
available for sale on eBay.com.

Selling on eBay
Users can sell items on eBay.com by regisgeasind selling items on their own, or with the hel@ Trading Assistant.
Registering and Selling Iten

Registered sellers can list a product foe $8l completing a short online form or using “Sedléssistant,” “Turbo Lister” or third-party
tools that facilitate the listing of multiple itemiBhe seller selects a minimum price for openirdslior the item and chooses whether the sale
will last three, five, seven or 10 days. Additidgah seller may select a reserve price for an itehich is the minimum price at which the se
is willing to sell the item and is typically highttran the minimum price set for the opening bide Téserve price is not disclosed to bidders.
Sellers with appropriate feedback ratings may alsmwse to
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use the Buy-It-Now feature at the time of listimghich allows sellers to name a price at which thweyld be willing to sell the item to any

buyer. Listings that offer the Buy-It-Now featuneea@onducted in the normal auction-style format,eill also feature a Buy-It-Now icon and
price. Until the first bid is placed, or in the easf a reserve auction, until the reserve prigaes, buyers have the option to buy the item
instantly at the specified price without waiting the auction to end. A seller can elect to selhis in individual item listings or, if he or shesl
multiple identical items, can elect to hold a “Dutuction.” For example, an individual wishing tells10 identical watches could hold 10
individual auctions or hold a Dutch Auction in whithe 10 highest bidders would each receive a watttie price bid by the tenth highest
bidder. To be eligible to hold a Dutch auctiongles must have a sufficiently high feedback ratamgl must have been a registered seller for at
least 60 days. A seller may also specify that atiew will be a private auction. With this formaidders’ email addresses are not disclosed on
the item screen or bidding history screen.

Sellers generally pay a nominal listing fedidt items for sale. By paying incremental plaesifees, sellers can have items featured in
various ways. For example, a seller can highlighoh her item for sale by utilizing a bold font fine item heading, have his or her auction
displayed as a “Featured Auction,” which allows $edler’s item to be rotated on the eBay home pagatilize the Buy-It-Now feature, which
enables a seller to close an auction instantly anggecified price is reached.

When an auction ends, the eBay system vabkdahether a bid has exceeded the minimum pricktrenreserve price if one has been set. If
the auction was successful or if the buyer elethedBuy-It-Now feature, we automatically notify thayer and seller via email, and the buyer
and seller can then complete the transaction intigre of us. At the time of the email notificatiave generally charge the seller a final value
fee. eBay does not take possession of eithereéhelieing sold or the buyer’'s payment for the itRather, the buyer and seller must
independently arrange for the shipment of and pawrfoe the item, with the buyer typically paying fehipping.

Under the terms of our user agreement, dligisreceives one or more bids above the statedmim or reserve price, whichever is higher,
the seller is obligated to complete a transacttda.have no power to force the seller or buyer togete the transaction, other than to suspend
them from using the eBay service in the futureghievent the buyer and seller are unable to campie transaction and the seller notifies us,
we have the right to credit the seller the amotinhe final value fee.

Invoices for listing, feature and final value fes sent via email to sellers on a regular (at leesthly) basis. We require all new seller.
have a credit card account on file. Sellers whoymaby credit card are charged shortly after theige is sent. A summary of our eBay.com
structure, as of March 15, 2003, is provided belailvpricing is subject to change.

Listing Fees
Minimum Bid, Opening
Value or Reserve Pric Listing Fee
$0.01- $9.99 $0.3(
$10.00- $24.99 $0.5¢
$25.00- $49.99 $1.1(
$50.00- $199.9¢ $2.2(
$200.00 and u $3.3(
Special Categorie Listing Fee
Passenger Vehicles or
Other Vehicles $40.0(
Motorcycles $25.0(
Real Estatt $50.00- $300.0(
Reserve Pric Reserve Price Fes¢
$0.01- $24.99 $0.5(
$25.00- $99.99 $1.0(
$100.00 and u 1% of reserve price (up tc

maximum fee of $100.0

* Reserve price fee is fully refundable if itenlise
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Feature Fee:

Seller Featur Description Feature Fe

Home Page Featured Item is listed in a Special Featured section aralsis rotated on the $99.9¢
eBay home pagt

Featured Plus! Item appears in the category’s Featured Item seetial in bidder's $19.9¢
search results

Highlight Item listing is emphasized with a colored ba $5.0(

Bold Item title is listed in bold $1.0(

Buy-It-Now Allows the seller to close an auction instantly dospecified price $0.0¢

Final Value Fee:

Sale Price Final Value Fe¢
Up to $25 5.25% of sale pric
$25.01 to $1,00 Above plus 2.75% of amount over $
Over $1,00( Above plus 1.5% of the amount over $1,(
Special Categorie Final Value Fet

Passenger Vehicles or Ott
Vehicles $40.0(
Motorcycles $25.0(

Trading Assistants

The eBay Trading Assistants program is a agtwf experienced eBay sellers who have indic#tted willingness to assist others in the
sale of items for a fee. Interested sellers carchahe Trading Assistant Directory to find sometmsell items on their behalf. The Trading
Assistants and their clients negotiate the ternascamditions of these services.

Payments

Following a completed transaction, eBay bsyard sellers can exchange funds by the paymehboahef their choice, typically
electronically through our PayPal global paymemasferm and also via check or money order. PayRabkes any business or consumer with
email to send and receive online payments secweiweniently and cost-effectively. PayPal's entiilren system builds on the legacy
financial infrastructure of bank accounts and dredids to create an online payment network availebusers in 38 countries.

How PayPal Work:
Joining the Network

To send or receive a payment, a user firgtropen a PayPal account. A new user typically spenaccount to send money for an eBay
purchase or a purchase on another website, foicesrkendered, or for a payment to an individudien of cash. Allowing new users to join
network at the time of making or receiving paymeartsourages PayPal’s natural, user-driven grovahPBI's account sign-up process asks
each new user to register with PayPal his or herenatreet address and email address, which sasvb unique account identifier.
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Making Payments

Senders make payments at the PayPal webtde, item listing on eBay or another online masleste where the seller has integrated
PayPal’s Instant Purchase Feature, or at thedite®rchants that have integrated PayPal's Web ptdeature. To make a payment at Pay$al’
website, a sender logs in to his or her accounteatets the recipient’s email address and the atraduhe payment. To make a payment
through Instant Purchase or Web Accept, a sendlesstsean item for purchase, confirms the paymeforination and enters his or her email
address and password to authorize the paymenbtindgcenarios, PayPal debits the money from theéesenPayPal balance, credit card or k
account and instantly credits it to the recipieRt&g/Pal balance in the case of an eCheck paynhenfiimds are credited to the recipient’s
PayPal balance after two to three business dayarinthe recipient can make payments to othergithidraw his or her funds at any time via
check, electronic funds transfer, or via the Payleait card. PayPal earns revenues when an acreegives a payment.

Funding Payments

Senders fund payments in three ways:

« from the sender’s existing PayPal balance;

« from the send¢s bank account, using the Automated Clearing Hours&CH, network; ol
« from the sender’s credit card.

We incur funding costs on payments at varyéwgls based on the nature of the payment. Teetbhesrs who choose to maintain PayPal
balances, we offer a money market rate of returhaances placed in PayPaMoney Market Fund. The PayPal Money Market Fuidch is
invested in a portfolio managed by Barclays Gldhatd Advisors, bore a current compound annual Yoéti44% as of December 31, 2002.

We use the terms “balance” and “PayPal balaterefer to funds that PayPal customers choiikergo invest in the PayPal Money
Market Fund (offered only to U.S. customers) oatthorize PayPal to place in FDIC-insured pooletkkaccounts as agent of PayPal's
customers. These funds belong to our customersiamck are not reflected in our statement of firempmsition. Funds belonging to our
customers that are not invested in FDIC-insuredacts, such as funds in transit to or from theaust’s bank, are shown as a liability on our
balance sheet.

Verification of PayPal's Account Holders

In order for senders to fund payments frogirtbank accounts, they first must become veriRagPal users through our Random Deposit
technique. Under this technique, we make two dépoasnging from 1 to 99 cents to the user’s baroant. To verify ownership of the
account, the user then enters the two amountsasg-aigit code at the PayPal website. In additomllowing funding via bank accounts,
verification also removes some spending limits sarg’ accounts and gives them reputational advastatpen transacting with other members
of the PayPal community.

Withdrawing Money

Each U.S.-based account holder may withdramey from his or her PayPal account via an ACHsi@mto his or her bank account or by a
mailed check from PayPal. ACH withdrawals may ttkee to five business days to arrive in the actbofder’'s bank account, depending on
the bank. Mailed checks may take one to two weelksrive and PayPal charges $1.50 per check. QuagiPayPal business users also can
receive a PayPal ATM/debit card, which providesansliquidity to their respective PayPal accouslahces. ATM/debit card holders can
withdraw cash, for a $1.00 fee per transactiormfemy ATM connected to the Cirrus or Maestro neks@nd can make purchases at any
merchant accepting MasterCard.
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Other Services
Customer Support

We devote significant resources to providiegsonalized, accurate and timely support sertizesir community of users. Buyers and
sellers can contact us through a variety of meaokjding email, text chat and an expanding phapability. We are focusing our resources
on expanding our accessibility and capacity, ingirgaour category specific support, extending odine self-help features, and improving our
systems and processes to enable us to providedbeatfiicient and effective support possible.

Value-Added Services

We provide a variety of “pre-trade” and “ptitde” services to enhance the user experiencenahe trading faster, easier, and safer. “Pre-
trade” services simplify the listing process andude photo hosting, authentication and seller petigity software. “Post-tradeServices mak
transactions easier and more comfortable to compéetd include payment processing, insurance, keeimspections, escrow, shipping and
postage. We currently provide these services dyrectthrough contractual arrangements with thisdties.

Trust and Safety Programs

We have developed a number of programs tcera8lay users more comfortable dealing with unkntratling partners and completing
commerce transactions on the Internet.

Feedback Forun

eBay’s Feedback Forum encourages every aggpvide comments and feedback on other eBay wsdrsvhom he or she interacts and
enables every user to view other users’ profiles ithclude feedback ratings and incorporate uspegances. Every registered eBay user has a
feedback profile containing compliments, criticisargl other comments by users who have conducteddsssor interacted with the person.
The Feedback Forum requires feedback to be refategecific transactions and provides an easyftwalsers to match transaction numbers
with the user names of their trading partners. Tifiarmation is recorded in a feedback profile timaiudes a feedback rating for the person
comments from other eBay users who have interagiidthat person over the past seven days, thempasth, the past six months and beyond.
Users who develop positive reputations will havebr-coded star symbols displayed next to thedr mames to indicate the number of
positive feedback ratings they have received. Befddding on items listed for sale, eBay usersamuraged to review a seller’s feedback
profile to check his or her reputation within tH&ag community.

The terms of our user agreement prohibibastithat would undermine the integrity of the FemdtbForum, such as a person’s leaving
positive feedback about himself or herself throoglitiple accounts or leaving multiple negative fleack for others through multiple accounts.
The Feedback Forum has several automated featesgged to detect and prevent some forms of albisgse=xample, feedback posting from
the same account, positive or negative, cannottedfeiser’s net feedback rating (i.e., the numlb@ositive postings, less the number of
negative postings) by more than one point, no matier many comments an individual makes. Also,&r gan only leave feedback for
completed transactions. Users who receive a seffilyi negative net feedback rating have their tegfions suspended and are unable to bid on
or list items for sale. We believe our FeedbaclkuRors extremely useful in overcoming initial useshancy when trading over the Internet, as
it reduces the anonymity and uncertainty of dealiity an unknown trading partner.

SafeHarbor™ Program

In addition to the Feedback Forum, we offer $afeHarbol™ program, which provides guidelines for trading,\ides information to
resolve user disputes and responds to reportssafses of the eBay service. eBay’s SafeHalM¥amtaff investigates users’ complaints of
possible misuse of the eBay service and

10




Table of Contents

takes appropriate action, including issuing wargit@users or suspending users from bidding oistimg items for sale. Some of the
complaints the SafeHarbd¥ staff investigates include various forms of bid fipafation, malicious posting of negative feedbank @osting

of illegal items for sale. The SafeHartdt group is organized into three areas: InvestigafiBraud Prevention and Community Watch. The
Investigations team investigates reported tradifigactions and misuse of the eBay service. Thed-Rrevention department provides
information to assist users with disputes overghality of the goods sold or potentially fraudulématnsactions and, upon receipt of an offici
filed, written claim of fraud from a user, will gerally suspend the offending user from the eBayiseror take other action as appropriate. The
Community Watch department investigates the listihilegal, infringing or inappropriate items dmeteBay.com site and our international
websites and violations of certain of our policigpon receipt of a valid written claim of intelleetl property infringement by the owner of the
intellectual property, we will remove the offendiigm. Users who repeatedly infringe intellectuadperty rights are suspended. In addition,
we have increased the number of people reviewitignpially illegal items. Our trust and safety iatives, including user identity verification,
insurance, integrated escrow and authenticatienkey elements of our programs designed to makg aBafe place to trade.

My eBay

We offer My eBay, which permits users to receiveport of their recent eBay activity, including 8idg, selling, account balances, fava
categories and recent feedback. Users with their\0lgb pages also may post links from their Web pageBay and list the items they are
selling on eBay. We also offer About Me, which pd®s users the opportunity to create their owngreashome page free of charge on eBay
using step-by-step instructions. The About Me hgage can include personal information, items listedale, eBay feedback ratings, images
and links to other favorite sites.

eBay Foundation

In June 1998, we donated 643,500 sharesraf@umon stock to the Community Foundation Silis@tley, a tax-exempt donor-advised
public charity, and established a fund known as'éB=ay Foundation.” Since its inception, the eBayiRdation has made millions of dollars in
grants to dozens of programs and initiatives foduseeducation and expanded access to technologwl$¥ seek user suggestions for
worthwhile charities through our website, whereritfiauctions and other unique promotions are belslipport such causes.

Technology

Our eBay Platform

The eBay platform is composed of a scalalalesaction processing system, consumer user ingeréad externally accessible Application
Programming Interface, API, for third-party intetioas. The scalable system is primarily based ¢erirally developed proprietary software,
but also includes selected vendor components. Bhag platform supports the full selling and buyimggesses, including initial registration for
the service, placing bids and managing outbidSntistems for sale, and auction close. The platfatso manages various notifications for
sellers and buyers, including daily status upddtiesand outbid notices, registration confirmatiomscount change notices, billing notices, and
end-of-auction notices. The platform maintains usgistration information, billing accounts, curté@em listings and historical listings. All
information is regularly archived for record-kegpiend analysis purposes. The platform regularhatgsla comprehensive search engine with
the titles and descriptions of items, as well asipy and bidding updates for active items. Thefptan also updates the seller’s billing account
every time an item is listed, a feature is seleabe@n auction closes with a bid in excess ofseier-specified minimum bid. The platform
sends electronic invoices to all sellers on a r@gfdt least monthly) basis. In addition to thessdres, the eBay service also supports a
community bulletin board and chat areas where wmsiiseBay customer support personnel can inteBagtoverall system volume is
significant, with
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peak usage of 580 million pageviews per day, 6@aniitem searches per day, and 4.5 gigabits psorabof data traffic.

Our platform is designed around industry géad architectures to reduce downtime in the eg€ntitages or catastrophic occurrences. The
eBay service provides 24 hours-a-day, seven daysek-availability, subject to a weekly scheduled tvour maintenance period. Substanti
all of our system hardware is hosted at Cable &lEss and Qwest facilities in the San Jose, Caldiparea and Sprint Communications
facilities in Sacramento, California, each of whprovides redundant communications lines and emeggpower backup. These systems and
operations are vulnerable to damage or interrugtimm earthquakes, floods, fires, power loss, emunication failures and similar events.
They are also subject to break-ins, sabotage dedtional acts of vandalism, and also to potefisduption if the operators of these facilities
have financial difficulties.

We do not maintain fully redundant systemaltgrnative providers of hosting services, andd@eot carry business interruption insurance
sufficient to compensate us for losses that mayd@espite any precautions we may take, the oenage of a natural disaster, or any decision
by Cable & Wireless, Sprint or Qwest to close adlitgove are using for financial reasons withoubyiding us adequate notice or other
unanticipated problems could result in lengthyrintptions in our services. In addition, the faillieCable & Wireless, Qwest or Sprint to
provide our required data communications capadityictresult in interruptions in our service. Anyntkizge to or failure of our systems could
result in interruptions in our service. Interrupisain our service will reduce our net revenuesodits, and our future net revenues and profits
will be harmed if our users believe that our sysiemmnreliable.

Our platform consists of Sun database semunsing Oracle relational database managementcagiphs with a mix of Sun and Hitachi
storage devices along with a suite of Pentium-béstednet servers running the Windows NT and Lioperating systems. We use F5
Networks, Inc's load balancing systems and our own redundarmesealong with select software from Veritas Ircptovide for fault
tolerance, and we use IBM’s WebSphere applicationes for certain platform functions. These thi@y technology licenses may not
continue to be available to us on commercially s@able terms. The loss of these technologies aeuwjdire us to obtain substitute technolo
of lower quality or performance standards or aateecost.

We have experienced occasional system imgtons, which we believe will continue to occurrfrdime to time. These outages have
stemmed from a variety of causes, including thiadtyp hardware and software problems, human emtentional external attacks (denial of
service attempts), and eBay proprietary softwaseds. The volume of traffic on our websites andnlmaber of items being listed by users has
been increasing continually, requiring us to expand upgrade our technology, transaction processisgms, AP| capacity, security
infrastructure, and network infrastructure anddd aew engineering and operations personnel. Téweps of upgrading and expansion is part
of the regular maintenance and site revisions. Vg be unable to accurately project the rate omiinaf increases, if any, in the use of the
eBay service or expand and upgrade our systemsfadtructure to accommodate these increasesiinedy manner. Any failure to expand
upgrade our systems at least as fast as the giowitmand for capacity could cause the websitefdridunctions to become unstable and
possibly cease to operate for periods of time. bedaled downtime would harm our business.

We use internally developed systems to opayat service and for transaction processing, diotubilling and collections processing. We
have announced our intention to enhance our bilygiem with products from CSG Systems. We mustiroaally improve our systems to
accommodate the increasing levels of use of ousitesh In addition, we may add new features andtfonality to our services that would
result in the need to develop or license addititeethnologies. The cost of our development effantduding the required capitalization of
certain site-related software and development ctsttied $65.3 million in the year ended Decen81er2000, $82.0 million in 2001, and
$120.1 million in 2002, and are reflected in oun€alidated Financial Statements under the headingduct Development.” Our inability to
add additional software and hardware or to upgoadtéechnology, transaction processing systemsirggdnfrastructure, or network
infrastructure to accommodate increased trafficamsaction
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volume could have adverse consequences. Thesegummres may include unanticipated system disruptislower response times,
degradation in levels of customer support, impadredlity of users’ experience on our services, imgabaquality of services for third-party
application developers using our API, and delay®porting accurate financial information. Our éaé to provide new features or functionality
also could result in these consequences. We manpdige to upgrade and expand our systems in aytiamel effective manner or to integrate
smoothly any newly developed or purchased techieogith our existing systems. These difficultiesiic harm or limit our ability to expand
our business.

Our competitive space is characterized bidhpghanging technology, evolving industry stardfarfrequent new service and product
announcements, introductions and enhancementshamgjing customer demands. Accordingly, our futuexsss will depend on our ability to
adapt to rapidly changing technologies, adapt enrises to evolving industry standards and to inaprihe performance, features and reliak
of our services in response to competitive servézeksproduct offerings and evolving demands ofitibernet. Our failure to adapt to these
changes would harm our business. In addition, tidespread adoption of new Internet, networkingetedommunications technologies or o
technological changes could require substantiatedjpures to modify or adapt our services or infragure. To address the need for rapid
change as well as stability, we have undertakemjaqt to enhance and evolve our current architecthe new architecture is intended to
facilitate continued stability, improved scalalyiland improved efficiency. As of the fourth quarér2002, the new architecture is serving 7
of overall traffic on the eBay websites. This pmjs ongoing, with phased rollouts through 2004 plan to time these rollouts in a manner
that minimizes the impact to our user community.

Our PayPal Platform

Our PayPal technology assures user acceks ayPal website, both to acquire new custometdaallow existing ones to conduct
financial transactions. We focus much of PayPadsatiopment efforts on creating specialized softvilaa¢ enhances its Internet-based
customer functionality. One of PayPal’s key challesiremains building and maintaining a scalableraliable system, capable of handling
traffic and transactions for a growing customerebdshe major components of our PayPal network eeaicbur PayPal facilities in Mountain
View, California, at an Equinix data center in Sase, California, at a Cable & Wireless data cent&anta Clara, California, and at our
PayPal operations and customer support facili@nmaha, Nebraska.

Because of the financial nature of the PayPal prhdue seek to offer a high level of data securitgrder to build customer confidence ¢
to protect our customers’ private information. Waevé designed our PayPal security infrastructupgatect data from unauthorized access,
both physically and over the Internet. PayPal’'strsessitive data and hardware reside at its Equiata center and Cable & Wireless data
centers. These data centers have redundant commetti the Internet, as well as fault-tolerant poare fire suppression systems. Because of
PayPals special security needs, we house our PayPalmeguipin physically secure areas and we tightly mbmhysical access to our systel
PayPal’s systems and operations are located isaitme geographic area and are vulnerable to damaggewuption from earthquakes, floods,
fires, power loss, telecommunication failures aintilar events. They are also subject to breakgabotage and intentional acts of vandalism,
and to potential disruption if the operators ofseaéacilities have financial difficulties. PayPalesd not maintain fully redundant systems or
alternative providers of hosting services, and dag<arry business interruption insurance sufficte compensate it for losses that may occur.
Any damage to or failure of PayPal’'s systems coedalt in interruptions in its service, which couddiuce our net revenues and profits, and
our future net revenues and profits will be harrfié®hyPal’s users believe that its system is uabddi.

Multiple layers of network security and netlwntrusion detection devices further enhancesturity of our PayPal systems. We segment
various components of the system logically and jgiayly from each other on our PayPal networks. Congmts of the system communicate
with each other via Secure Sockets Layer, or S8lin@ustry standard communications security prdtcoad require mutual authentication.
Access to a system component requires at leasattmrized staff members
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simultaneously to enter secret passphrases. Thiggure is designed to protect us from the unaizédiuse of PayPal's infrastructure
components. Finally, we store all PayPal data wesrdprivate or sensitive only in encrypted form ur 8ayPal database. PayPal decrypts data
only on an as-needed basis, using a specially nigigig component of our PayPal system that reqaurégentication before fulfilling a
decryption request.

Competition

We encounter vigorous competition in our hass from numerous sources. Our users can buyedlrgirsilar items through a variety of
competing channels, including online and offlineailers, distributors, liquidators, import and eRpmompanies, auctioneers, catalog and mail-
order companies, virtually all online and offlinensmerce participants (consumer-to-consumer, busittesonsumer and businesshiesiness
and online and offline shopping channels and neksudfor our PayPal service, our users may choopaytdhrough a variety of competing
channels, including other online payment servipagment methods (e.g. cash, money order), anditradi online or offline merchant
accounts. As our product offering continues to beseinto new categories of items, we expect ourpegition to continue to broaden to inch
other online and offline channels for those nevelifigs. We also compete on the basis of price,ymosklection, and services, which are
derived from our abundant and diverse user commiamitl the quality of the eBay user experience.dropete effectively, we may need to
expend significant resources in technology and etar§. These efforts may be expensive and couldaedur margins and have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial positigerating results, cash flows and reduce the vaflear stock. We believe that we will be a
to maintain profitability by preserving and expamglthe abundance and diversity of our user commuamt enhancing our user experience
there can be no assurance that we will be ablerttrae to manage our operating expenses to mét@atecline in net income. For more
information regarding these risks, see “Risk Facidrat May Affect Results of Operations and FinahCiondition — Our industry is intensely
competitive.”

Seasonality

Our results of operations historically haeeb seasonal in nature because many of our uskrseréheir activities on our websites during
the holidays, such as during the Thanksgivinghl{gW.S.) and Christmas periods, and with the cofsgbod weather during the summer
months. We have historically experienced our steshguarters of online growth in our first and tbuiscal quarters. PayPal has shown sir
seasonality, except that its strongest quartenbifie growth has historically been the fourth gaart

Intellectual Property

We regard the protection of our trademarkpycights, patents, domain names, trade dressradd secrets as critical to our success. We
have entered into confidentiality and inventionigssient agreements with our employees and contig@ad nondisclosure agreements with
parties with whom we conduct business in ordeimiit iccess to and disclosure of our proprietafgrimation.

We aggressively protect our intellectual gnay rights by relying on a combination of tradekjaopyright, patent, trade dress and trade
secret laws and through the domain name dispubdutéen system. As a result, we actively pursuerdggstration of our trademarks,
copyrights, patents and domain names in the U &naajor countries internationally. Furthermore, weast also protect our trademarks, pat
and domain names in an increasing number of jutiedis, a process that is expensive, may requigation, and may not be successful in
every location. We have registered or applied for“eBay” trademark in the U.S. and over 50 non-u8sdictions and have in place an
active program to continue securing the “eBay” &ayPal” domain nhames in major non-U.S. jurisdicioWe have filed to protect our rights
to the “eBay” and “PayPal” names in certain newl®pgel domains such as “.biz” “.info” and ".us” thaave recently become operational. Our
inability to secure our trademarks or domain naomedd adversely affect us in any jurisdiction inigthwe are not able to register.
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Third parties have from time to time claimadd others may claim in the future, that we haferiged their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We are involved iverl such legal proceedings. Please see the iatmmunder “Risk Factors That May Affect
Results of Operations and Financial Condition — &k subject to intellectual property and othegdition” and “— We may be unable to
protect or enforce our own intellectual properghts adequately” and “Item 3: Legal Proceedings.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, eBay Inc. and itssotidated subsidiaries employed approximately @ @€rsons, of whom approximately 3,100
were in the United States. Our future successhistantially dependent on the performance of oucetkee and senior management and key
technical personnel, and our continuing abilitfita and retain highly qualified technical and mgeadal personnel.

Segments

Segment selection is based upon our intemygnization structure, the manner in which ourapens are managed, the measurement of
the performance of our operations evaluated by gemant in the chief operating decision-maker capattie availability of separate financial
information and overall materiality considerations.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the growftour international operations and our acquisitdd PayPal prompted us to change the basis
for measuring our financial performance and evalgatesource allocations, and therefore our reptatsegments. We changed our business
segments from Online and Offline services to Ur8ernational, and Payments operations. This neynsat structure reflects the new
composition of our business. Additionally, we chagighe internal measurement basis of segment peaifaze from operating income before
certain items to a direct contribution measurerofitability.

Direct contribution consists of net revenless direct costs. Direct costs include speciftsof net revenues, sales and marketing
expenses, and general and administrative expensesvbich segment managers have direct discretyor@mtrol such as advertising and
marketing programs, customer support expenses, danges, provisions for doubtful accounts, autteaticredits and transaction losses.
Expenses over which segment managers do not haseetibnary control, such as site operations cpstgjuct development expenses, and
general and administrative costs, are monitorethgagement through shared cost centers and aexalofited in the measurement of
segment performance.

The U.S. segment comprises U.S. online teadlatforms other than PayPal and Billpoint, InbeTnternational segment comprises our
international online trading platforms. The Paynsesegment comprises our global payments platformsisting of our PayPal and Billpoint
subsidiaries. The Payments amounts reflect Billp@imistorical operations and PayPal's operatianste post-acquisition period from
October 4, 2002 through December 31, 2002. We heaxdously announced that we intend to discontiBilipoint’s operations in the first half
of 2003. Billpoint’s operations will continue to beflected in the Payments segment results uriltimd-down of Billpoint operations is
completed.

For geographic reporting purposes, net regemund long-lived assets of the Payments segmeiallacated between the U.S. and
International regions based upon the country irctvithhe revenue was generated or in which the &sketated. See “Note 4 — Segment
Information” of the notes to our Consolidated FiciahStatements, which is incorporated by referdrarein.

Available Information

Our Internet addressvwavw.ebay.comOur investor relations website is locateavatw.shareholder.com/ebayVe make available free of
charge on this website under “SEC Filings” our Aalnleports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on F&@¥Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K
and

15




Table of Contents

amendments to those reports as soon as reasomabticable after we electronically file or furnishch materials to the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

On March 1, 2000, we entered into a five-ylease for general office facilities located in Sase, California. This five-year lease is
commonly referred to as a synthetic lease becauspriesents a form of off-balance sheet financinder which an unrelated third-party funds
100% of the costs of the acquisition of the proparid leases the asset to us as lessee. Undeyasar $tructure, upon termination or expirat
at our option, we must either purchase the progesty the lessor for a predetermined amount ortkellreal property to a third party. Our San
Jose lease consists of approximately 460,000 sdeer®f office space. As of December 31, 2002pa@upied approximately 314,000 square
feet of this total office space and subleased aufdit space in the facility to third parties.

Payments under our lease are based on tite4bd@llion cost of the property funded by the thparty and are adjusted as the London
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, fluctuates. Untler terms of the lease agreement, the lease tat@sion March 1, 2005, unless extende
September 1, 2006. At any time prior to the finaldonths of the lease term, we may, at our oppanchase the property for approximately
$126.4 million. If we elect not to purchase thepedy, we will undertake to sell the facility to@or more third parties and have guaranteed to
the lessor a residual value equal to approxima&8%p of the $126.4 million cost of the property. @ueximum exposure to loss is the entire
amount of $126.4 million if we default on any ofteén lease obligations and financial covenantthif payment were made, we would then
receive title to the property. At December 31, 2002 had not made a decision with respect to wbftion we will pursue at the end of the
lease term. Management believes that the contingdaility relating to the residual value guarantei# not have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition, results of operations ask flows. See “Note 9 — Operating Lease Arrangésii@md “Note 6 — Derivative
Instruments” of the notes to our Consolidated FamrStatements, which are incorporated by refexdrarein.

In January 2003, the Financial Accountingh8tads Board, or FASB, issued FASB Interpretation 46, or FIN 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities.” This interpretationAécounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidakédancial Statements,” addresses
consolidation by business enterprises of certairabke interest entities where there is a conmglfinancial interest in a variable interest entity
or where the variable interest entity does not tsuféicient equity at risk to finance its activigvithout additional subordinated financial
support from other parties. This interpretationleggaimmediately to variable interest entities ¢eglafter January 31, 2003 and applies in the
first year or interim period beginning after Jurte 2003 to variable interest entities in which ateeprise holds a variable interest that it
acquired before February 1, 2003. We expect tleaattoption of FIN 46 will require us to include &an Jose facilities lease and potentially
certain investments in our Consolidated Financiate®nents effective July 1, 2003. In connectiorhwitir San Jose facilities lease arranger
our balance sheet following the July 1, 2003 adwoptif FIN 46 will reflect changes to record ass¥t$126.4 million, liabilities of
$122.5 million and non-controlling interests of $&illion. In addition, our post-adoption incomatsiment will reflect the reclassification of
rent expense payments from operating expensesai@#t expense as well as the recognition of degiiee expense, within operating
expenses, for our use of the buildings. We estirtietethe income statement impact of consolidatimgSan Jose facilities lease will consist of
a charge against earnings, net of taxes, of $3l&mupon the adoption of FIN 46 on July 1, 2008is charge will reflect the accumulated
depreciation charges that would have been recardevious periods had consolidation of the Sae Jacilities been required. Additionally,
we have not decided whether we will keep the exgstinancing arrangement or purchase the San dedgiés. Whether or not we keep the
existing financing arrangement, we anticipate rditay additional annual operating expenses of $illfom net of taxes, for the recognition of
depreciation expense on the buildings. In the ewenpurchase the San Jose facilities, we will pp $126.4 million, eliminate financing
payments and settle our two interest rate swapssed to establish a fixed rate of interest for 88iion of our financing arrangement. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, our financing
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payments related to the San Jose facilities totéfed million. At December 31, 2002, settlementof two interest rate swaps would have
resulted in a loss of $10.9 million.

Our U.S. segment occupies approximately 481 square feet of commercial office space in theéddrStates. We occupy 314,000 square
feet of commercial office space in San Jose, Qalifounder the terms of our synthetic lease foramuporate headquarters. We own and
occupy approximately 72,000 square feet of comrakoffice space in Salt Lake City, Utah for our destic customer support center. We le
and occupy an additional 48,000 square feet of ceroial office space in various domestic locatiamstiie operations of certain U.S.
subsidiaries.

Our International segment leases approxim&#0,000 square feet of commercial office spackicountries for our international
operations, including the operations of our Soutingén majority-owned subsidiary.

Our Payments segment leases approximatelfp@@&quare feet of commercial office space inthiged States and the United Kingdom.
In addition, our Payments segment owns approxim&2lacres of land near Omaha, Nebraska, on whidb@00 square foot facility is under
construction. Upon completion, this facility wilbhse the primary customer service operations cémteur Payments segment.

In 2002, we sold commercial real estate prtogeein California and Indiana totaling approxielgt551,000 square feet, primarily in
connection with the sales of our Butterfields arrds$¢ subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2002, weiroad to be the majority interest holde
approximately 156,000 square feet of commercidlestate in California.

In February 2003, we entered into an opegatirblease for approximately 110,000 square feevwimercial office space (offset by a
sublease back to the prime lessee of approxima@®&B00 square feet of that space) in VancouvetisBrColumbia to house a customer sup
center. For further discussion of the Vancouvesdeaee “Note 17 — Subsequent Events — Unauditedit Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is incorporated by referenceitere

We are currently considering various alterest related to our long-term facilities needs. W&ve believe our existing facilities are
adequate to meet our immediate needs, it may beoecessary to lease or acquire additional or atem space to accomodate our future
growth.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On April 25, 2001, our European subsidiaréay GmbH and eBay International AG, were suetbytres Rolex S.A. and certain Rolex
affiliates, or Rolex, in the regional court of Cotee, Germany. The suit subsequently was transféoréte regional court in Dusseldorf,
Germany. Rolex alleged that our subsidiaries wafringing Rolex’s trademarks as a result of usetng counterfeit Rolex watches through
our German website. The suit also alleges unfairpatition. Rolex sought an order forbidding theesafl Rolex watches on the website as well
as damages. In December 2002, a trial was helteimiatter and the court ruled in favor of eBay lbeauses of action. Rolex has appealed the
ruling, but the appeal has not yet been briefeldeaird.

On September 26, 2001, a complaint was bledlercExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsydand ReturnBuy, Inc. in the
Eastern District of Virginia (No. 2:01-CV-736) ajieg infringement of three patents (relating toilmalauction technology, multiple database
searching and electronic consignment systems) egkirgg a permanent injunction and damages (incfutteble damages for willful
infringement). We answered the complaint, denyhegdllegations. In April 2002, we filed four mot®for summary judgment relating to the
three patents in suit. The court denied three @$¢imotions and deferred ruling on the fourth moth “Markman” hearing was held in July
2002 to define certain disputed terms in the pateartd in October 2002 the court issued its clainstruction findings. In October 2002, the
court gave us leave to amend our answer to indutlaim that MercExchange committed fraud on themgeoffice during the prosecution of
one of the patents. On the same date, the courtegtan part our pending summary judgment motidiecéively invalidating the
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patent related to online auction technology andeeing it unenforceable. In November 2002, we filwd additional summary judgment
motions regarding the patents. One motion was deasemoot; the other was denied because the auntfthere were triable issues of fact. In
February 2003, we filed an additional summary judgtrmotion, which is still pending. Only two patenémain in the case at this time. Trie
scheduled for April 22, 2003. We believe we haveitoeous defenses and will defend ourselves vigshp. However, even if successful, our
defense against this action will be costly and dalivert our management’s time. If the plaintiffree¢o prevail on any of its claims, we might
be forced to pay significant damages and licenf@eg, modify our business practices or even bareagdrom conducting a significant part of
our U.S. business. Any such results could matgriekrm our business. We are unable to determiné pdtantial losses we may incur if this
lawsuit were to have an unfavorable outcome.

On September 6, 2002, a complaint was file&ibst USA Bank, N.A. against PayPal in the Didtof Delaware (No. 02-C\1-462) allegin:
infringement of two patents relating to assigningadias to a credit card so as to eliminate thel ieethe physical presence of the card in a
transaction and seeking a permanent injunctiondandages. PayPal believes it has meritorious dedearsetintends to defend itself vigorously.
However, even if successful, our defense agaiisttttion will be costly and could divert managethetime. If the plaintiff were to prevail ¢
its claims, PayPal might be forced to pay signiftcdamages and licensing fees or modify its busipeactices. Any such result could
materially harm our business. We are unable torgiéte what potential losses we may incur if thii suere to have an unfavorable outcome.

On August 16, 2002, Charles E. Hill & Assae® Inc., or Hill, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. Mgt Court for the Eastern District of Texas
(No. 2:02-CV-186) alleging that we and 17 other pamies, primarily large retailers, infringed thpsgents owned by Hill generally relating to
electronic catalog systems and methods for tratisgiand updating data at a remote computer. Thesseks an injunction against continuing
infringement, unspecified damages, including tretdmages for willful infringement, and intereststsy expenses and fees. In January 2003,
the court granted the collective defendants’ motatransfer the case from the court where it vilad fn Marshall, Texas to the Federal
District Court for the Southern District of Indian&’e believe that we have meritorious defensesraedd to defend ourselves vigorously.

On February 20, 2002, PayPal was sued iffaCaia state court in a purported class actiorgatig that its restriction of customer accounts
and failure to promptly unrestrict legitimate acotsuviolates state consumer protection law and igrdair business practice and a breach of
PayPal’'s User Agreement. This action was refiletthaidifferent named plaintiff on June 6, 2002, arrdlated action was filed in the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of Califoia on the same day. On March 12, 2002, PayPabued in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California in a purported ctaaction alleging that its restrictions of customerounts and failure to promptly unrest
legitimate accounts violates federal and state wmes protection and unfair business practice ldwe dourt has denied PayPal’s motion to
compel individual arbitration as required by theg/Pal User Agreement and has invalidated that piavisf the User Agreement. The two
federal court actions have been consolidated irsiogle case. PayPal is defending itself vigorousily if it is unable to prevail in these
lawsuits, it may have to change its anti-fraud apjens in a manner that will harm its business pay substantial damages. Even if its defense
is successful, the litigation could damage PayRepsitation, could require significant managemenét will be costly and could require
changes to its customer service and operation<thed increase its costs and decrease the efémess of its anti-fraud program.

Three purported class action complaints iigd following announcement of the PayPal mergeduly 2002 in the court of Chancery in
the State of Delaware in and for New Castle Cobgtglleged stockholders of PayPal. Two additionapprted class action complaints were
filed in the Superior Court of the State of Califia, County of Santa Clara, by alleged PayPal $tolclers. These complaints name as
defendants PayPal and each member of its boarteaftars as well as eBay. The complaints are pteplaclass actions that allege, among
other things, that eBay controlled PayPal priothim execution of their merger agreement, the defietsdoreached fiduciary duties they
assertedly owed to PayPal’s
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stockholders in connection with PayPal entering the merger agreement and the exchange rati@imérger was unfair and inadequate. The
plaintiffs seek, among other things, an award afpertified compensatory damages. We believe that@&abe lawsuits is without merit and
intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

Other third parties have from time to timaicied, and others may claim in the future that asehnfringed their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We have in the pastinforced to litigate such claims. We may becormeemulnerable to such claims as laws ¢
as the Digital Millennium Copyright Act and Commaaiions Decency Act are interpreted by the courtsas we expand into jurisdictions
where the underlying laws with respect to the piiéhability of online intermediaries like oursels is less favorable. We expect that we will
increasingly be subject to copyright and tradeniafikngement claims as the geographical reach ofsewices expands. We also expect that
we will increasingly be subject to patent infringamh claims as our services expand. In particularempect that patent infringement claims
involving various aspects of our Payments busimégontinue to be made. We have been notifiedeferal potential disputes and are sut
to a suit by Tumbleweed Communications Corporatiiat is currently ongoing. These claims, whetheritmgous or not, could be time-
consuming, result in costly litigation, cause seevilpgrade delays, require expensive changes imetirods of doing business or could require
us to enter into costly royalty or licensing agreais, if available. As a result, these claims cdwddn our business.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no submissions of matters to a gbsecurity holders during the fourth quarterexh®ecember 31, 2002.
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PART Il

ITEM5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Price Range of Common Stock

eBay’s common stock has been traded on Tlsel&pStock MarketSM under the symbol “EBAMhce September 24, 1998. The follown
table sets forth the intra-day high and low pershed prices of eBay’s common stock for the pesioutlicated, as reported by The Nasdaq
Stock Market?M

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2C

First Quarte $55.1: $28.4¢

Second Quarte 71.3C 29.2¢

Third Quartel 70.2( 40.4¢

Fourth Quarte 72.7¢ 44.0C
Year Ended December 31, 2C

First Quarte 69.5( 48.8¢

Second Quarte 64.1( 49.2¢

Third Quartel 62.47 51.0¢

Fourth Quarte 70.8¢ 50.22

As of February 28, 2003, there were approxétye?2,000 stockholders of record of eBay’s comrstotk, although eBay believes that there
is a significantly larger number of beneficial owsmef our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never paid cash dividends on oukstood currently anticipate that we will continwerétain any future earnings to finance the
growth of our business.

Equity Compensation Plans

For information on securities authorizedifsuance under our equity compensation plans, refé&quity Compensation Plan Information”
under Item 12, which is incorporated by refereneesim.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financiata should be read in conjunction with, and lifjed by reference to, the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto and “ManagésDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditamd Results of Operations”
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on FOBRK1The consolidated statement of income and timsalidated balance sheet data for the
years ended December 31, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2002G0®lare derived from, and are qualified by refeeeto, our audited Consolidat
Financial Statements.

On October 3, 2002, we completed our acdaisibf PayPal, Inc. in a tax-free, stock-for-sté@dnsaction. PayPal provides a global
payments platform and is headquartered in Mountam, California. The PayPal financial statementsiacluded in our Consolidated
Financial Statements for the post-acquisition gefiom October 4, 2002 through December 31, 2002.

Year Ended December 31

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

(in thousands, except per share date
Consolidated Statement of Income Dats

Net revenue $ 86,12¢ $224,72¢ $431,42: $748,82: $1,214,101
Cost of net revenue 16,09¢ 57,58¢ 95,45 134,81¢ 213,87¢
Gross profil 70,03t 167,13t 335,97: 614,00! 1,000,22.
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 35,97¢ 96,23¢ 166,76 253,47. 349,65(
Product developmel 4,64( 24,84 55,86 75,28¢ 104,63t
General and administrati\ 15,84¢ 43,91¢ 73,021 105,78 171,78t
Payroll taxes on stock option gai — — 2,33 2,44 4,01¢
Amortization of acquired intangible ass 80t 1,14t 1,43 36,59 15,94
Merger related cos! — 4,35¢ 1,55( — —
Total operating expens 57,27( 170,50¢ 300,97 473,57¢ 646,02
Income (loss) from operatiol 12,76 (3,379 34,99« 140,42t 354,19°
Interest and other income (expense), 1,79¢ 23,83t 46,331 41,61 49,20¢
Interest expens (2,19 (2,319 (3,379 (2,85]) (1,497)
Impairment of certain equity investmel — — — (16,245 (3,78))
Income before income taxes and mino
interests 12,37: 18,141 77,951 162,94 398,13:
Provision for income taxe (4,789 (8,4772) (32,729 (80,009 (145,94¢)
Minority interests in consolidated compan (31)) (202 3,06z 7,514 (2,29¢)
Net income $ 7,27 $ 9,56 $ 48,29¢ $ 90,44¢ $ 249,89:
I I I I .|
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.07 $ 0.04 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3 $ 0.87
I I I I .|
Diluted $ 0.0c $ 0.04 $ 0.17 $ 0.32 $ 0.8t
| | | | ]
Weighted average shar¢
Basic 104,12¢ 217,67- 251,77¢ 268,97: 287,49¢
| | | | ]
Diluted 233,51¢ 273,03: 280,34¢ 280,59! 292,82(
I I I I .|

21




Table of Contents

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(in millions)
Supplemental Operating Data:
Number of registered users at end of pe 2.2 10.C 22.t 42.4 61.7
Number of items liste 33.7 129.€ 264.7 423.1 638.<
Gross merchandise sa $ 745 $2,80¢ $5,422 $9,31¢ $14,86¢
PayPal accounts at end of per — — — — 23.8
PayPal number of payments: — — — — 39.2
PayPal total payment volume( — o o — $ 2,13¢
(1) Amounts shown are for the p-acquisition period from October 4, 2002 through &aber 31, 200z
December 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
Cash and cash equivalel $ 37,28t  $221,80: $ 201,87 $ 523,96¢ $1,109,31:
Shor-term investment 40,40! 181,08t 354,16t 199,45( 89,69(
Long-term investment — 373,98 218,19° 286,99¢ 470,22
Long-term restricted cash and investme — — 126,39( 129,61 134,64«
Working capital 72,93¢ 372,26t 538,02: 703,66t 1,082,23
Total asset 149,53t 969,82! 1,182,40. 1,678,52! 4,124,44.
Long-term debt 18,36! 15,01¢ 11,40 12,00¢ 13,79¢
Total stockholder equity 100,53¢ 854,12 1,013,76! 1,429,13! 3,556,47.

ITEM7: MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements based on our current expectabosit our company and our
industry. You can identify these forward-lookingtsinents when you see us using words such as “riaifl,” “should,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “i pla n” and other similar expressions. You can also tifgrforward-looking statements by

intend,
discussions of strategy, plans or intentions. THesgard-looking statements involve risks and uteieties. Our actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forwdodking statements as a result of the factors dbsedrin the “Risk Factors That May Affect
Results of Operations and Financial Condi” section below and elsewhere in this report. Weentake no obligation to publicly update any
forward-looking statements for any reason, even if nearinétion becomes available or other events occuhénfuture.

Overview

About eBay

We pioneered online trading by developing ebvWased marketplace in which a community of bugadssellers are brought together in an
entertaining, intuitive, easy-to-use environmenbttowse, buy and sell an enormous variety of itéthsough our PayPal service, we enable
any business or consumer with email to send arelveonline payments securely, conveniently and-efisctively.
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Business Combination

Historically, we have completed several basgicombinations accounted for using the poolingHefests and purchase methods of
accounting. The historical financial informatiohated to companies acquired in pooling-of-interéstasactions was retroactively restated at
the time of acquisition, whereas the results of ganies acquired under the purchase method of atingumere consolidated with our results
on a prospective basis from the acquisition dateiriy the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 @d2|, 2he aggregate purchase price of
acquisitions accounted for under the purchase midthtaled approximately $1.9 billion. This aggregptirchase price was allocated to
goodwill of $1.5 billion, identifiable intangiblesaets of $297 million, net tangible assets of $18Bon, deferred tax liabilities of $43 million,
minority interest of $34 million and unearned comgegion of $10 million. See “Note 3 — Business Comabons, Goodwill and Intangible
Assets” to our Consolidated Financial Statementschvis incorporated by reference herein.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periodsgmeted, certain data from our consolidated statdrémcome as a percentage of net
revenues. The information contained in the tablewehould be read in conjunction with Critical Acmting Policies, Judgments and
Estimates as well as the Consolidated Financiate®tents and Notes thereto included elsewhere snAthhual Report on Form -K.

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002

Net revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of net revenue 22.1 18.C 17.€
Gross profit 77.¢ 82.C 82.4

Operating expense

Sales and marketir 38.7 33.¢ 28.¢
Product developmel 12.¢ 10.1 8.€
General and administrati\ 16.¢ 14.1 14.1
Payroll taxes on stock option gai 0.t 0.3 0.3
Amortization of acquired intangible ass 0.2 4.9 1.3
Merger related cos 0.4 — —
Total operating expens: 69.7 63.2 53.1
Income from operation 8.2 18.¢ 29.2
Interest and other income, r 10.7 5.6 4.1
Interest expens (0.9 (0.9 (0.7
Impairment of certain equity investmel — (2.2 (0.3
Income before income taxes and minority inter 18.1 21.¢ 32.¢
Provision for income taxe (7.€) (10.7) (12.0
Minority interests in consolidated compan 0.7 1.C (0.2

Net income 11.2% 12.1% 20.6%
| | |
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Net Revenue

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change
Transaction net revenu

u.s. $315,19¢ 51%  $474,97!( 51% $ 718,23¢
International 27,94: 297% 110,80: 16&% 297,48
Payment: 5,03¢ 235% 16,89¢ 452% 93,30:
Total transaction net revenu 348,17- 73% 602,67: 84% 1,109,02

3rd party advertising net revent
u.s. 11,98¢ 572% 80,49: (32)% 54,90¢
International 1,03¢ 224% 3,36( 38% 4,651
Payment: = = = = 1,47¢
Total 3rd party advertising net revent 13,02 544% 83,85 271% 61,03t

Enc-to-end services net revent
u.s. 30,75¢ (12)% 27,13: (200% 21,647
Payment: — — 74¢ (22)% 587
Total en«to-end services net revent 30,75¢ (9% 27,88: (20)% 22,23¢
Offline net revenue 39,47: (13)% 34,41¢ B3N% 21,80¢
Total net revenue $431,42¢ 74%  $748,82: 62% $1,214,101
| | | | ]
U.S. segment net revent $397,40° 55%  $617,01: 32% $ 816,59¢
International segment net reveni 28,97¢ 294% 114,16: 165% 302,13¢
Payments segment net reven 5,03¢ 25(% 17,64¢ 44(% 95, 36¢
$431,42: 74%  $748,82: 62% $1,214,101
I L] I L] .|

Net Revenues by Geograp

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change

U.S. net revenue $402,44¢ 58% $634,65¢ 41% $ 897,70:
International net revenu 28,97¢ 294% 114,16: 177% 316,39¢
Total net revenue $431,42- 74%  $748,82: 62% $1,214,10!
| [ | | [ | |

Net revenues are allocated between U.S. @edniational geographies based upon the countmhioh the seller, advertiser or end-to-end
service provider is located.
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Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in millions, except percents)
Supplemental Operating Data:

Confirmed registered users at end of y 22.5 8% 42.4 45% 61.7
Number of items liste 264.5 60% 423.1 51% 638.:
Gross merchandise sal $5,42: 72%  $9,31¢ 60% $14,86¢
PayPal accounts at end of per — — — — 23.8
PayPal number of payments: — — — — 39.2
PayPal total payment volume( — o o — $ 2,13¢

(1) Amounts shown are for the p-acquisition period from October 4, 2002 through &aber 31, 200:

Our net revenues result from fees associatébdour transaction, third-party advertising, eneend services, and offline services in our
U.S., International and Payments segments. Transa&venue is derived primarily from listing, fae¢ and final value fees paid by sellers
fees from payment processing services. Revenue thiothparty advertising is derived principally frothe sale of online banner and
sponsorship advertisements for cash and througbrbearrangements. End-to-end services revenueiigedeprincipally from contractual
arrangements with third parties that provide tratisa services to eBay and PayPal users. Offlineices revenue is derived from a variety of
sources including seller commissions, buyer prersilsidder registration fees and auction-relatedices including appraisal and
authentication.

The successive year-over-year growth in @etmues from 2000 through 2002, was primarily #=ailit of increased auction transaction
activity, reflected in the growth of the numberefistered users, listings and gross merchandige. $aur acquisition of iBazar S.A. and of a
majority interest in Internet Auction Co., Ltd. thg 2001 contributed less than 3% of our net reesrduring the year ended December 31,
2001. Acquisitions of PayPal, Inc., NeoCom Techgypl€o., Ltd. and the remaining 50% interest in Australian subsidiary during 2002,
contributed approximately 6% of our net revenuesnguthe year ended December 31, 2002. Our revgraeth during these periods was also
positively impacted by fee increases in the U.Sl.\aarious international locations.

Revenue from U.S. and International Segm
Transaction Net Revenue

U.S. segment transaction net revenue incdeas® between 2000 and 2001 and 51% between 2@D2002. International segment
transaction net revenue increased 297% between&@DQ001 and 168% between 2001 and 2002. Thessieeg/ear-over-year growth in
U.S. and International segment transaction netmee® from 2000 to 2002 was primarily the resulhofeased auction transaction activity,
reflected in the growth of the number of registewsdrs, listings and gross merchandise sales. \Meriexced transaction net revenue growth
across all categories during 2001 and 2002 wittonsptomputers, consumer electronics, collectildad, books/music/movies making the n
significant impact. International segment transactiet revenue as a percentage of consolidateskirtion net revenue was 8% in 2000, 18%
in 2001 and 27% in 2002. This growth is primarhg tresult of strong performance in Germany, theddnKingdom, Canada and South Korea.
We expect international segment transaction netmees will continue to grow in significance to tusiness as we develop and deploy our
global marketplace. In addition, new regulationshi@ European Union relating to the collection afue-added taxes, or VAT, on digital
services will require us to collect and remit VA our own fees beginning in July 2003. We intend/¢ok with the relevant tax authorities to
clarify our obligations under these regulations tmdhange our software to permit the billing cégk taxes. The increased costs to our
European users may reduce their activity on oursited and could adversely affect our internatidraaisaction net revenues.
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Third-party Advertising Net Revenue

U.S. third-party advertising net revenue éased as a percentage of total U.S. segment reetues from 3% in 2000 to 13% in 2001. The
increase during 2001 was primarily the result of stuategy to increase overall site monetizatiod e efforts of AOL Time Warner, Inc. or
AOL, our exclusive advertising sales representatuging the year ended December 31, 2002, U.Sneetthird-party advertising decreased
in both absolute dollars, from $80.5 million in 20@® $54.9 million in 2002, and as a percentag®t@al U.S. segment net revenues, from 13%
in 2001 to 7% in 2002. Revenues from U.S. segnferd-party advertising decreased during 2002 primashaaesult of a general deteriora
in the online advertising market that adverselyaetpd our advertising sales through AOL. Intermeticegment third-party advertising net
revenue decreased as a percentage of total Intarabhet revenues from 4% to 3% to 2% in 2000,22&0d 2002, respectively. Although the
absolute dollar amount of International segmemttparty advertising net revenues increased dwaah of these periods, the decreases in
International segment third-party advertising geecentage of total International segment net reegnvere primarily the result of transaction
net revenues growing faster than advertising netmees. We continue to view our business as priynasinsaction driven and we expect third-
party advertising net revenues in future periodsaiatinue to decrease as a percentage of totaéwetues and in absolute dollars. Addition:
our advertising sales representative agreementAwith has not been extended or renewed and is stdethuterminate on March 31, 2003,
with AOL to continue its electronic delivery of oanline advertisements for a specified wind-dowriqee After March 31, 2003, our third-
party advertising revenues will be dependent oreffats of our existing internal sales staff.

End-to-End Services Net Revenue

U.S. segment end-to-end services net revdaaeased successively in absolute dollars fromB8%3dlion in 2000 to $27.1 million in 2001
to $21.6 million in 2002 and as a percentage @fl 10tS. segment net revenues from 8% in 2000 tard2001 to 3% in 2002. As end-to-end
services are contractual and are largely depengent contractual terms and our users’ adoptiohiod4party products and services, we ex|
end-to-end services revenue in future periodsuctdiate from period to period, however, in geneval expect these revenues to decrease as a
percentage of total net revenues and in absoldtarslo

Offline Net Revenue

Offline net revenue decreased as a percentagéablids. segment net revenues from 9% to 5% tor220D0, 2001 and 2002, respectiv
During the year ended December 31, 2001, offlineesenue decreased in both absolute dollars aadascentage of total U.S. segment net
revenues compared to 2000, primarily as a reswdtgdneral softening in the offline auction andchbénd art markets. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, offline net revenue decreasbdtmabsolute dollars and as a percentage ofloglsegment net revenues compared to
2001, primarily as a result of our divestiture ottbour Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries. Acaugty, we do not expect to earn offline net
revenue in the foreseeable future.

Net Revenues from Payments Seqt

Net revenues from the Payments segment aergied from eBay’s Billpoint operations for ea¢hhe years presented and PayPal’s
operations for the post-acquisition period fromdbetr 4, 2002 through December 31, 2002. See “NeteBusiness Combinations, Goodwill
and Intangible Assets” to the consolidated notebedinancial statements for pro forma resultspérations.

Transaction Net Revenue

Payments segment transaction net revenuedsed 235% year-over-year between 2000 and 200452 between 2001 and 2002. The
year-over-year growth in 2001 was the result of inceglsansaction volume processed by eBay’s Billppaytment services. The growth in
2002 was primarily the result of our
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acquisition of PayPal. For the post-acquisitioriguefrom October 4, 2002 through December 31, 28@%8Pal recorded transaction net
revenue of $72.6 million. We expect to wind-dowm Billpoint payment operations during the firstal 2003.

Third-party Advertising and End-to-End Services Revenues

Payments segment revenues from third-panrgréiding and end-to-end services decreased agargage of total Payments segment net
revenues from 4% in 2001 to 2% in 2002 as transactet revenues grew faster than third-party athiegt and end-to-end services net
revenues. We continue to view our business as pitimteansaction driven, and we expect Paymentsngey third-party advertising and end-to-
end net revenues in future periods to continueetwehse as a percentage of total net revenues adolute dollars.

Cost of Net Revenues

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change
Cost of net revenue $95,45: 41% $134,81¢ 58%  $213,87¢
As a percentage of net reveni 22% 18% 18%

Cost of net revenues consists primarily ats@ssociated with customer support, site op&istend payment processing. Significant cost
components include employee compensation andtfasiliosts for customer support, site operatiorteymet connectivity charges, deprecia
of site equipment, payment processing fees, anatidiz of required capitalization of major site grdduct development costs, including the
amortization of capitalized costs related to theeflgpment of our third generation “V3” site arcleitgre, costs to provide end-to-end services
and promotions and corporate overhead allocations.

Cost of net revenues increased in absolutarddut decreased as a percentage of net revémuue000 to 2001. This increase in absolute
dollars was due almost entirely to our online basfas we continued to develop and expand ourrogstsupport and site operations
infrastructure. The increases were primarily treuheof personnel costs, depreciation of the eqeipimequired for site operations, software
licensing fees, Internet connectivity charges drdincreased costs associated with acquired bsgiseshe decrease in cost of net revenues as
a percentage of net revenue resulted from cost gesnant initiatives and lower technology costs ia sperations and increases in higher ¢
margin businesses such as autos, third-party asimgrand end-tend services and promotions. The combined effettiesfe activities resulte
in our cost of net revenues per listing decreafiog $0.36 in 2000 to $0.32 in 2001.

Cost of net revenues increased in absolutarddout remained constant as a percentage oemehues from 2001 to 2002. This increase in
absolute dollars was due to increased payment gsotecosts resulting from our acquisition of Pdydpa continued development and
expansion of our customer support and site operaiitfrastructure. The increase in payment prongssnsts totaled $50.4 million and cons
of bank charges, credit card interchange feesp#ma processing charges. The increase in custsapgrort and site operations costs were
primarily the result of increased depreciationitéd sperations software and equipment of $10.9oniland personnel costs of $7.7 million.
Cost of net revenues stayed constant as a pereeotangt revenue from 2001 to 2002 and reflects effisiencies in both customer support
site operations offset by the addition of PayPlakger margin payments processing business. The tmuleffect of these activities resulted in
our cost of net revenues per listing increasingif .32 in 2001 to $0.34 in 2002. We expect thé¢ abset revenues to increase in absolute
dollars and increase as a percentage of net regém@903 as a result of the addition of a fullyePayPal’s lower margin payments
processing business.
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Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent change
Sales and marketir $166,76° 5206  $253,47: 38%  $349,65(
As a percentage of net reveni 3% 34% 2%

Sales and marketing expenses primarily congismployee compensation for our category devakmt and marketing staff, advertising,
tradeshow and other promotional costs, certairt tmd safety programs and corporate overhead &bosa

The growth in absolute dollars from 2000 @92 was primarily the result of growth in onlinedaoffline advertising, employee
compensation costs, costs associated with thefumgiside services and consultants, additionalscassociated with acquired businesses, and
miscellaneous user and promotional costs.

The growth in absolute dollars from 2001 @2 was primarily the result of increased advergisind marketing costs. Our advertising
costs increased by $54.7 million and were diretdggirds a national television advertising campaigd several category focused print and on-
line advertising campaigns. Additionally, our reédifees paid to marketing partners increased Iy@bdillion during the year in connection
with the growth of specific categories, our expansdated to tradeshows and user programs incrégs$d.4 million and our professional
services fees increased by $5.1 million. Our adsiag efforts target the acquisition of registetsers and activation of existing users through
television, print media placements, promotionakagnents with Internet portals and other onlineiserproviders. Sales and marketing
expenses are expected to increase in absolutesjalad to decrease as a percentage of net revien2@83. See “Note 11 — Commitments
and Contingencies — Advertising” to our Consolidafénancial Statements, which is incorporated ligresce herein.

Product Developmer

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
Product developmel $55,86: 35%  $75,28¢ 39%  $104,63¢
As a percentage of net reveni 13% 10% 9%

Product development expenses consist priynefiemployee compensation, payments to outsidé&ctors, depreciation on equipment
used for development and corporate overhead aitosatProduct development expenses do not reféegtired capitalization of major site and
product development efforts, including the develeptrof our third generation “V3” site architectuidese capitalized costs totaling
$9.4 million in 2000, $6.7 million in 2001, and $%5nillion in 2002 are reflected as a cost of rexewhen amortized. We anticipate that we
will continue to devote significant resources toguct development in the future as we add new featand functionality to the eBay and
PayPal platforms.

The increase in absolute dollars from 2002001 was primarily the result of increases in emeé compensation costs, reflected by the
growth in our development staff, which increasenhfr203 at December 31, 2000 to 320 at Decembe2(1l, and maintenance and
depreciation costs for equipment used in produceld@ment. The increase in these costs results finendevelopment of additional site
features and functionality such as eBay Storesy éBeeckout, enhanced payment features and expasdedh capabilities.

The increase in absolute dollars from 2002002 was primarily as a result of an $18.9 milliocrease in employee compensation costs,
reflected by the growth in our development stafijah increased from 320 at December 31, 2001 tosb¥zecember 31, 2002, and a
$7.3 million increase in
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maintenance and depreciation costs for equipmestt isresearch and development. The increase $e ttests results from the developmer
additional site features and functionality sucteasanced search functionality, improved sellersoexpanded eBay Stores merchandising
capabilities, added fixed price functionality antbroved site security. Product development expeaiesxpected to increase in absolute
dollars in 2003, as we develop new site featuresfanctionality and continue to improve and expapérations across all our segments. We
expect product development expenses as a percasftagerevenues in 2003 to remain generally comsisvith 2002 levels.

General and Administrative

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
General and administrati $73,02] 45% $105,78: 62% $171,78!
As a percentage of net rever 17% 14% 14%

General and administrative expenses consist piliynairemployee compensation, provision for doub#atounts, provisions for transact
losses associated with our Payments segment, m®jriees for external professional advisors ampgarate overhead allocations.

The increase in absolute dollars from 2002001 was primarily the result of increases in emeé compensation costs, reflected by the
growth in our general and administrative staff, ebhincreased from 302 at December 31, 2000 to #Deeember 31, 2001, provisions for
doubtful accounts, fees for professional servigesfacilities costs. The increase in these co$lsated our investment in the infrastructure that
is necessary to support the growth of our business.

The increase in absolute dollars from 2002Q02 was primarily the result of increases of §1fillion in fees for professional services,
$12.2 million in the provision for doubtful accoan$7.8 million in the provision for transactiorsses, and $6.5 million in facilities costs.
These costs increased to meet the demands of pandig business, including operations in new aésaind the integration of new
businesses. To support this growth, we increasedeneral and administrative staff from 415 at Delger 31, 2001 to 1,253 at December 31,
2002, which includes the addition of approximat@®@ general and administrative employees resultomg our acquisition of PayPal. Of these
incremental PayPal employees, a substantial nusupgrort PayPal’s various trust and safety progrdime.headcount increase helped us
strengthen the existing teams in corporate finaocogorate development, legal and accounting deyeents as well as in our growing
international operations. We expect that generdlaministrative expenses will increase in absalalars in 2003, as we continue to inves
the infrastructure that is necessary to supporbosiness. Additionally, we expect 2003 general aadinistrative expense to increase as a
percentage of net revenues with the addition afllayéar of PayPal's operations.

Payroll Taxes on Stock Option Gai

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent change
Payroll taxes on stock option gal $2,33i 4% $2,44: 64% $4,01¢
As a percentage of net reveni 1% 0% 0%

We are subject to employer payroll taxes mpleyee gains resulting from exercises of non-djealistock options. These employer payroll
taxes are recorded as a charge to operations petted in which such options are exercised and Baked on actual gains realized by
employees. Our quarterly results of operationsasth flows could vary significantly depending oa #ttual period that stock options are
exercised by employees and, consequently, the anodemployer payroll taxes assessed. We expectises of employee stock option grants
will result in increased payroll tax costs in 2Q&8tially as a
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result of gains from the exercise of PayPal optigsumed in the merger. In general, we expect pagres on employee stock option gains to
increase during periods in which our stock prickigh relative to historic levels.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Ass

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
Amortization of acquired intangible ass $1,43: 2,45%  $36,59! (56)% $15,94:
As a percentage of net reveni 0% 5% 1%

From time to time we have purchased, andxpee to continue purchasing, assets or businésseselerate category and geographic
expansion, increase the features and functionsadi®@ito our users and maintain a leading rolenime trading. These purchase transactions
may result in the creation of acquired intangildseds and lead to a corresponding increase imtletization expense in future periods.

Intangible assets are comprised of purchagstbmer lists, developed technologies, trade naamekother intangible assets. Intangible
assets, excluding goodwill, are being amortizedgitie straight-line method over estimated uséfeklranging from two to seven years. We
believe the straight-line method of amortizatiostirepresents the distribution of economic valughefidentified intangible assets.

Goodwill represents the excess of the pukipaise over the fair value of the net tangible atghtifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. In accordance with SFAS M@, gjoodwill is no longer subject to amortizati®ather, goodwill is subject to at least an
annual assessment for impairment, applying a falinesbased test.

Amortization of acquired intangible assetsrdased during 2002, primarily from the eliminat@frgoodwill amortization as part of our
adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Irgédrie Assets” on January 1, 2002.

Identifiable intangible assets arising froor @ctober 3, 2002 acquisition of PayPal consif@fPal’s customer list of $196.9 million, its
trade name of $63.6 million and developed techriebgf $16.5 million. The acquired intangible ass#tPayPal will be amortized over the
following estimated useful lives: customer list -even years; trade name — seven years; and devdegletblogies — three years. This
allocation will result in annual amortization ofpximately $28.1 million for the customer list,.$9million for the trade name and
$5.5 million for the existing technologies. We egpihe full year of amortization from PayPal’s arqd intangible assets to result in an
increase of amortization expense in 2003.

Mergel-related Costs

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
Merger related cosi $1,55( (100)% $0 0% $0
As a percentage of net reveni 0% 0% 0%

Merger-related costs were primarily attriliite direct costs associated with mergers accountaghder the pooling of interests method.
These amounts consist primarily of professionalises, contract and facility termination expensed garious registration and filing fees.
Direct costs associated with mergers accountedrfder the purchase method are capitalized in détargithe purchase price.

We incurred direct merger-related transactiosts in 2000 related to the merger with Half.cBue to the elimination of the pooling of
interests method of accounting, merger-relatedsae$ated to acquisitions after July 2001 weretediped as a component of purchase price.
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Non-Operating Items

Interest and Other Income, N

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change
Interest and other income, r $46,33% (10)%  $41,61: 18% $49,20¢
As a percentage of net reveni 11% 6% 4%

Interest and other income, net consiststef@st earned on cash, cash equivalents, and igett as well as foreign exchange transaction
gains and losses and other miscellaneous non-ameteansactions.

Our interest and other income, net decredsedg 2001 as a result of a lower interest rat8renment. Our weighted-average interest rate
was approximately 4.3% in 2000 and 3.6% in 200thédgh, we maintained higher cash, cash equivaletiinvestment balances during 2001
as a result of increased operating and financis daws, the decrease in interest rates resutteah ioverall decline in interest income.

Our interest and other income, net increased d®@@ primarily as a result of gains from the sdleur Butterfields subsidiary and cert
real estate properties of $10.6 million, a gairtt@sale of our Kruse subsidiaries of $6.5 milléod a gain on the sale of an equity investment
in a privately held company of $3.2 million. Thegns were offset by a decrease in interest aresinvent income of $4.1 million resulting
from lower average interest rates, despite an &s&rén our cash, cash equivalents, and investrbafgaces in 2002 and from decreased
realized gains on the sale of investments, ancceedse in foreign exchange gains of $3.5 millionr ®eighted-average interest rate was
approximately 3.6% in 2001 and 2.8% in 2002. Weeekghat interest and other income, net will deseda 2003, as we do not expect
significant gains from the sale of assets or sudsas in 2003.

Interest Expens

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change
Interest expens $3,37¢ (16)% $2,851 (48)%  $1,49:
As a percentage of net reveni 1% 0% 0%

Interest expense consists of interest chasgenortgage notes and capital leases. Interesinsepdecreased from 2000 to 2001, as a result
of lower interest rates and a reduction in outstamdebt balances. Interest expense decreasedOinto 2002 as a result of a reduction ir
outstanding mortgage notes balances in connectithntine sale of several of the underlying propsttie

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No.“@®nsolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thigerpretation of Accounting Research
Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Stateméhdsldresses consolidation by business enterpoisesrtain variable interest entities where
there is a controlling financial interest in a adlie interest entity or where the variable inteeggity does not have sufficient equity at risk to
finance its activities without additional subordieg financial support from other parties. This iptetation applies immediately to variable
interest entities created after January 31, 20@3aplies in the first year or interim period bedirg after June 15, 2003 to variable interest
entities in which an enterprise holds a variabterist that it acquired before February 1, 2003 .efeect that the adoption of FIN 46 will
require us to include our San Jose facilities leasengement and potentially certain investmentsunConsolidated Financial Statements
effective July 1, 2003. In connection with our Sase facilities lease arrangement, our balance &hkmving the July 1, 2003 adoption of
FIN 46 will reflect changes to record assets of@42nillion, liabilities of $122.5 million and nocentrolling interests of $3.9 million. In
addition, our post-adoption income statement weillact the reclassification of
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rent expense payments from operating expensesai@#t expense as well as the recognition of degiies expense, within operating
expenses, for our use of the buildings. We estirtetethe income statement impact of consolidatimgSan Jose facilities lease will consist of
a charge against earnings, net of taxes, of $3liomupon the adoption of FIN 46 on July 1, 2008is charge will reflect the accumulated
depreciation charges that would have been recardeckvious periods had consolidation of the Sase Jacilities been required. Additionally,
we have not decided whether we will keep the exgstinancing arrangement or purchase the San dedgiés. Whether or not we keep the
existing financing arrangement, we anticipate rditay additional annual operating expenses of $illfom net of taxes, for the recognition of
depreciation expense on the buildings. In the emenpurchase the San Jose facilities, we will psp $126.4 million, eliminate financing
payments and settle our two interest rate swapssed to establish a fixed rate of interest for 88iion of our financing arrangement. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, our financingipais related to the San Jose facilities totalefl Sifllion. At December 31, 2002,
settlement of our two interest rate swaps woulcehasgulted in a loss of $10.9 million.

Impairment of Certain Equity Investme

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change
Impairment of certain equity investmel $0 100% $16,24: 7N%  $3,781
As a percentage of net reveni 0% 2% 0%

During the year ended December 31, 2001, we redandpairment charges totaling $16.2 million relgtprimarily to the impairment in tl
fair value of certain private equity investmentse Yécorded impairment charges for these investniessd upon the deterioration of the
financial condition of certain investees and bageah financing obtained by certain other investdes valuation below which we made our
investment.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, emerded impairment charges totaling $3.8 millidatiag to the impairment in the fair value
of certain equity investments. We recorded an apprately $640,000 impairment charge for an equigestment in a public company based
upon a significant decline in the market value of imvestment during 2002, which we determineddmther than temporary. We recorded
$3.2 million in impairment charges for certain @i equity investments based upon the deteriorafitime financial condition of certain
investees and as a result of financing obtaineddtain other investees at a valuation below whiehmade our investment.

We expect that the fair value of our equitydstments will fluctuate from time to time anduiig impairment assessments may result in
additional charges to our operating results.

Provision for Income Taxe

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent change

Provision for income taxe $32,72¢ 144% $80,00¢ 82% $145,94¢
As a percentage of net reveni 8% 11% 12%
Effective tax rate 40% 47% 37%

The provision for income taxes differs frome tamount computed by applying the statutory Le8efal rate principally due to non-
deductible expenses related to acquisitions, &ags, subsidiary losses for which we have notigesla benefit and other permanent
differences that increase the effective tax rateesE amounts are partially offset by decreasettirestrom foreign income with lower effecti
tax rates and tax-exempt interest income.
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We receive tax deductions from the gainsizedlby employees on the exercise of certain naiiipd stock options for which the benefit
is recognized as a component of stockholders’ ggquie have provided a full valuation allowance be teferred tax assets relating to these
stock option deductions due to the uncertaintiep@ated with our future stock price and the timiigmployee stock option exercises. To the
extent that additional stock option deductionsrevegenerated in future years, we will have théitgbsubject to carryforward limitations, to
utilize up to $207.3 million of additional deferreak assets to reduce future income tax liabiliti#sen recognized, the tax benefit of tax
deductions related to stock options are accourttedd a credit to additional paid-in capital rattiem a reduction of the income tax provision.

Minority Interests in Consolidated Compan

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002

(in thousands, except percent changes)
Minority interests in consolidated compan $3,06: 145%  $7,51¢ (131)% $(2,29¢)
As a percentage of net rever 1% 1% 0%

Minority interests in consolidated comparmgsresents the minority investor’s percentage sbbirrcome or losses from subsidiaries in
which we hold a majority ownership interest andsmidate the subsidiaries’ results in our finansiatements.

Third parties held minority interests in Bitint and eBay Japan in 2000; in Billpoint, InteérAection, and eBay Japan in 2001; in Billpoint
for part of 2002 and Internet Auction for all ofG0 The decrease in minority interests from 200202 primarily resulted from Internet
Auction generating net income for the first time2id02. Additionally, our January 2002 acquisitidrtie remaining 35% minority interest in
Billpoint previously held by Wells Fargo Bank alsontributed to the decrease. We expect that minonierests in consolidated companies
continue to fluctuate in future periods. If Intetraiction, our majority-owned South Korean subsigi@ontinues to be profitable, the minority
interests adjustment on the statement of incomlecatiltinue to decrease our net income by the miparvestor’'s share of Internet Auction’s
net income.

Impact of Foreign Currency Translatic

The growth in our international operations frcreased our exposure to foreign currency fataas. We have foreign currency
denominated net revenues, costs and expenses. ifkesge statement amounts are translated intoddlfars at the average exchange rates in
each applicable period. To the extent the U.Sadelieakens against foreign currencies, the traoslaf these foreign currency denominated
transactions results in increased net revenuesatipg expenses and net income. Similarly, our@etnues, operating expenses and net
income will decrease when the U.S. dollar strengghegainst foreign currencies.

A significant portion of our internationaltmevenues, operating expenses and net incomesamrdnated in Euros. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the U.S. dollar weakened agtiadturo and our weighted-average translationuseel to convert Euro denominated
transactions into U.S. dollar equivalents, decredgeapproximately 6% compared to the weighted-ayetranslation rate for the year ended
December 31, 2001. This weighted-average translatite change for the Euro resulted in increasedevenues of approximately
$11.0 million and increased operating expensegpifaximately $5.0 million during the year ended Braber 31, 2002.

We expect our international operations wilhtinue to grow in significance as we develop aeplay our global marketplace. As a result,
foreign currency fluctuations in future periods ltbobecome more significant or even have a negatiy@act on our net revenues and net
income.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

Since inception, we have financed operatmisarily from net cash generated from operatintyvaes. In addition, we have obtained
additional financing from the sale of preferredc&tand warrants, proceeds from the exercise okth@srants, proceeds from the exercise of
stock options and proceeds from our initial andbfeton public offerings. During 2002, we were priihafinanced by our income from
operations and from the proceeds of stock opti@nases.

Net cash provided by operating activities $460.1 million in 2000, $252.1 million in 2001,ch%479.9 million in 2002. Net cash provided
by operating activities resulted primarily from met income, tax benefits on the exercise of stgtions, non-cash charges for depreciation
and amortization and changes in assets and liabilit

Net cash used in investing activities wasgs20nillion in 2000, $29.8 million in 2001, and 18 million in 2002. The primary use for
invested cash in the periods presented was fohpses of property and equipment and acquisitiatspfproceeds from the sale of
investments and assets.

Net cash provided by financing activities §&8.0 million in 2000, $101.5 million in 2001, afid52.1 million in 2002. Net cash provided
by financing activities was primarily due to theuance of common stock associated with stock ogti@ncises.

Commitments and Contingencies
Capital Expenditures

We expect capital expenditures to approxir$2@0 million during 2003, without taking into acod any acquisitions or costs associated
with the potential purchase of additional officeifides, and consists primarily of hardware anéhsare for our platform architecture, site
operations and corporate information systems. éretrent we purchase additional office facilitie@03, our capital expenditures would be
substantially larger. As of December 31, 2002, weehcommitments to purchase a total of $28.8 milliocomputer equipment, software and
related services from two vendors.

In June 2002, we entered into an agreememitthase computer equipment, software and retsndces to expand our data warehousing
capabilities. Under the agreement we are obligaterhy a minimum of $16.0 million to a third-pasgndor during a 30-month period ending
in December 2004. Minimum purchases under the comemit total $7.2 million in 2002, $4.5 million i®A3, and $4.3 million in 2004. Duri
the year ended December 31, 2002, we purchasedrfidh under this contract.

In December 2002, we entered into an agreetogurchase computer equipment, software anteakservices to further expand our
platform architecture, site operations and corpgoiiafiormation systems. Under the agreement, welaligated to pay a minimum of
$20.0 million to a third-party vendor during 2003he commitment may include a maximum of $5.4 millio services purchases, and the
remainder must consist of equipment and softwareh@ses. The agreement automatically renews fatiawda oneyear periods through 20(
if we do not cancel the agreement at the conclusi@ach year. In addition, this vendor amendedxasting promotions agreement and has
agreed to pay us $5.0 million in quarterly paymdatgpromotion of its auctions on eBay.com in 2@0@l to spend an additional $666,000 in
joint promotions during the year. The promotionsegment, as amended, can be renewed with the nagtegment of both parties 1
additional one-year terms through 2005. Equipmsoftyare and services purchases will be expensedptalized in accordance with our
capitalization policy. Promotions will be recogrizas transaction revenue over the period of deliver
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Leases

On March 1, 2000, we entered into a five-ylease for general office facilities located in Sase, California. This five-year lease is
commonly referred to as a synthetic lease becauspriesents a form of off-balance sheet financinder which an unrelated third-party funds
100% of the costs of the acquisition of the proparid leases the asset to us as lessee. Undeyasar $tructure, upon termination or expirat
at our option, we must either purchase the profdesty the lessor for a predetermined amount ortkelreal property to a third party. Our San
Jose lease consists of approximately 460,000 sdeer®f office space. As of December 31, 2002pa@upied approximately 314,000 square
feet of this total office space and subleased aufdit space in the facility to third parties.

Payments under our lease are based on tite4bd@llion cost of the property funded by the thparty and are adjusted as the London
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, fluctuates. Untler terms of the lease agreement, the lease tat@sion March 1, 2005, unless extende
September 1, 2006. At any time prior to the finaldonths of the lease term, we may, at our oppanchase the property for approximately
$126.4 million. If we elect not to purchase thepady, we will undertake to sell the facility to@or more third parties and have guaranteed to
the lessor a residual value equal to approxima&8%p of the $126.4 million cost of the property. @ueximum exposure to loss is the entire
amount of $126.4 million if we default on any ofteén lease obligations and financial covenantthif payment were made, we would then
receive title to the property. At December 31, 2002 had not made a decision with respect to thiemgve will pursue at the end of the lease
term. Management believes that the contingentliiglvelating to the residual value guarantee wok have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or céelvs.

In addition, we are required to maintain $#2@illion of cash and investment securities atatelal for the term of the lease and to
maintain certain financial covenants. The cashianelstment securities are restricted as to thamdvawal from a third-party trustee and are
classified as long-term restricted cash and investmon our balance sheet. In the event of a defadkr the lease, the collateral could be usec
to pay the purchase price of the property andehed would be terminated. At December 31, 2002yere in compliance with our financial
covenants under the lease.

If our lease were terminated, and we becalligaied to pay the purchase price of the landkanldiings, we would show the cost as an
asset on our balance sheet and our restrictedacasimvestments position would be reduced by theusrnof the purchase price. Currently, we
reflect rent payments as an operating expense ostatement of income. In the event we were redquingpurchase the land and buildings, our
rent expense would cease and we would subsequentiyd depreciation expense for the buildings tiveir estimated useful lives.

We entered into two interest rate swaps aore 119, 2000 and July 20, 2000, to reduce the imgfacthanges in interest rates on a portion of
the floating rate operating lease for our faciti€ee “ltem 7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Distlres About Market Risk” and “Note 6 —
Derivative Instruments” to our Consolidated Finah&8tatements, which is incorporated by referemseih.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “&didation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisénpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51,“Consolidated Financial Statements,” addressesatiolagion by business enterprises of certain végi@iiterest entities where there is a
controlling financial interest in a variable intst@ntity or where the variable interest entitysinet have sufficient equity at risk to finance its
activities without additional subordinated finaaapport from other parties. This interpretatiqplées immediately to variable interest enti
created after January 31, 2003 and applies initsteykar or interim period beginning after June 2803 to variable interest entities in whict
enterprise holds a variable interest that it aeglbvefore February 1, 2003. We expect that thetadopf FIN 46 will require us to include our
San Jose facilities lease and potentially certanestments in our Consolidated Financial Statemeffeestive July 1, 2003. In connection with
our San Jose facilities lease arrangement, ounbalsheet following the July 1, 2003 adoption ¢f Bb will reflect changes to record asset
$126.4 million, liabilities of $122.5 million andbn-controlling interests of $3.9 million. In additi, our post-adoption income statement will
reflect the reclassification of rent
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expense payments from operating expenses to inetpsnse as well as the recognition of depreciagipense, within operating expenses, for
our use of the buildings. We estimate that thernmeatatement impact of consolidating our San Jasiéitfes lease will consist of a charge
against earnings, net of taxes, of $5.6 millionnugee adoption of FIN 46 on July 1, 2003. This deawill reflect the accumulated depreciation
charges that would have been recorded in previetisgs had consolidation of the San Jose facilliEsn required. Additionally, we have not
decided whether we will keep the existing financimgangement or purchase the San Jose facilitibgtivér or not we keep the existing
financing arrangement, we anticipate recording timthl annual operating expenses of $1.7 milliaet,af taxes, for the recognition of
depreciation expense on the buildings. In the emenpurchase the San Jose facilities, we will psp $126.4 million, eliminate financing
payments and settle our two interest rate swapssed to establish a fixed rate of interest for 88iion of our financing arrangement. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, our financingipais related to the San Jose facilities totalefl 8ifllion. At December 31, 2002,
settlement of our two interest rate swaps woulcehasgulted in a loss of $10.9 million.

Our U.S. segment occupies approximately 4B duare feet of commercial office space in thaddrnStates. We occupy 314,000 square
feet of commercial office space in San Jose, Qalifounder the terms of our synthetic lease foramporate headquarters. We own and
occupy approximately 72,000 square feet of commakatfice space in Salt Lake City, Utah for our destic customer support center. We le
and occupy an additional 48,000 square feet of ceroial office space in various domestic locatioorstifie operations of certain U.S.
subsidiaries.

Our International segment leases approxim&®0,000 square feet of commercial office spacEicountries for our international
operations, including the operations of our Soutingén majority-owned subsidiary.

Our Payments segment leases approximatelp@@&quare feet of commercial office space inthied States and the United Kingdom.
In addition, our Payments segment owns approximé&2lacres of land near Omaha, Nebraska, on whidb#®00 square foot facility is under
construction. Upon completion, this facility wilbbise the primary customer service operations cémt@ur Payments segment.

We also have lease obligations under cedtiiar non-cancelable operating leases. Future mimimental payments under all non-
cancelable operating leases, exclusive of the uakichlue guarantee on our general office facdit@ated in San Jose, California, at
December 31, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending Operating

December 31 Leases

2003 $16,41(
2004 17,05¢
2005 9,63(
2006 7,56¢
2007 6,10¢
Thereaftel 19,90¢
Total minimum lease paymer $76,68!
|
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Minimum annual repayments on notes payabdecapital leases at December 31, 2002 are as ®l{owthousands):

Year ending

December 31 Total

2003 $ 4,14¢
2004 2,51
2005 1,47¢
2006 61€
2007 —
Thereaftel 9,19:
$17,94«

|

Marketing Agreement

From time to time and in the ordinary coun§dusiness, we enter into arrangements to purabrdéee and offline promotions. Such
arrangements typically involve minimum purchase ogtments with terms ranging from several monthéue years.

AOL interactive marketing agreeme

In April 2002, we amended our Interactive kting Agreement with AOL Time Warner, Inc., or AOAOL attained certain performance
goals in the contract year ending March 23, 2008,extended the amended agreement for an additfeaal through March 23, 2004. Under
the terms of the amended agreement, we will pay A@lits advertising services on a new user perforoe basis, up to a maximum of
$15 million. We are recognizing these fees as saldsmarketing expense as such services are pthidem time to time, we have also
entered into incremental, discretionary purchasesleertising from AOL. Discretionary purchasesatetl $1.4 million during 2000,
$8.5 million during 2001, and $7.6 million durin@Q@2.

In the event that AOL'’s advertising servidesing the year achieve certain specified perforreagoals, AOL has the right to extend the
term of the amended agreement through March 23.200r financial obligation for this renewal ye#imany, will also be determined on a new
user performance basis and will amount to a maxirofti810.0 million.

Disney marketing agreeme

In February 2000, we entered a four-year etarg agreement with The Walt Disney Company, anBy, to provide us with online and
offline advertising and promotions and develop d@nded version of our online service. Subjeaedain Disney performance obligations,
we were obligated to pay a minimum of $30 milliorOisney over the four-year term of the agreemianfugust 2001, we amended the terms
of the initial agreement and agreed to purchaséamam of $23.0 million in online and offline prortions through September 2004. We also
committed to provide Disney with online advertisimgthe eBay.com website valued at $3.5 milliorroligh December 31, 2002, we have
recognized $16.9 million in sales and marketingesge associated with the amended agreement.

Microsoft marketing and services agreeme

During 2001, we entered into a series of ratink and services agreements with Microsoft tiigate us to purchase online advertising
promotions, software and related services throwgte3nber 2003, totaling $8 million. In addition,dvbsoft has agreed to purchase online
advertising and other services from us totalingrifion over a three-year period ending June 200%ough December 31, 2002, we have
recognized $4.3 million in sales and marketing esgs for advertising services received,
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incurred $3.0 million for Microsoft software prodasaised to support our operations and recognizetifiblion in revenues for advertising
services delivered to Microsoft.

Subsequent Event
Vancouver Lease

In February 2003, we entered into an opegatinblease for approximately 110,000 square feevwimercial office space in Vancouver,
British Columbia for a customer support center. $hblease commences on July 1, 2003 and ends ob&@&0, 2011. Rental commitments
under the sublease total $11.8 million, includipgmating costs and taxes. In addition, we are ssbig approximately 37,000 square feet of
the leased space back to the prime lessee foraslzdly the same lease term. The prime lesseatalreommitments to eBay under the
sublease total $5.2 million, including operatingtscand taxes. The prime lessee has providedewoaable letter of credit for $7.8 million as
security for their obligations under this subleasangement. The commitment under our subleaseelss the prime lessee’s sublease and
letter of credit, are denominated in Canadian dell@he dollar figures above are in U.S. dollacs)werted from Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate as of December 31, 2002.

Integration of Half.com Platforr

In March 2003, we announced our intentiofutly integrate the platform of Half.com, a wholbyvned subsidiary acquired in July 2000,
with the eBay.com platform by the end of 2004. Halfn’s office in Pennsylvania, where 65 of its eaygles work, will be shut down once this
process is complete. Management is in the proddesmalizing an exit and integration plan and exgeo finalize the plan by the end of 20
Based on our preliminary estimates, we anticipattscrelated to employee retention and severarit®tal approximately $3 million. If we
decide to exit Half's leased office facility, thenaunt of lease termination costs, excluding ansids sublease income, and fixed asset write-
offs will total approximately $2 million. Costs egéd to our exit plan will be recorded as chargesur income statement over the exit and
integration period in accordance with SFAS No. IA&counting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disgal Activities.”

PayPa’s Prior Services to Online Gambling Merchants

PayPal completed its exit from the business of ggeinig payments for online gambling merchants imekther 2002. Approximately 6%
PayPal’s revenues in 2002 were derived from th&rass. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal providedudunts and information related to its
services to online gambling merchants in respooseféderal grand jury subpoena issued at the st@fithe U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March 28, 2003, PayPalewed a letter from the U.S. Attorney for the Eastistrict of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’s provision of servicesntime gambling merchants violated 18 U.S.C. § 186the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of funds that are kndavhave been derived from a criminal offense orimtended to be used to promote or support
unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal togxdtal civil forfeiture of the amounts it receivedconnection with such activities as well as
potential criminal liability. The letter offeredcmplete settlement of all possible claims and gésifrom the U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri if Paypal paid the purportechaunt of its earnings derived from online gamblingrchants during the nine-month period
from October 26, 2001 to July 31, 2002, plus irderBayPal acted in the good faith belief tha¢@sduct did not violate 18 U.S.C. § 1960 and
PayPal calculates that the amount of its earniraga bnline gaming activities was less than assentéloe letter. Although the outcome of this
matter is not yet determinable, the monetary anwassociated with this matter are not expectecve a material impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

General

We believe that existing cash, cash equitaland investments, together with any cash gertefedm operations, will be sufficient to fund
our operating activities, capital expenditures atiger
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obligations for the foreseeable future. Howevedyuifing that period or thereafter we are not susfck#n generating sufficient cash flows from
operations or in raising additional capital whequieed in sufficient amounts and on terms acceptébls, our business could suffer.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimags

The following description of critical accoumg policies and estimates should be read in catijom with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and other disclosures included in thisudl Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Deaarith, 2002. Senior management and
the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors regylyf review the appropriateness of the methodokgi®l estimates used in connection with
the application of our critical accounting policies

Provisions for Doubtful Accounts and Authorized Ciligs

Our U.S. and International segments are esghts losses due to uncollectible accounts andtertedsellers. Provisions for these items
represent our estimate of actual losses and creai$tsd on our historical experience, are monitaredthly, and are made at the time the rel
revenue is recognized. The provision for doubtfidants is recorded as a charge to operating egpermle the provision for authorized
credits is recorded as a reduction of revenues fdlleving table illustrates the provision for ddfid accounts and authorized credits as a
percentage of net revenues for 2000, 2001, and @A@Rousands, except percents).

2000 2001 2002
Net revenues from the U.S. and International se¢s $426,38!  $731,17: $1,118,73
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itse 18,237 25,24: 25,45k
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itsesis a % of ne

revenues from the U.S. and International segnm 4.3% 3.5% 2.3%

Historically, our actual losses and creddsénbeen consistent with these provisions. Howewerxpected or significant future changes in
trends could result in a material impact to futsteements of income and cash flows. Based onesuitts for the year ended December 31,
2002, a 25 basis point deviation from our estimatesld have resulted in an increase or decreasgpganse and/or net revenues of
approximately $3 million. The following analysisrdenstrates the potential effect a 25 basis poiviatien from our estimates would have
upon our financial statements and is not intendgutdvide a range of exposure or expected devidtiothousands, except per share data):

Management’s
-25 Basis 2002 +25 Basis
Points Estimate Points
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itse $ 22,93/ $ 25,45¢ $ 28,52¢
Income from operation 356,71¢ 354,19° 351,12
Net income 251,48: 249,89 247,95:
Diluted earnings per sha 0.8¢ 0.8t 0.8t

Provision for Transaction Losse

Our Payments segment is exposed to transdoi$ses due to fraud, as well as non-performahterd parties and customers. We establish
allowances for estimated losses arising from prgingscustomer transactions, such as charge-backm&uthorized credit card use and
merchant related charge-backs due to non-delivegpaods or services, ACH returns, and debit camfdrafts. These allowances represent an
accumulation of the estimated amounts, using amaéel technique, necessary to provide for
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transaction losses incurred as of the reporting,datluding those to which we have not yet beeifiad. The allowances are monitored
monthly and are updated based on actual claimsrdptated by our claims processors. Customersdiigibave up to 180 days to file
transaction disputes. Consequently, the time betwstmating the loss provisions and realizatiothefactual amount is short. The allowances
are based on known facts and circumstances, intectars including our experience with similar eashistorical trends involving loss
payment patterns and the mix of transaction arsltigzes. Additions to the allowance, in the fornpadvisions, are reflected as a general and
administrative expense in our results of operatiarsle write-offs to the allowance are made whdosa is determined to have occurred.
Recoveries, when collected, are recorded as aedrerto the allowance for transaction losses. AxcEmber 31, 2002, the allowance for
transaction losses totaled $10.1 million and wakigted in other current liabilities in our consaelidd balance sheet.

The following table illustrates the provisifor transaction losses as a percentage of toyamhpat volume from PayPal operations for the
post-acquisition period from October 4, 2002 thioigcember 31, 2002 (in thousands, except percents)

2002
Total Payment Volume from the PayPal operati $2,138,09:
Provision for transaction loss 7,83:
Provision for transaction losses as a % of totghpent volume from

PayPal operatior 0.37%

Prior to our October 3, 2002 acquisition af/Pal, no provision for transaction losses wasrgEnbas our third-party banking service
provider assumed all transaction loss exposure fdémcharged to us by this banking service provieiéected the assumption of this loss
exposure and other services rendered. Chargesdaetrvices were reported as a cost of net revenues

The establishment of appropriate allowanoesrénsaction losses is an inherently uncertadcgss, and ultimate losses may vary from the
current estimates. We regularly update our allowastimates as new facts become known and everus that may impact the settlement or
recovery of losses. The allowances are maintaihadevel deemed appropriate by management to atielgjyprovide for losses incurred at the
balance sheet date. Based on our results for thtegoguisition period from October 4, 2002 throlmgtember 31, 2002, a five basis point
deviation from our estimates would have resultednnncrease or decrease in expense of approxinisited million. The following analysis
demonstrates the potential effect a five basistpgriation from our estimates would have uponfmancial statements for the period that we
consolidated PayPal’s operations and is not intehog@rovide a range of exposure or expected dewigin thousands, except per share data):

Managemen’s

-5 Basis 2002 +5 Basis

Points Estimate Points
Provision for transaction loss $ 6,847 $ 7,83 $ 8,98(
Income from operation 355,18’ 354,19° 353,04¢
Net income 250,51¢ 249,89: 249,16¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.8¢ 0.8t 0.8t

Legal Contingencie:

In connection with certain pending litigatiand other claims, we have estimated the rangeotigple loss and provided for such losses
through charges to our income statement. Thesmatsts have been based on our assessment of thaffactircumstances at each balance
sheet date and are subject to change based upoimfoemation and future events.
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From time to time, we are involved in dismutieat arise in the ordinary course of business yvaamdo not expect this trend to change in the
future. We are currently involved in certain legabceedings as discussed in “Item 3: Legal Proogsdiand “Note 11 — Commitments and
Contingencies — Litigation” to our Consolidated &itial Statements, which is incorporated by refegdrerein. We believe that we have
meritorious defenses to the claims against usywandill defend ourselves vigorously. However, evfesuccessful, our defense against certain
actions will be costly and could divert our managetis time. If the plaintiffs were to prevail onrtan claims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modifyluginess practices or even be prohibited from cotimaiy a significant part of our
U.S. business. Any such results could materiallyrhaur business and could result in a material estvimpact on the financial position, res
of operations or cash flows of each of our thregremts.

Accounting for Income Taxe:

We are required to recognize a provisionifioome taxes based upon the taxable income andtanypdifferences for each of the tax
jurisdictions in which we operate. This procesaurggs a calculation of taxes payable under cutyesrtbicted tax laws around the world anc
analysis of temporary differences between the layaktax bases of our assets and liabilities, inotugarious accruals, allowances,
depreciation and amortization. The tax effect esthtemporary differences and the estimated taafidvérom our tax net operating losses are
reported as deferred tax assets and liabilitiegiinconsolidated balance sheet. We also asseikdlii@ood that our net deferred tax assets will
be realized from future taxable income. To the mixtee believe that it is more likely than not teatme portion of or all of the deferred tax a
will not be realized, we establish a valuationwbmce. To the extent we establish a valuation alme or change the allowance in a perioc
reflect the change with a corresponding increaseorease in our tax provision in our income statgimWhere the change in the valuation
allowance relates to the deduction for employeekstption exercises, the change is reflected asditdo additional paid-in-capital. As
employee stock option exercises are highly depengmm the performance of our stock price, it is@xely difficult to predict the amount of
deductions that will be generated from future apaercises and, therefore, it is difficult fortasascertain the amount of deferred tax assets
related to employee stock option exercises thatIpeanealized in future periods. We have consequ@ndlvided a valuation allowance equal to
100% of our deferred tax assets related to emplstask option exercises. The deferred tax assetfreevaluation allowance of
$145.2 million, totaled $100.2 million at Decemi3dr, 2002. The following table illustrates the psion for income taxes as a percentage of
income before income taxes for 2000, 2001, and ZibOthousands, except percents):

2000 2001 2002

Income before income tax $81,01¢ $170,45° $395,83°
Provision for income taxe 32,72¢ 80,00¢ 145,94¢
Provision for income taxes as a % of income befoceme taxe: 40% 47% 37%

Historically, these provisions have adequapebvided for our actual income tax liabilitiesoWever, unexpected or significant future
changes in trends could result in a material impaétiture statements of income and cash flowseB8ams our results for the year ended
December 31, 2002, a opefrcentage point change in our provision for incdaxes as a percentage of income before taxes viawiel resulte
in an increase or decrease in expense of approedyr®4.0 million. The following analysis demonsesthe potential effect such a one-
percentage point deviation change would have upofiimancial statements
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and is not intended to provide a range of exposuexpected deviation (in thousands, except peestiata):

Managemen’s

2002
-1% Estimate +1%
Provision for income taxe $142,10" $145,94¢ $150,02:
Income before income tax 395,83° 395,83° 395,83"
Net income 253,73 249,89 245,81!
Diluted earnings per sha 0.87 0.8t 0.84

Third-party Advertising Revenues

Our third-party advertising revenues arewaztiprincipally from the sale of online banner apdnsorship advertisements for cash and
through barter arrangements. To date, the durafieur banner and sponsorship advertising contteagsranged from one week to three years,
but is generally one week to three months. Adviedisevenues on both banner and sponsorship céseiee recognized as “impressions” (i.e.,
the number of times that an advertisement appagrades viewed by users of our websites) are deliver ratably over the term of the
agreement where such agreements provide for minimonthly or quarterly advertising commitments orendhsuch commitments are fixed
throughout the term. Barter transactions are vabasgd on amounts realized in similar cash traisecoccurring within six months prior to
the date of the barter transaction. To the extaattgignificant delivery obligations remain at #rel of a period or collection of the resulting
account receivable is not considered probable hes® are deferred until the obligation is satisbethe uncertainty is resolved. These amc
are included in deferred revenue in our balancetsfidird-party advertising net revenues, includagter transactions, totaled 3%, 11% and
5% of our consolidated net revenues for the yeade@ December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectwelywere primarily from our
U.S. segment. Revenue from barter arrangementsdd$2.5 million in 2000, $10.4 million in 2001,c$10.1 million in 2002.

Third-party advertising revenues may be affédy the financial condition of our customers agdhe success of online promotions in
general. Recently, the industry pricing of onlinlv@rtisements has deteriorated. Our third-partyeetthing revenue is dependent in significant
part on the performance of AOL Time Warner, Inc.A®L, over which we do not have control. Reductiorthird-party advertising, whether
due to softening of the demand for online advextjsn general or particular problems facing partiith whom we have contractual
arrangements, would adversely affect our operasglts. Unlike our transaction revenues, thirdypadvertising revenues are derived from a
highly concentrated customer base. During the yeded December 31, 2000 and 2001, third-partyréidivey revenues were all attributable
to approximately 20 customers each year. During/é@e ended December 31, 2002, third-party advegtievenues were all derived from
approximately 30 customers. We continue to viewhausginess as primarily transaction driven and weeekthird-party advertising revenues in
future periods to decrease as a percentage oftetakvenues, and in absolute dollars. Additignalur advertising sales representative
agreement with AOL has not been extended or renamndds scheduled to terminate on March 31, 20@B, AOL to continue its electronic
delivery of our online advertisements for a specifivind-down period. After March 31, 2003, our dhparty advertising revenues will be
dependent on the efforts of our existing interadés staff.

End-to-End Services Revenues

Our end-teend services revenues are derived principally fecomtractual arrangements with third parties thavjgle transaction services
eBay users. To date, the duration of our end-tosemdices contracts has ranged from one to thraesyEnd-to-end services revenues are
recognized as the contracted services are deliteredd-users. To the extent that significant ail@ns remain at the end of a period or
collection of the resulting receivable is not calesed probable, revenues are deferred until
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the obligation is satisfied or the uncertaintydsalved. End-to-end services net revenues werel#®@nd 2% of our consolidated net revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 an#, 28€pectively and were primarily from our U.Sgreent.

Similar to our third-party advertising revesyour end-to-end services revenues may be alfegtéhe financial condition of the parties
with whom we have these relationships and by tleeesss of online services and promotions in genadaditionally, end-to-end services
revenues are also concentrated among a small cesstmase. End-to-end services revenues were ddriwedapproximately 10 customers in
2000 and from approximately 20 customers in eac06fL. and 2002. We continue to view our businegsiagrily transaction driven and
expect end-to-end services revenues in future getim decrease as a percentage of total net revamaein absolute dollars.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Investmer

Our long-lived assets at December 31, 208%ewperty and equipment of $218.0 million and oth&angible assets of $279.5 million. We
evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenewvents or changes in circumstances indicate teatdhrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Actimg for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAdsets.” An asset is considered
impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the futuee cash flow the asset is expected to generateich asset is considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the airmuwhich the carrying amount of the asset exséisdair market value. We assess the
recoverability of our long-lived and intangible etsby determining whether the unamortized balanaase recovered through undiscounted
future net cash flows of the related assets. Thaeuatnof impairment, if any, is measured based afepted discounted future net cash flows
using a discount rate reflecting our average cbespital.

Our goodwill at December 31, 2002 totaledi$billion. We evaluate goodwill, at a minimum, am annual basis and whenever events and
changes in circumstances suggest that the carayiraunt may not be recoverable in accordance withSSRo. 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Impairment of goodwill is tedt&t the reporting unit level by comparing the mpg unit’s carrying amount, including
goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unithe fair values of the reporting units are estidatsing a combination of the income or
discounted cash flows approach and the market appravhich utilizes comparable companies’ dat¢hdfcarrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is considemgaired and a second step is performed to medlseir@mount of impairment loss, if any.

To date, we have recorded no impairment operty and equipment, goodwill, or intangible asskibwever, if our estimates or the related
assumptions change in the future, we may be redjtireecord impairment charges in any or all of thuee segments to reduce the carrying
amount of these assets.

The fair value of long-term investments agpehdent on the performance of the companies atdiinents in which we have invested, as
well as the volatility inherent in external markéis these investments. In assessing potential immgat, we consider these factors as well as
the forecasted financial performance of the comgmini which we invest. If forecasted performaneele are not met or if other events occur,
we may have to record additional impairment changesr U.S. and International segments to redbeecirrying amount of these assets.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, we rezedr$3.8 million of impairment losses relatinghe tmpairment in value of certain equ
investments. At December 31, 2002, the total vafusur equity investments in unconsolidated comgamias $44.2 million, with $4.9 million
in our U.S segment, $37.5 million in our Internadbsegment, and none in our Payments segment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Dis@d#ctivities

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statementrrieial Accounting Standards No. 146 or SFAS Né, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which nullifie€merging
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Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 94-3, “LigbRecognition for Certain Employee Terminationngéits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Regturing).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a lialyilior a cost associated with an exit or
disposal activity be recognized when the liabiltyncurred and states that an entity’s commitntern exit plan, by itself, does not create a
present obligation that meets the definition akadility. SFAS No. 146 also establishes that failue is the objective for initial measurement of
the liability. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 aféeetive for exit or disposal activities initiatedter December 31, 2002. We do not expect the
adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material impgcin our financial position, cash flows or resolt®perations.

Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guatens

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45, démtor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements3oarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 requ guarantor to recognize a liability for obfigas it has undertaken in relation to the
issuance of a guarantee. It requires that theliiabie recorded at fair value on the date thatgharantee is issued. It also requires a guarantor
to provide additional disclosures regarding guaesitincluding the nature of the guarantee, thaqman potential amount of future payments
under the guarantee, the carrying amount of thuditig if any, for the guarantor’s obligations wrdthe guarantee, and the nature and extent of
any recourse provisions or available collateral hauld enable the guarantor to recover the amaopaits under the guarantee. The disclosure
requirements under FIN 45 are effective for therimt and annual periods ending after December @32 2The recognition and measurement
provisions under FIN 45 are effective for guarastissued or modified after December 31, 2002. Weat@xpect the adoption of FIN 45 to
have a material impact upon our financial positicash flows or results of operations. See “Note-1Commitments and Contingencigs’our
Consolidated Financial Statements, which is incrafsal by reference herein.

Accounting for Stock Based Compensati

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS N8, 14ccounting for Stock Based Compensation — Tit#oms and Disclosure.” SFAS 148
provides two additional transition methods for #esi that voluntarily adopt the fair value methddexording expenses when accounting for
stock based compensation. Further, the statemeuires disclosure of comparable information forcalinpanies regardless of whether, when,
or how an entity adopts the preferable, fair vddased method of accounting. These disclosuresoaveequired for interim periods in addition
to the traditional annual disclosure. The amendmtnSFAS No. 123, which provides for additionahsition methods, are effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2002. Thdalisce provisions are effective for fiscal yeardiag after December 15, 2002 and have
been incorporated into the notes to the accompgrfinancial statements. We have chosen not to vatiiy adopt the fair value method of
accounting for employee stock option grants attihig.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitie

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “€tidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisénpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51,“Consolidated Financial Statements,” addressesatiolagion by business enterprises of certain végiaiterest entities where there is a
controlling financial interest in a variable intst@ntity or where the variable interest entitysinet have sufficient equity at risk to finance its
activities without additional subordinated finan@apport from other parties. This interpretati@plées immediately to variable interest enti
created after January 31, 2003 and applies initsteykar or interim period beginning after June 2803 to variable interest entities in whict
enterprise holds a variable interest that it aeglbvefore February 1, 2003. We expect that thetaopf FIN 46 will require us to include our
San Jose facilities lease arrangement and potigntedtain investments in our Consolidated FinanStatements effective July 1, 2003. In
connection with our San Jose facilities lease garent, our balance sheet following the July 1 328foption of FIN 46 will reflect changes
record assets of $126.4 million, liabilities of $12 million and non-controlling
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interests of $3.9 million. In addition, our postsation income statement will reflect the reclassifion of rent expense payments from
operating expenses to interest expense as wélkagtognition of depreciation expense, within afirg expenses, for our use of the buildil
We estimate that the income statement impact odaatating our San Jose facilities lease will cehef a charge against earnings, net of te

of $5.6 million upon the adoption of FIN 46 on Jaly2003. This charge will reflect the accumuladegreciation charges that would have been
recorded in previous periods had consolidatiohef$an Jose facilities been required. Additionally,have not decided whether we will keep
the existing financing arrangement or purchasestre Jose facilities. Whether or not we keep thstiexg financing arrangement, we anticipate
recording additional annual operating expensesldf fillion, net of taxes, to for the recognitiohdepreciation expense on the buildings. In
the event we purchase the San Jose facilities, iWalao pay $126.4 million, eliminate financingywaents and settle our two interest rate
swaps we used to establish a fixed rate of intdoest95 million of our financing arrangement. Dhgithe year ended December 31, 2002, our
financing payments related to the San Jose faslitaled $7.9 million. At December 31, 2002 lsetent of our two interest rate swaps would
have resulted in a loss of $10.9 million.
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Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Operationsand Financial Condition

The risks and uncertainties described below aretim@only ones facing eBay. Additional risks andastainties not presently known to us
or that we currently deem immaterial also may innair business operations. If any of the followiigks or such other risks actually occur,
our business could be harmed.

Our operating results may fluctuate.

Our operating results have varied on a qdgrbasis during our operating history. Our opergtiesults may fluctuate significantly as a
result of a variety of factors, many of which atgside our control. Factors that may affect ourrtprly operating results include the followir

« our ability to retain an active user base, to attnew users who list items for sale, who purchieses through our service or who use
payment services and to maintain customer satisfg(

« our ability to keep our websites operational a¢@sbnable cost;

« the amount and timing of operating costs and chpijpenditures relating to the maintenance andrmsipa of our businesses, operati
and infrastructure

« foreign, federal, state or local government regoiatincluding investigations prompted by itemsd sold or paid for by our use

« our ability to comply with the requirements of ¢iets whose services are required for our operatisunsh as the credit card associations;
« the success of our geographical and product expay

« the introduction of new sites, services and praglbgtus or our competitors;

« volume, size, timing and completion rate of tratisas on our websites;

» consumer confidence in the safety and securityasfsactions on our website

« our ability to upgrade and develop our systemsasgifucture and customer service capabilities tomenodate growth at a reasonable
cost;

* our ability to develop product enhancements ataeaisle cost;

« our ability to integrate successfully and cost eifeely manage our acquisitions, including the asijon of PayPal
« our ability to manage fraud loss and credit carargh back rates and the payment funding mix at &ayP

« the cost and demand for advertising on our webhsites

« technical difficulties or service interruptions olving our websites or services provided to oursigy third parties (such as phe
hosting);

« our ability to attract new personnel in a timelyaifective manner;

« our ability to retain key employees in our onlinesimesses, including PayP

« our ability to expand our product offerings invalgifixec-price trading successfull
« the costs and results of litigation that involves u

« the results of regulatory decisions that affect

« the timing, cost and availability of advertisingtraditional media and on other websites and ordergices
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« the timing of payments to us and of marketing atieioexpenses under existing and future contracts;
« the success of our brand building and marketingpeagms;
« the continued financial strength of our commerpeaitners and technology supplie
« the level of use of the Internet and online semsjice

* increasing consumer acceptance of the Internebtra online services for commerce and, in paricubr the trading of products su
as those listed on our websit

* general economic conditions and those economicitionsl specific to the Internet an-commerce industries; ai

« geopolitical events such as war, threat of waeowotist actions.

Our limited operating history and the incexzhgariety of services offered on our websites makdifficult for us to forecast the level or
source of our revenues or earnings accurately. &lieve that period-tgeriod comparisons of our operating results maybeaneaningful, an
you should not rely upon them as an indicationutdife performance. We do not have backlog, andtantially all of our net revenues es
guarter come from transactions involving salesaympents during that quarter. Due to the inherdfficdity in forecasting revenues it is also
difficult to forecast income statement expensea psrcentage of net revenues. Quarterly and ammahe statement expenses as a percentag
of net revenues may be significantly different frbistorical or projected rates. Our operating rssinl one or more future quarters may fall
below the expectations of securities analysts anestors. In that event, the trading price of ammmon stock would almost certainly decline.

We may not maintain our level of profitability.
We believe that our continued profitabilityhgstorical levels will depend in large part orr ability to do the following:

» maintain sufficient transaction volume to attragyérs and seller:

* manage the costs of our business, including this @ssociated with maintaining and developing ocelpsites, customer support, fraud
and chargebacks and international and product ey

« increase the awareness of our brands; and
« provide our customers with superior community aadihg experience:

We are investing heavily in marketing andmpodion, customer support, further development afwebsites, technology and operating
infrastructure development. The costs of thesestments are expected to remain significant intdfthgre. In addition, many of our
acquisitions require continuing investments in ¢éhaseas and we have significant ongoing contractualmitments in some of these areas. .
result, we may be unable to adjust our spendiniglisapnough to compensate for any unexpected revshaortfall, which may harm our
profitability. The existence of several larger andre established companies that are enabling oséites as well as other companies, some of
whom do not charge for transactions on their siteds others who are facilitating trading throughie@upricing formats (e.g., fixed-price,
reverse auction, group buying) may limit our apitiv raise user fees in response to declines ifitabdity. In addition, we are spending in
advance of anticipated growth, which may also haamprofitability. In view of the rapidly evolvingature of our business and our limited
operating history, we believe that period-to-perodnhparisons of our operating results are not rseciéyg meaningful. You should not rely
upon our historical results as indications of auufe performance.

Our integration of PayPal may be difficull

While eBay has acquired smaller companiglémpast, the acquisition of PayPal representabth largest acquisition by eBay to date.
We expect that the process of integrating Paymalsness into
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the eBay platform, and pursuing opportunities fayfPal’'s growth outside of the eBay platform, wil kelatively difficult and will require
significant attention from management. This mayedivnanagement’s attention from its focus on eBayjiscipal business for an extended
period of time. In addition, PayPal will continuedperate as an independent wholly owned subsidiaeday. Because PayPal will be
relatively independent, efficient cooperation besweBay and PayPal following the merger will bec@bfor a successful integration of
PayPal's business into the eBay platform. PayRa&smerger Chief Executive Officer left the compatyhe time the merger was
consummated and the pre-merger Chief Technicat@ffChief Operating Officer and Chief Financiafi€dr left the company shortly
thereafter. Accordingly, PayPal's new Chief ExegaitDfficer and certain other members of its managgrhave only limited experience with
PayPal. There can be no assurance that PayRadiness will be integrated into the eBay platfan a timely and efficient manner or that an
the anticipated benefits of the merger will be izal. If these benefits are not realized, our lessrand operating results will be harmed.

Our business is adversely affected by anything tbatises our users to spend less time on their cot@rsy including national events an
seasonal factors

Anything that diverts our users from theistmmary level of usage of our websites could adhemffect our business. We would therefore
be adversely affected by geopolitical events suwchvar, the threat of war or terrorist activity. 8arly, our results of operations historically
have been seasonal in nature because many of exsr nesluce their activities on our websites dutirggholidays, such as during the
Thanksgiving (in the U.S.) and Christmas periods} with the onset of good weather during the sunmmamths. We have historically
experienced our strongest quarters of online gramthur first and fourth fiscal quarters. PayPa Bhown similar seasonality, except that its
strongest quarter of online growth has historichi#n the fourth fiscal quarter.

There are many risks associated with our internatal operations.

Our international expansion has been rapitives have only limited experience in many of tharddes in which we now do business. Our
international business, especially in Germany Uti€, Canada and Korea, has also become criticalitoevenues and profits. Expansion into
international markets requires management attemtahresources. We have limited experience initdogl our service to conform to local
cultures, standards and policies. In many countwescompete with local companies who understaaddtal market better than we do. We
may not be successful in expanding into particinrnational markets or in generating revenuesh fforeign operations. For example, in 2!
we withdrew from the Japanese market. Even if veesaccessful, the costs of operating new sitee)grected to exceed our net revenues fi
least 12 months in most countries. As we contimuexpand internationally, we are subject to riskdaing business internationally, including
the following:

* regulatory requirements, including regulation oftianeering, banking, and money transmitting, thay/ limit or prevent the offering of
our services in some jurisdictions, may prevenberd@able agreements between sellers and buyerspmlipit certain categories of
goods, may require special licensure, or may lihettransfer of information between our foreignsdiaries and ourselve

* legal uncertainty regarding liability for the listjs of our users, including less Interfri¢ndly legal systems, unique local laws and lat
clear precedent or applicable la

« different employee/employer relationships and tkistence of worke’ councils and labor union

« difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opgoas;

« longer payment cycles, different accounting pragtiand greater problems in collecting accountsvabke;
* potentially adverse tax consequences, includingl laxation of our fees or of transactions on oabsites
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« higher telecommunications and Internet service idencosts;
« strong local competitors;
« more stringent consumer and data protection |.
« cultural ambivalence to, or non-acceptance of hentrading;
« seasonal reductions in business actiy
« expenses associated with localizing our produntduding offering customers the ability to translgsiness in the local currenc
« laws and business practices that favor local coopgt
« profit repatriation restrictions, foreign curreneychange restrictions and exchange rate fluctusit
 changes in a specific coun’s or regior's political or economic conditions; a
« differing intellectual property laws.

Some of these factors may cause our intenmaiticosts to exceed our domestic costs of doisgnbes. To the extent we expand our
international operations and have additional pagiof our international revenues denominated iaifpr currencies, we also could become
subject to increased difficulties in collecting aunts receivable and risks relating to foreign ency exchange rate fluctuations.

We intend to expand PayPal’s services inteynally. Both we and PayPal have limited expereendth the payments business outside of
the U.S. In addition to all of the factors listdabae, we expect that successful international esiparof PayPal’s business will require
successful integration with local payment provid@msluding banks, credit and debit card assoamsti@lectronic fund transfer systems and
others) and in some countries may require a closeercial relationship with a local bank. We do kebw if these or other factors may
prevent, delay or limit PayPal's expansion or rediis profitability. Any limitation on our abilityo expand PayPal internationally could harm
our business.

Our business may be subject to sales and othergaxe

We do not collect sales or other similar tasa goods or services sold by users through ouices. One or more states or any foreign
country may seek to impose value-added taxes, dr,\WAsales or use tax collection or record-keepibligations on companies such as ours
that engage in or facilitate online commerce. Sagles could be imposed if, for example, we were deemed to be an auctioneer or the agent
of our sellers. Several proposals have been matihe atate and local level that would impose addél taxes on the sale of goods and services
through the Internet. These proposals, if adoptedld substantially impair the growth of e-commeianed could diminish our opportunity to
derive financial benefit from our activities. In9® the U.S. federal government enacted legislgirohibiting states or other local authorities
from imposing new taxes on Internet commerce fper@od of three years, which has been extendedgiwrdlovember 1, 2003. This
moratorium does not prohibit states or the InteR@lenue Service from collecting taxes on our inepifmany, or from collecting taxes that are
due under existing tax rules. New regulations anEuropean Union relating to the collection of VA digital services will require us to
collect and remit VAT on our own fees beginninglily 2003. We intend to work with relevant tax awtties to clarify our obligations under
these regulations and to change our software tmip#re billing of these taxes. We expect substéhimigoing costs associated with complying
with the VAT rules throughout Europe and the insezhcost to our users may reduce their activitpuonwebsites. Both of these effects could
adversely affect our business. A successful asseloly one or more states or any foreign countryweashould collect sales or other taxes on
the exchange of merchandise on our system would bar business.
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PayPal is subject to unique risks that could harmrdusiness

PayPal faces significant risks of loss due to framd disputes between senders and recipients.yiP&las unable to deal effectively w
fraudulent transactions, PayF's losses from fraud would increase, and its bussngould be harmed.

PayPal faces significant risks of loss dufrdad and disputes between senders and recipianbsding:
« unauthorized use of credit card and bank accodatrivation and identity theft;

» merchant fraud and other disputes over the qualioods and service

« potential breaches of system security;

« potential employee fraud; and

« use of PayP’s system by customers to make or accept paymeilleigal or improper purpose

For the years ended December 31, 2001, andrbleer 31, 2002, PayPal’s provision for transadtisses totaled $14.8 million and
$28.8 million, respectively, representing 0.42% 8rtll% of PayPal’s total payment volume. In Jan@®@3 PayPal increased the withdrawal
limit for unverified international users to $500rmeonth in certain countries. This increase maultés higher transaction losses.

PayPal incurs chargebacks and other losses fronthaet fraud, payment disputes and insufficient suiaghd its liability from these iten
could have a material adverse effect on its busiaesl result in PayPal losing the right to acceqgdit cards for payment. If PayPal is
prohibited from accepting credit cards for paymetstability to compete could be impaired, and business would suffe

PayPal incurs substantial losses from meitcinand, including claims from customers that mertls have not performed, that their goods
or services do not match the merchamtéscription or that the customer did not autleotfie purchase. PayPal also incurs losses fromesg
transmissions and from customers who have closekl decounts or have insufficient funds in thematisfy payments. PayPal’s liability for
such items could have a material adverse effedsdiusiness, and if they become excessive, cagldlrin PayPal losing the right to accept
credit cards for payment. If PayPal were unablacitept credit cards, the velocity of trade on eBayld decrease, in which case our business
would suffer. PayPal has been assessed subsfamgin the past, and excessive chargebacks nisgyiarthe future. PayPal has taken
measures to detect and reduce the risk of fraudhlese measures may not be effective. If thesesuanes do not succeed, our business will
suffer.

Unauthorized use of credit cards and bank accooatdd expose PayPal to substantial losses. If PaifPanable to detect and prevent
unauthorized use of cards and bank accounts, giless would suffer.

The highly automated nature of, and liquidiffered by, PayPal’'s payment product makes PagRaltractive target for fraud. In
configuring its product, PayPal faces an inhereattd-off between customer convenience and seclatntity thieves and those committing
fraud using stolen credit card or bank account remsitoften in bulk and in conjunction with autontateechanisms of online communication,
potentially can steal large amounts of money frarsifiesses such as PayPal's. PayPal believes tleatbkef PayPal’s current and former
competitors in the electronic payments business lgame out of business or significantly restridtesir businesses largely due to losses from
this type of fraud. PayPal expects that technidaligwledgeable criminals will continue to attemptircumvent PayPal's antiaud systems.
they are successful, our business will be harmed.
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PayPa’s processes to reduce fraud losses depend inguaits ability to restrict the withdrawal of custenfunds while it investigates
suspicious transactions. PayPal has been and doalsued by plaintiffs alleging that PayPal’s restion and investigation processes violate
federal and state law on consumer protection anfdinbusiness practice, and are inconsistent widtylPa’s user agreement. If PayPal is
unable to defend itself successfully, it coulddguired to restructure its anti-fraud processesviys that would harm its business, and to pay
substantial damages.

As part of PayPal’s program to reduce fraxgsés, it may temporarily restrict the ability astomers to withdraw their funds if those funds
or their account activity are identified by PayBalhti-fraud models as suspicious. PayPal is sutfjeseveral purported class action lawsuits
challenging its procedures and disclosures witheeisto suspicious accounts (See “Item 3: Legaté®dings”), and if PayPal's processes are
found to violate federal or state law on consumetgetion and unfair business practices, it coddbbject to an enforcement action or fine
PayPal loses this litigation or is subject to afoerement action, it could be required to restrresits anti-fraud processes in ways that would
harm its business, and to pay substantial damé&yes if PayPal is able to defend itself succesgftifie litigation or enforcement action could
cause damage to its reputation, could consumeantiztamounts of its management’s time and attenind could require PayPal to change
its customer service and operations in ways thaldcimcrease its costs and decrease the effectgenfdts anti-fraud program.

Any failure to provide effective customer supponld result in the loss of customers and inabiiityattract new customers, which would he
PayPa’s business.

Because it is providing a financial servioel @perating in a more regulated environment, Payidlike eBay, must provide telephone as
well as email customer service, and must resolvaicecustomer contacts within shorter time franiesyPal has received negative publicity
with respect to its customer service and is thgestilof purported class action lawsuits allegimgpag other things, failure to resolve promptly
certain account restrictions. If PayPal is unablprbvide quality customer support operations @ost-effective manner, its users may have
negative experiences, PayPal may receive additimagdtive publicity and its ability to attract newstomers may be damaged. Current and
future revenues could suffer, or its operating rimsrgnay decrease. In addition, negative publiditgua or experiences with PayPal’s customer
support could cause eBay'’s reputation to suffeffact consumer confidence in eBay as a whole.

Security and privacy breaches in PayPal’s electtdransactions may expose PayPal to additionaliligband result in the loss of customers,
either of which events could harm its business.

Any inability on PayPal’s part to protect thecurity and privacy of its electronic transacsieould have a material adverse effect on its
profitability. A security or privacy breach could:

 expose PayPal to additional liability;
« increase PayPal’s expenses relating to resolufitimese breaches; and

« deter customers from using Pay's product

PayPal’s data security measures may nottefédg counter evolving security risks or address security and privacy concerns of existing
and potential customers. Any failures in PayPa&usity and privacy measures could have a matedetrse effect on our business.

PayPal could incur substantial losses from empldyaed and, as a result, its business would su

The large volume of payments that PayPal learfdr its customers makes it vulnerable to emgdofyaud or other internal security
breaches. PayPal is required to reimburse custdimeasny funds stolen as a result of such breadhescannot assure you that PayPal's
internal security systems will prevent materiakles from employee fraud.
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PayPa’s payment system might be used for illegal or mppr purposes, which could expose it to additidiadility and harm its business.

Despite measures PayPal has taken to detégiravent identity theft, unauthorized uses oflitreards and similar misconduct, its payment
system remains susceptible to potentially illegahwproper uses. These may include illegal onliampling, fraudulent sales of goods or
services, illicit sales of prescription medicatiamscontrolled substances, software and otherl@dtlal property piracy, money laundering,
bank fraud, child pornography trafficking, prohdztsales of alcoholic beverages and tobacco predinct online securities fraud. Despite
measures PayPal has taken to detect and lessasktioé this kind of conduct, these measures maysnooceed. The processing of these
payments could expose PayPal to liability. In additfuture regulations under the USA PATRIOT Aaiyrequire PayPal to revise the
procedures it takes to verify the identity of cusérs and to monitor more closely international deantions. PayPal’s business could suffer if
customers use its system for illegal or impropeppses, or if usage of its system is reduced becafliisicreased verification requirements.

PayPa’s discontinuance of its processing of payment®fdine gambling merchants will reduce its reveaud profits; its past processing of
these accounts could subject it to liability.

PayPal completed its exit from the business of ggeinig payments for online gambling merchants imekther 2002. Approximately 6%
PayPal's revenues in 2002 were derived from thgrass. The loss of these revenues and relateidsprdff adversely affect PayPalfinancia
results. As a result of having been in this businBsyPal has become subject to two inquirieseelt payments made through its service to
online gambling merchants. In August 2002, PayPathed agreement with the Attorney General of thee®f New York that it would cease
processing payments from its New York members th snerchants and pay the State of New York $200i0@@nalties and disgorged profits
and to cover the cost of investigation. Beginnimguly 2002, PayPal provided documents and infdonatlated to its services to online
gambling merchants in response to a federal gnanydsjubpoena issued at the request of the U.Srryofor the Eastern District of Missouri.
On March 28, 2003, PayPal received a letter froenUts. Attorney for the Eastern District of Missaadicating its contention that PayPal’s
provision of services to online gambling merchamtdated 18 U.S.C. § 1960 of the USA PATRIOT Actieh prohibits the transmission of
funds that are known to have been derived fromraical offense or are intended to be used to premotsupport unlawful activity, thereby
subjecting PayPal to potential civil forfeituretbe amounts it received in connection with suclviies as well as potential criminal liability.
The letter offered a complete settlement of allsgle claims and charges from the U.S. Attorneytlier Eastern District of Missouri if Paypal
paid the purported amount of its earnings derivethfonline gambling merchants during the nine-mgmtiod from October 26, 2001 to
July 31, 2002, plus interest. PayPal acted in tredaith belief that its conduct did not violate U.S.C. § 1960 and PayPal calculates that the
amount of its earnings from online gaming actigtieas less than asserted in the letter. Shouldnéstigation lead to a civil or criminal
charge against PayPal, we would be harmed by nvegatiblicity, the cost of litigation and the diviers of management time, even if PayPal
ultimately prevails. Any finding of a civil or crimal violation by PayPal, or potentially any satilent, could also endanger PayPal’s ability to
obtain, maintain or renew money transmitter licerisgurisdictions where it requires such licensesperate, which would materially harm
business.

Changes to card association rules or practices dmdgatively affect PayPal'service and, if it does not comply with the rutesild result in i
termination of PayPal’s ability to accept creditrda. If PayPal is unable to accept credit cardsr, business would suffer.

Because PayPal is not a bank, it cannot lgelorand directly access the Visa and MasterCaditccard associations or the Automated
Clearing House, or ACH, payment network. As a refdyPal must rely on banks and their serviceigess to process its transactions. Pa
must comply with the operating rules of the creditd associations and the National Automated Clgafiouse Association, or NACHA, as
they apply to merchants. The associations’ memaek®set these rules, and the associations intéhgreules. Some of those member banks
compete with PayPal. Visa, MasterCard,
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American Express or Discover could adopt new opggatiles or interpretations of existing rules whiRayPal or its processors might find
difficult or even impossible to comply with, in wihi case PayPal could lose its ability to give custis the option of using credit cards to fund
their payments. If PayPal were unable to accepmlitccards, its business would be seriously damalgeaddition, if PayPal were unable to
accept credit cards, the velocity of trade on eBayld decrease and our business would suffer.

MasterCard has announced that a clarificadfats rules, effective May 1, 2002, requires eaocmmercial customer that regularly uses
PayPal to accept payment for goods or servicesnter into a contract directly with the bank thaiqesses MasterCard transactions for PayPall
and to agree to observe MasterCard rules. PayRamgplying with this rule through changes to itetJ8greement, its internal processes, its
contractual relationship with its credit card premer, and by obtaining additional information abitaitarger customers. As a result, PayPal has
changed the interrelationship among itself, itgdarcustomers and its credit card processing bamlays that will increase PayPal’s costs and
may reduce the attractiveness of its service.

In 2001, Visa indicated that some of PayPal&ctices violated its operating rules, and PayRplemented changes in response. In January
2002, PayPal received correspondence throughdtitarard processor that three issues remainedolvezl. These issues relate to PayPal’s
international membership fees, its fees for intdomal credit card funded payments, and its proéasebtaining authorization to charge a
customer’s Visa account if the customer’s ACH tfanf&ils. In connection with these issues, Payd@atbcessor was assessed fines totaling
$130,000 by Visa in 2002, $110,000 of which Paypibcessor has passed through to PayPal. Pay®mhpemented changes to its practi
to resolve these issues, and believes these chhagesesolved all outstanding issues that resuitedmpliance fines from Visa. However,
these changes could make the PayPal service tegstiae to its customers.

PayPa’s status under state, federal and internationaéficial services regulation is unclear. Violatiohas compliance with present or future
regulation could be costly, expose PayPal to sutiithliability, force PayPal to change its busisgsractices or force PayPal to cease offel
its current product.

PayPal operates in an industry subject teguowent regulation. PayPal currently is subjectime states’ money transmitter regulations, to
federal regulations in its role as transfer agewtiavestment adviser to the PayPal Money Markeidi-and to federal electronic fund transfer
and money laundering regulations. In the futuregFR&might be subjected to:

« state or federal banking regulations;

« additional state money transmitter regulations and federal monegdating regulations

« international banking or financial services regolas or laws governing other regulated industrigs;

« U.S. and international regulation of Internet tiat®ns.

If PayPal is found to be in violation of acyrrent or future regulations, PayPal could be:

* exposed to financial liability, including substaitiines which could be imposed on a per transadtasis and disgorgement of its prof
« forced to change its business practices; or

« forced to cease doing business altogether or Wwétrésidents of one or more states or countries.

Any change to PayPal's business practicestiaétes the service less attractive to customepsadribits its use by residents of a particular
jurisdiction could decrease the velocity of tradee®ay, in which case our business would su
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If PayPal were found to be subject to or in viadatiof any laws or regulations governing bankingatild be subject to liability and forced
change its business practices.

PayPal believes that the licensing or apdreguirements of the Office of the Comptrollertbé Currency, the Federal Reserve Board and
other federal or state agencies that regulate béakdk holding companies or other types of prowdsgrelectronic commerce services do not
apply to PayPal, except for certain money trangmiitenses mentioned below. However, one or mates may conclude that, under its or
their statutes, PayPal is engaged in an unautlibbaeking business. PayPal received written comeations from regulatory authorities in
New York, most recently in February 2002, and Lizuia expressing the view that its service as infaty operated constituted .
unauthorized banking business, and from authoiiti€zalifornia and Idaho in 2001 that its servicigin constitute an unauthorized banking
business. PayPal has taken steps to address thtes soncerns, and has received a conclusion fhenNew York Banking Department that
its current business model does not constitutgdllbanking. PayPal also has obtained licensepéoate as a money transmitter in California,
Louisiana and Idaho. However, we cannot assurahyaithe steps PayPal has taken to address sgatatay concerns will be effective in all
states. If PayPal is found to be engaged in anthpnamed banking business in one or more statesight be subject to monetary penalties and
adverse publicity and might be required to ceasegdbusiness with residents of those states. Bvifie isteps it has taken to resolve these
states’ concerns are deemed sufficient by the stgidatory authorities, PayPal could be subjedinies and penalties for its prior activities.
The need to comply with state laws prohibiting uhadzed banking activities could also limit PayBability to enhance its services in the
future. Any change to PayPal's business practitaismakes the service less attractive to custoorgusohibits its use by residents of a
particular jurisdiction could decrease the veloatyrade on eBay, in which case our business wsufter.

If PayPal were found to be subject to or in viadatiof any laws or regulations governing money traitters, it could be subject to liability a
forced to change its business practic

A number of states have enacted legislaggulating money transmitters and PayPal has apfdiditenses under this legislation in 28
jurisdictions. To date, PayPal has obtained licems0 states and the District of Columbia. Akarilsed money transmitter, PayPal is sukt
to bonding requirements, restrictions on its inrestt of customer funds, reporting requirementsiasplection by state regulatory agencies. If
PayPals pending applications were denied, or if it werend to be subject to and in violation of any mogsegvices laws or regulations, Pay
also could be subject to liability or forced to sealoing business with residents of certain statés change its business practices. Any change
to PayPak business practices that makes the service leastate to customers or prohibits its use by resid of a particular jurisdiction cot
decrease the velocity of trade on eBay, in whideazur business would suffer. Even if PayPal iSomaed to change its business practices, it
could be required to obtain licenses or regulatqyrovals that could impose a substantial costayPRl.

If PayPal were to be found subject to or in viadatiof any laws or regulations governing electrofuind transfers, it could be subject to liabi
and forced to change its business practices.

Although there have been no definitive intetations to date, PayPal has assumed that itcedsvsubject to the Electronic Fund Transfer
Act and Regulation E of the Federal Reserve Bo&sca result, among other things, PayPal must peoaitivance disclosure of changes to its
service, follow specified error resolution proceskiand absorb losses from transactions not auditbby the consumer. In addition, PayPal is
subject to the financial privacy provisions of BeEamm-Leach-Bliley Act and related regulations.ad®sult, some customer financial
information that PayPal receives is subject totttndns on reuse and disclosure. Additionally, pegdegislation at the state and federal levels
may restrict further PayPal’s information gatherargl disclosure practices. Existing and potentiirE privacy laws may limit PayPalability
to develop new products and services that makefudata gathered through its service. The provisimfithese laws and related regulations are
complicated, and PayPal does not have extensiveriexgge in complying with these laws and relateplilgtions. Even technical violations of
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these laws can result in penalties of up to $1d@3@ssed for each non-compliant transaction. Dtinmgears ended December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2002, PayPal processed approxime@8la0 and 348,000 transactions per day, respéctiaved any violations could expose
PayPal to significant liability.

PayPal is subject to laws and regulations on mdaapdering and reporting of suspicious activitieat could have a material adverse imp
on its business and could subject it to civil anichinal liability.

PayPal is subject to money laundering lawsragulations that prohibit, among other thingsjritvolvement in transferring the proceeds of
criminal activities. These laws and regulationsuregPayPal to operate an anti-money launderingrara that contains at least the following
elements: written policies and procedures (inclgdhose relating to customer identification), tragnfor employees, designation of a
compliance officer, and regular independent reviéthe program. PayPal has adopted a program t@lgorith these regulations, but any
errors or failure to implement the program propedwyld lead to lawsuits, administrative actionefrand/or prosecution by the government.
PayPal is also subject to regulations that requieereport suspicious activities involving tranians of $2,000 or more and to obtain and keep
more detailed records on the senders and recipientstain transfers of $3,000 or more. The intetgtion of suspicious activities in this
context is uncertain. Future regulations undefiB& PATRIOT Act may require PayPal to revise thegedures it takes to verify the identity
of its customers and to monitor more closely ing¢ional transactions. These regulations could iramignificant costs on PayPal and make it
more difficult for new customers to join its netwoPayPal could be required to learn more abowistiomers before opening an account, to
obtain additional verification of international ¢asiers and to monitor its customers’ activities enclosely. These requirements could raise
PayPal’s costs significantly and reduce the aftraness of its product. Failure to comply with fealeand state money laundering laws could
result in significant criminal and civil lawsuitsenalties and forfeiture of significant assets.

PayPa’s status under banking or financial services law®ther laws in countries outside the U.S. is eacl The cost of obtaining any
required licenses or regulatory approvals in thesentries could affect PayPal’s future profitabilit

PayPal currently offers its product to custesnwith credit cards in 37 countries outside th®.Uh 19 of these countries, customers can
withdraw funds to local bank accounts. In thesentides, it is not clear whether, in order to pravits product in compliance with local law,
PayPal needs to be regulated as a bank or finansiéltion or otherwise. If PayPal were foundt®subject to and in violation of any foreign
laws or regulations, it could be subject to lighijlforced to change its business practices orefibto suspend operations in one or more
countries. Alternatively, PayPal could be requite@btain licenses or regulatory approvals thatdcgupose a substantial cost on it and inv
considerable delay to the provision or developnoéits product. Implementation of PayPal’s plangmhance the attractiveness of its product
for international customers, in particular its gaa offer customers the ability to transact bussn@ major currencies in addition to the
U.S. dollar, will increase the risks that it coblel found to be in violation of laws or regulatiansountries outside the U.S. In the fourth
guarter of 2002, PayPal began offering customersbtility to send or receive payments in Poundsp&uCanadian Dollars or Yen, in addition
to U.S. dollars.

PayPa’s financial success will remain highly sensitieechanges in the rate at which its customers fumgdrents using credit cards rather
than bank account transfers or existing PayPal attdalances. PayPal’s profitability could be hawiiéthe rate at which customers fund
using credit cards goes up.

PayPal pays significant transaction fees wderders fund payment transactions using crediscaominal fees when customers fund
payment transactions by electronic transfer of fuindm bank accounts and no fees when customedspgayment transactions from an exist
PayPal account balance. For the years ended Dec@hp2001 and December 31, 2002, senders fundéd®band 49.8%, respectively, of
PayPal’'s payment volume using credit cards. Sermdassresist funding payments by electronic trangfen bank accounts because of the
greater protection offered by credit cards, inahgdi
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the ability to dispute and reverse merchant chafyesause of frequent flier miles or other inceggivffered by credit cards or because of
generalized fears regarding privacy or loss of @ surrendering bank account information thiad party.

Increases in credit card processing fees couldease PayPis costs, affect its profitability, or otherwiseniit its operations.

From time to time, Visa, MasterCard, Ameri&press and Discover increase the interchangelieeshey charge for each transaction
using their cards. MasterCard is implementing andase to its interchange fees effective April 2008/Pal’s credit card processors have the
right to pass any increases in interchange feds &ayPal. Any such increased fees could increagPd!s operating costs and reduce its pi
margins. Furthermore, PayPal’s credit card progsssgjuire it to pledge cash as collateral witlpees to PayPal’s acceptance of Visa,
MasterCard, American Express and Discover andrimuat of cash that PayPal is required to pledgdéddoel increased at any time.

PayPal has limited experience in managing and antiog accurately for large amounts of customer furfélayPe’s failure to manage these
funds properly would harm its busine

PayPal’'s ability to manage and account agelyréor customer funds requires a high level @éinal controls. PayPal has neither an
established operating history nor proven manageeygrience in maintaining, over a long term, thaternal controls. As PayPal’s business
continues to grow, it must strengthen its intecwitrols accordingly. PayPal’s success requirasfggnt public confidence in its ability to
handle large and growing transaction volumes anolauts of customer funds. Any failure to maintaicessary controls or to manage
accurately customer funds could diminish custonseraf PayPal’s product severely.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about ctustomer service could affect use of our serviedsersely and, as a result, our busin
could suffer.

Customer complaints or negative publicity wbmur customer service could diminish severelyscmmer confidence in and use of our
services. Breaches of our customgnsvacy and our security measures could have three sffect. Measures we sometimes take to comba
of fraud and breaches of privacy and security aganabe relations with our customers. These meakeighten the need for prompt and
accurate customer service to resolve irregularéties disputes. PayPal has received negative med&age, as well as public criticism
regarding customer disputes. Effective customerigerequires significant personnel expense, aisdetkpense, if not managed properly, cc
impact our profitability significantly. Any inabtl by us to manage or train our customer servipeesentatives properly could compromise
ability to handle customer complaints effectivéfywe do not handle customer complaints effectiyelyr reputation may suffer and we may
lose our customers’ confidence.

Our failure to manage growth could harm us.

We currently are experiencing a period ofamgion in our headcount, facilities and infrastunet and we anticipate that further expansion
will be required to address potential growth in oustomer base and number of listings as well agxpansion into new geographic areas,
types of goods and alternative methods of sales &kpansion has placed, and we expect it will cometito place, a significant strain on our
management, operational and financial resources aféas that are put under strain by our growtludecthe following:

* The WebsitedVe must constantly add new hardware, update sadtamad add new engineering personnel to accommuuaiacreased
use of our and our subsidiaries’ websites and #ve products and features we are regularly intraducrhis upgrade process is
expensive, and the increased complexity of our itebicreases the cost of additional enhancemkémte. are unable to increase the
capacity of our systems at least as fast as thetrio demand for this capacity, our websites magdme unstable and may cease to
operate for periods of time. We ¢
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in the midst of a significant multiyear projectdnhance our current technical architecture. If pinggect is not successful, our business
could be harmed. We have experienced periodic @ustbd downtime. Continued unscheduled downtimelavbarm our business and
also could anger users of our websites and reduuaesfrevenue:

» Customer SupporWe are expanding our customer support operatioas¢commodate the increased number of users arghtrdons ot
our websites and the increased level of trust afetysactivity we provide worldwide. If we are uhalpo provide these operations in a
cost-effective manner, users of our websites mag hagative experiences, and current and futureneas could suffer, or our operating
margins may decreas

» Customer Account©ur revenues are dependent on prompt and accullaig processes. If we are unable to grow our $eaation
processing abilities to accommodate the increasimgber of transactions that must be billed, oulitglid collect revenue will be
harmed

We must continue to hire, train and manage e@ployees at a rapid rate. If our new hires perfpoorly, or if we are unsuccessful in
hiring, training, managing and integrating these eenployees, or if we are not successful in retgraur existing employees, our business
may be harmed. To manage the expected growth afmenations and personnel, we will need to imprawvetransaction processing,
operational and financial systems, procedures anttals. This is a special challenge as we acqexe operations with different systems. Our
current and planned personnel, systems, procedacesontrols may not be adequate to support ourdudperations. We may be unable to
hire, train, retain and manage required personni mentify and take advantage of existing antéptial strategic relationships and market
opportunities. The additional headcount and capitastments we are adding increase our cost bdseh will make it more difficult for us to
offset any future revenue shortfalls by offsettaxgpense reductions in the short term.

Our business may be harmed by the listing or sayedor users of illegal items.

The law relating to the liability of provideof online services for the activities of theietson their service is currently unsettled. We are
aware that certain goods, such as firearms, otkapens, adult material, tobacco products, alcomdlather goods that may be subject to
regulation by local, state or federal authoritiesye been listed and traded on our service orfpaithrough PayPal. We may be unable to
prevent the sale of unlawful goods, or the salgaafds in an unlawful manner, by users of our ser(iiecluding PayPal users), and we may be
subject to allegations of civil or criminal lialtififor unlawful activities carried out by usersahgh our service. We have been subject to se
lawsuits based upon such allegations. In ordeedoice our exposure to this liability, we have pbidkd the listing of certain items and
increased the number of personnel reviewing questile items. In the future, we may implement offretective measures that could require
us to spend substantial resources and/or to regwe@ues by discontinuing certain service offerifgsy costs incurred as a result of liability
or asserted liability relating to the sale of urflavgoods or the unlawful sale of goods, could haumbusiness. In addition, we have received
significant and continuing media attention relatioghe listing or sale of unlawful goods on oubsites. This negative publicity could damage
our reputation and diminish the value of our braache. It also could make users reluctant to coattowse our services.

We are subject to intellectual property and othéigation.

On April 25, 2001, our European subsidiaréay GmbH and eBay International AG, were suetbytres Rolex S.A. and certain Rolex
affiliates, or Rolex, in the regional court of Cotee, Germany. The suit subsequently was transféordde regional court in Dusseldorf,
Germany. Rolex alleged that our subsidiaries wafringing Rolex’s trademarks as a result of usetbng counterfeit Rolex watches through
our German website. The suit also alleges unfairpetition. Rolex sought an order forbidding theesafl Rolex watches on the website as well
as damages. In December 2002, a trial was helteimiatter and the court ruled in favor of eBay lbeauses of action. Rolex has appealed the
ruling, but the appeal has not yet been briefeleaird.
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On September 26, 2001, a complaint was bledlercExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsydand ReturnBuy, Inc. in the
Eastern District of Virginia (No. 2:01-CV-736) aliemg infringement of three patents (relating toimalauction technology, multiple database
searching and electronic consignment systems) egkirgg a permanent injunction and damages (incfutteble damages for willful
infringement). We answered the complaint, denylmallegations. In April 2002, we filed four mot®for summary judgment relating to the
three patents in suit. The court denied three @$¢tmotions and deferred ruling on the fourth moth “Markman” hearing was held in July
2002 to define certain disputed terms in the pateartd in October 2002 the court issued its clainstruction findings. In October 2002, the
court gave us leave to amend our answer to induclaim that MercExchange committed fraud on themteoffice during the prosecution of
one of the patents. On the same date, the courtegtdn part our pending summary judgment motidiecévely invalidating the patent related
to online auction technology and rendering it uoecgable. In November 2002, we filed two additiosi@inmary judgment motions regarding
the patents. One motion was denied as moot; thex aths denied because the court found there wiatderissues of fact. In February 2003,
filed an additional summary judgment motion, whiglstill pending. Only two patents remain in theeat this time. Trial is scheduled for
April 22, 2003. We believe we have meritorious defes and will defend ourselves vigorously. Howegeen if successful, our defense age
this action will be costly and could divert our nagement’s time. If the plaintiff were to prevail any of its claims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modifylusginess practices or even be enjoined from coimdpatsignificant part of our U.S.
business. Any such results could materially harmbmsiness. We are unable to determine what patdaises we may incur if this lawsuit
were to have an unfavorable outcome.

On September 6, 2002, a complaint was file&ibst USA Bank, N.A. against PayPal in the Digtof Delaware (No. 02-C\1-462) allegin
infringement of two patents relating to assigningaéias to a credit card so as to eliminate thel ieethe physical presence of the card in a
transaction and seeking a permanent injunctiondantages. PayPal believes it has meritorious deearset intends to defend itself vigorously.
However, even if successful, our defense agaimsttttion will be costly and could divert managethetime. If the plaintiff were to prevail ¢
its claims, PayPal might be forced to pay signiftcdamages and licensing fees or modify its busipeactices. Any such result could
materially harm our business. We are unable torate what potential losses we may incur if thig sere to have an unfavorable outcome.

On August 16, 2002, Charles E. Hill & Assdes Inc., or Hill, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. Dist Court for the Eastern District of Texas
(No. 2:02-CV-186) alleging that we and 17 other pamies, primarily large retailers, infringed thpegents owned by Hill generally relating to
electronic catalog systems and methods for tratisipiénd updating data at a remote computer. Thesseks an injunction against continuing
infringement, unspecified damages, including trefdmages for willful infringement, and intereststx expenses and fees. In January 2003,
the court granted the collective defendants’ mottransfer the case from the court where it vilad in Marshall, Texas to the Federal
District Court for the Southern District of Indian&/e believe that we have meritorious defensedraedd to defend ourselves vigorously.

On February 20, 2002, PayPal was sued irfdCaia state court in a purported class actiongatig that its restriction of customer accounts
and failure to promptly unrestrict legitimate acotsuviolates state consumer protection law and isrdair business practice and a breach of
PayPal's User Agreement. This action was refiletth widifferent named plaintiff on June 6, 2002, ardlated action was filed in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of [farnia on the same day. On March 12, 2002, PayRal sued in the U.S. District Court for
the Northern District of California in a purporteldss action alleging that its restrictions of ons¢ér accounts and failure to promptly unrestrict
legitimate accounts violates federal and state wnies protection and unfair business practice ldve dourt has denied PayPal’'s motion to
compel individual arbitration as required by theg/Pal User Agreement and has invalidated that piavisf the User Agreement. The two
federal court actions have been consolidated isiogle case. PayPal is defending itself vigorousiy if it is unable to prevail in these
lawsuits, it
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may have to change its anti-fraud operations iraamer that will harm its business and pay substbdéimages. Even if its defense is
successful, the litigation could damage PayPapsitaion, could require significant management timid be costly and could require changes
to its customer service and operations that coudtease its costs and decrease the effectivendssaaiti-fraud program.

Three purported class action complaints itze following announcement of the PayPal mergesdtily 2002 in the court of Chancery in
the State of Delaware in and for New Castle Colmgtalleged stockholders of PayPal. Two additionapprted class action complaints were
filed in the Superior Court of the State of Califiar, County of Santa Clara, by alleged PayPal $ioiclers. These complaints name as
defendants PayPal and each member of its boardeztalrs as well as eBay. The complaints are ptepazlass actions that allege, among
other things, that eBay controlled PayPal priothim execution of their merger agreement, the defietsdoreached fiduciary duties they
assertedly owed to PayPabktockholders in connection with PayPal entenmg the merger agreement and the exchange ratfh@imerger we
unfair and inadequate. The plaintiffs seek, amahgrathings, an award of unspecified compensatargabes. We believe that each of the
lawsuits is without merit and intend to defend elrss vigorously.

Other third parties have from time to timaigled, and others may claim in the future, thatwaee infringed their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We have in the pastioforced to litigate such claims. We may becoroeemulnerable to such claims as laws ¢
as the Digital Millennium Copyright Act and Commaaiions Decency Act are interpreted by the courtsas we expand into jurisdictions
where the underlying laws with respect to the pighability of online intermediaries like oursas is less favorable. We expect that we will
increasingly be subject to copyright and tradeniafikngement claims as the geographical reach ofsewices expands. We also expect that
we will increasingly be subject to patent infringamh claims as our services expand. In particularempect that patent infringement claims
involving various aspects of our Payments busimébgontinue to be made. We have been notifiedeferal potential disputes and are suk
to a suit by Tumbleweed Communications Corporatiiat is currently ongoing. These claims, whetheritmgous or not, could be time-
consuming, result in costly litigation, cause seevilpgrade delays, require expensive changes imetirods of doing business or could require
us to enter into costly royalty or licensing agreats, if available. As a result, these claims ctwadm our business.

Our business may be harmed by the listing or sajedoir users of pirated or counterfeit items.

We have received in the past, and we antieip@ will receive in the future, communicationkging that certain items listed or sold
through our service by our users infringe thirdepaopyrights, trademarks and tradenames or ottieiiéctual property rights. Although we
have sought to work actively with the content comityuto eliminate infringing listings on our websst, some content owners have expressed
the view that our efforts are insufficient. Contemtners have been active in defending their rigly@inst online companies, including eBay.
Allegations of infringement of third-party intelte@l property rights have in the past and may énfthure result in litigation against us. Such
litigation is costly for us, could result in inceEal costs of doing business through adverse judgonesettlement, could require us to change
our business practices in expensive ways, or cathidrwise harm our business. Litigation agains¢éotnline companies could result in
interpretations of the law that could also requisdo change our business practices or otherwisedse our costs.

Our business may be harmed by fraudulent activit@s our websites.

Our future success will depend largely upeliess reliably delivering and accurately represantheir listed goods and buyers paying the
agreed purchase price. We have received in the grasianticipate that we will receive in the fufuremmunications from users who did not
receive the purchase price or the goods that veehate been exchanged. In some cases individuagsliesen arrested and convicted for
fraudulent activities using our websites. While eg@& suspend the accounts of users who fail tdlfthigir delivery obligations to other users,
we do not have the ability to require users to madkgments or deliver goods or otherwise make uskdde other than through our limited
buyer protection programs.
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Other than through these programs, we do not cosgperusers who believe they have been defraudethby users. We also periodically
receive complaints from buyers as to the qualitthefgoods purchased. Negative publicity generaseal result of fraudulent or deceptive
conduct by users of our service could damage quutation and diminish the value of our brand navkie.expect to continue to receive
communications from users requesting reimbursemietitreatening or commencing legal action agaisst no reimbursement is made. Our
liability for these sort of claims is only begingito be clarified and may be higher in some non-{lu$sdictions than it is in the U.S. This sort
of litigation could be costly for us, divert managent attention, result in increased costs of dbunginess, lead to adverse judgments or could
otherwise harm our business. In addition, affectsetrs will likely complain to regulatory agencieBoacould take action against us, including
imposing fines or seeking injunctions.

Government inquiries may lead to charges or peresdti

On January 29, 1999, we received initial e=gsito produce certain records and informatidhedederal government relating to an
investigation of possible illegal transactions amoection with our websites. We were informed thatinquiry includes an examination of our
practices with respect to these transactions. We bantinued to provide further information in cestion with this ongoing inquiry. In order
to protect the investigation, the court has ordéhad no further public disclosures be made wipeet to the matter. Should this or any other
investigation lead to civil or criminal charges exgh us, we would likely be harmed by negative puity,, the cost of litigation, the diversion of
management time and other negative effects, ewsa iiltimately prevail. Our business would suffewvé were not to prevail in any action like
this. Even the process of providing records andrinftion can be expensive, time consuming andtristiie diversion of management
attention.

PayPal completed its exit from the business of ggeinig payments for online gambling merchants imekther 2002. Approximately 6%
PayPal's revenues in 2002 were derived from th&rass. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal providedidwnts and information related to its
services to online gambling merchants in respooseféderal grand jury subpoena issued at the st@fithe U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March 28, 2003, PayPalewed a letter from the U.S. Attorney for the Eastistrict of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’s provision of servicesntime gambling merchants violated 18 U.S.C. § 186the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of funds that are kndavhave been derived from a criminal offense orimtended to be used to promote or support
unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal togdtal civil forfeiture of the amounts it receivedconnection with such activities as well as
potential criminal liability. The letter offeredcmplete settlement of all possible claims and gésifrom the U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri if PayPal paid the purportesi@unt of its earnings derived from online gamblingrchants during the nine-month period
from October 26, 2001 to July 31, 2002, plus irgerBayPal acted in the good faith belief thatdsduct did not violate 18 U.S.C. § 1960 and
PayPal calculates that the amount of its earniraya bnline gaming activities was less than assentélde letter. Should this investigation lead
to a civil or criminal charge against PayPal, waulddoe harmed by negative publicity, the cost tigdition and the diversion of management
time, even if PayPal ultimately prevails. Any findiof a civil or criminal violation by PayPal, ootentially any settlement, could also endai
PayPal’s ability to obtain, maintain or renew motynsmitter licenses in jurisdictions where ituiggs such licenses to operate, which would
materially harm our business.

A large number of transactions occur on oebsites. We believe that government regulators heasived a substantial number of
consumer complaints about both eBay and PayPathwhihile small as a percentage of our total tretisas, are large in aggregate numbers.
As a result, we have from time to time been coethbly various foreign, federal, state and localil&gry agencies and been told that they
have questions with respect to the steps we tageotect our users from fraud and about our opematiWe are likely to receive additional
inquiries from regulatory agencies in the futuréjein may lead to action against us. We have regbtwlall inquiries from regulatory
agencies by describing our current and plannedrant efforts, customer support procedures andatipgy procedures. If one or more of
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these agencies is not satisfied with our respamserrent or future inquiries, the resultant inigegions and potential fines or other penalties
could harm our business.

We are subject to laws relating to the usktteansfer of personally identifiable informatiomoaut our users and their transfers, especially
outside of the U.S. Violation of these laws, whichmany cases apply not only to third-party trarsfeut also to transfers of information
between ourselves and our subsidiaries, and betaugselves, our subsidiaries and our commercidhpes could subject us to significant
penalties and negative publicity and could advgraffect us.

Acquisitions could result in operating difficultiedilution and other harmful consequence

We have acquired a number of businesses, incluglingcquisitions of Half.com, Internet Auction, #e, HomesDirect.com, NeoCom &
PayPal. We expect to continue to evaluate and densi wide array of potential strategic transastiagmcluding business combinations,
acquisitions and dispositions of businesses, tdolies, services, products and other assets, imgudterests in our existing subsidiaries and
joint ventures. At any given time we may be engagetiscussions or negotiations with respect to @nmore of such transactions. Any of s
transactions could be material to our financialdibon and results of operations. There is no asse that any such discussions or negotia
will result in the consummation of any transactidhe process of integrating any acquisition, incigdhe acquisition of PayPal, may create
unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditaned is itself risky. The areas where we may fatfecdities include:

« diversion of management time at both companiesdutie period of negotiation through closing ardhfer diversion of such time aft
closing, as well as a shift of focus from operating businesses to issues of integration and fyttrgucts;

« declining employee morale and retention issuedtiegdrom changes in compensation, reporting refeghips, future prospects or t
direction of the busines

« the need to integrate each company’s accountingagement information, human resource and otherrasirative systems to permit
effective management, and the lack of control dhsimtegration is delayed or not implement

« the need to implement controls, procedures angipslappropriate for a larger public company at ganies that prior to acquisition h
lacked such controls, procedures and policies;

« in some cases, the need to transition operatiotustba existing eBay platform.

Foreign acquisitions involve special riskg;liding those related to integration of operatiacsoss different cultures, languages, currency
risks and the particular economic, political angulatory risks associated with specific countrisreover, the anticipated benefits of any or
all of our acquisitions may not be realized. Futacquisitions or mergers could result in potentidilutive issuances of equity securities, the
incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities or anmation expenses related to goodwill and othemigilale assets, any of which could harm our
business. Future acquisitions or mergers may requsito obtain additional equity or debt financiwdjch may not be available on favorable
terms or at all. Even if available, this financimgy be dilutive.

Problems with third parties who provide servicesowr users could harm us

A number of third parties provide service®to users that indirectly benefit us. Such sewsvioelude seller tools that automate and manage
listings, merchant tools that manage listings amerface with inventory management software, plhatsting, and other services. In many ci
we have contractual agreements with these compamiiésh may give us a direct financial interesttirir success, while in other cases we
none. In either circumstance, financial, regulatmrpther problems that prevent these compani@s fividing services to our users could
reduce the number of listings on our websites dtentmpleting transactions on our websites moffecdif, and thereby harm our business.
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In addition, although we generally have bakle to renew or extend the terms of contractuahgements with our third party service
providers on acceptable terms, there can be noas=ithat we will continue to be able to do sthimfuture. Our contractual arrangement \
our third-party photo hosting service providerdéieduled to expire on September 30, 2003, sulgemrtain post-termination obligations. If
we are unable either to renegotiate the contrat¢ins acceptable to us, to build equivalent fumality ourselves or to find an alternative
supplier, our business would be adversely affected.

Third parties or governmental agencies may view da@havior as anti-competitive.

Third parties, including PayPal before itguisition by us, have in the past and may in ther&iallege that actions taken by us violate the
antitrust or competition laws of the U.S. or otheuntries, or otherwise constitute unfair compatitiSuch claims typically are very expensive
to defend, involve negative publicity and diversa@frmanagement time and effort and could resuignificant judgments against us, all of
which would adversely affect us.

We have provided information to the Antitrsvision of the Department of Justice in connettigith an inquiry into our conduct with
respect to “auction aggregators” including ourrisieg program and a previously settled lawsuitrgfeBidder’s Edge. Although the Antitrust
Division has closed this inquiry, if the Departmehtlustice or any other antitrust agency werepnoother investigations of our activities, we
would likely be harmed by negative publicity, thests of the action, possible private antitrust laites the diversion of management time and
effort and penalties we might suffer if we ultimlgitevere not to prevail.

Some of our businesses are subject to regulation athers may be in the future

As our activities and the types of goodsetisbn our site expand, state regulatory agencigsctaam that we are subject to licensure in their
jurisdiction, either with respect to our servicegieneral, or in order to allow the sale of cert@ms (e.g., real estate, boats, automobiles)
are currently subject to potential regulation unther Office of Banks and Real Estate, or OBRE|lindis concerning the applicability of the
lllinois Auction law to our services. In August 200llinois amended the lllinois auction law to pide for a special regulatory regime for
“Internet auction listing services.” We expect égister as an Internet auction listing servicdlindis following the adoption of regulations
under the amended statute. Although we do not éxpiscregistration to have a negative impact onlusiness, other regulatory and licensure
claims could result in costly litigation or coulelquire us to change our manner of doing business&ys that increase our costs or reduce our
revenues or force us to prohibit listings of certig&ms for some locations. We could also be suiltgefines or other penalties. Any of these
outcomes could harm our business.

As we have expanded internationally, we Hza®ome subject to additional regulations, includiegulations on the transmission of
personal information. These laws may require cagtBnges to our business practices. If we are foahdve violated any of these laws, we
could be subject to fines or penalties, and oumass could be harmed.

Our revenues from third-party advertising and end-end services are subject to factors beyond ourtcd and are expected to decrease.

We recognize revenues from end-to-end sepiceiders and direct advertising promotions. Thesenues may be affected by the
financial condition of the parties with whom we bahese relationships and by the success of oplimaotions generally. Recently, the pric
of online advertisements has deteriorated. Ouctadvertising revenues historically have been déeet in significant part on the
performance of AOL'’s sales force. Our advertisiatgs relationship with AOL has not been extendenewed and is scheduled to terminate
on March 31, 2003, after which time we will be degent on the efforts of our existing internal satedf. Reduction in these revenues would
adversely affect our results.
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At this time, we expect third-party advertising aamtl-to-end services revenues to decrease suladifanti an absolute basis in 2003 relative to
2002.

We are subject to risks associated with informatidisseminated through our service.

The law relating to the liability of onlineiwices companies for information carried on oseisinated through their services is currently
unsettled. Claims could be made against onlindsEs\companies under both U.S. and foreign lavd&amation, libel, invasion of privacy,
negligence, copyright or trademark infringementottrer theories based on the nature and conteheahaterials disseminated through their
services. Several private lawsuits seeking to iragiadility upon us under a number of these theohi@ve been brought against us. In addition,
federal, state and foreign legislation has beepgsed that imposes liability for or prohibits tih@rtsmission over the Internet of certain type
information. Our service features a Feedback Fomnigh includes information from users regardinigestusers. Although all such feedbac
generated by users and not by us, claims of defamat other injury have been made in the pastandd be made in the future against us for
content posted in the Feedback Forum. Claims liked are more likely and may have a higher proibabil success in jurisdictions outside
U.S. If we become liable for information provideg dur users and carried on our service in anydligt®n in which we operate, we could be
directly harmed and we may be forced to implememt measures to reduce our exposure to this ligbilhis may require us to expend
substantial resources and/or to discontinue ceseivice offerings, which would negatively affear dinancial results. In addition, the
increased attention focused upon liability issuea aesult of these lawsuits and legislative prafsosould harm our reputation or otherwise
impact the growth of our business. Any costs inedias a result of this liability or asserted ligpitould harm our business.

The inability to expand our systems may limit ourogvth.

We seek to generate a high volume of traffic anddactions on our services. The satisfactory padace, reliability and availability of o
websites, processing systems and network infrastrei@re critical to our reputation and our abitiyattract and retain large numbers of users.
Our revenues depend primarily on the number ofstésted by users, the volume of user transactioatsare successfully completed, the final
prices paid for the items listed and the volumeafment transactions by our payment customers. &gd to expand and upgrade our
technology, transaction processing systems andamketiwfrastructure both to meet increased trafficonir site and to implement new features
and functions, including those required under auntiacts with third parties. We may be unable tgjgmt accurately the rate or timing of
increases, if any, in the use of our service @xpand and upgrade our systems and infrastruduaedommodate any increases in a timely
fashion.

We use internally developed systems to opearat service for transaction processing, includiiiing and collections processing. We must
continually improve these systems in order to acoochate the level of use of our websites. In addjtiee may add new features and
functionality to our services that would resultliwe need to develop or license additional techrielkodVe capitalize hardware and software
costs associated with this development in accomarith generally accepted accounting principlesiachide such amounts in property and
equipment. Our inability to add additional softwared hardware or to upgrade our technology, traisaprocessing systems or network
infrastructure to accommodate increased traffizamsaction volume could have adverse consequenbese consequences include
unanticipated system disruptions, slower responsest degradation in levels of customer suppompaiimed quality of the users’ experiences of
our service and delays in reporting accurate firmeformation. Our failure to provide new featarer functionality also could result in these
consequences. We may be unable to effectively dipgaad expand our systems in a timely manner imtégrate smoothly with our existing
systems any newly developed or purchased techredagibusinesses such as PayPal. These difficatiidd harm or limit our ability to
expand our business.
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Unauthorized break-ins or other assaults on our s®es could harm our business.

Our servers are vulnerable to computer vsuphysical or electronic break-ins and similarujigions, which could lead to interruptions,
delays, loss of data, public release of confidédt@da or the inability to complete customer trantigens. In addition, unauthorized persons may
improperly access our data. eBay has experiencet@nhorized break-in by a “hacker” who has stéted he could, in the future, damage or
change our system or take confidential informatide. have also experienced “denial of service” tgfiacks on our system that have made all
or portions of our websites unavailable for periofiime. These and other types of attacks coutthhss. Actions of this sort may be very
expensive to remedy and could damage our reputatidrdiscourage new and existing users from ugingervices.

System failures could harm our busines

Our system has been designed around industry sthadzhitectures to reduce downtime in the evemtuddges or catastrophic occurren
Our services provide 24 hours-a-day, seven dayseakwvailability, subject to a weekly scheduled-tvoair maintenance period. Our systems
and operations are vulnerable to damage or intBorufrom earthquakes, floods, fires, power losfgdommunication failures, terrorist attacks,
computer viruses, computer denial of service ai@eid similar events. They are also subject tokbires sabotage, intentional acts of
vandalism and to potential disruption if the opersiof these facilities have financial difficultie8nly some of our systems are fully redundant
and we do not carry business interruption insuraudfcient to compensate us for losses that mayiodespite any precautions we may take,
the occurrence of a natural disaster, a decisiatoge a facility we are using without adequateaedfor financial reasons or other unanticipi
problems at our hosting facilities could resulteéngthy interruptions in our services. In additithne failure by our hosting facilities to provide
our required data communications capacity couldlté@s interruptions in our service. Any damagentdailure of our systems could result in
interruptions in our service. Interruptions in @ervice will reduce our revenues and profits, amdfoture revenues and profits will be harmed
if our users believe that our system is unreliable.

We have experienced system failures from tonttme. eBay’s primary website has been inteedgbr periods of up to 22 hours. In
addition to placing increased burdens on our emging staff, these outages create a flood of usestipns and complaints that need to be
addressed by our customer support personnel. Asghaauled interruption in our services resultsnmnamediate loss of revenues that can be
substantial and may cause some users to switalirtcoonpetitors. If we experience frequent or péesissystem failures on our websites, our
reputation and brand could be permanently harmexhsve been taking steps to increase the reliahifitl redundancy of our systems. These
steps are expensive, reduce our margins and mayemsaiccessful in reducing the frequency or dunadfounscheduled downtime.

Our infrastructure could prove unable to Haradlarger volume of customer transactions. Arlyfa to accommodate transaction growth
could impair customer satisfaction, lead to a lafssustomers, impair our ability to add customargorease its costs, all of which would harm
our business.

Because our customers may use our productsifical transactions, any errors, defects oeothfrastructure problems could result in
damage to our customers’ businesses. These custamdd seek significant compensation from usHeirtlosses. Even if unsuccessful, this
type of claim likely would be time consuming andgty for us to address.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchangges.

Net revenues outside the United States accounteapfiroximately 15% of our net revenues in 2001 268 in 2002. Because a signific
and growing portion of our business is conductedide the United States, we face exposure to adveovements in non-U.S. currency
exchange rates. The results of operations of darriationally focused websites are exposed todarekchange rate fluctuations as the
financial results of the applicable subsidiaries aanslated from the local currency into U.S. asllupon consolidation. In connection with its
multi-currency service, PayPal fixes exchange ratése per day, and
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thus may face financial exposure if exchange natege rapidly or if the rate is set incorrectly. é&schange rates vary, net sales and other
operating results, when translated, may differ meltg from expectations. In particular, to the ext the U.S. dollar strengthens against the
Euro, our European revenues and profits will beiced as the result of these translation adjustments

Our stock price has been and may continue to beextely volatile.

The trading price of our common stock hasee® is likely to be extremely volatile. Our stqarice could be subject to wide fluctuations
in response to a variety of factors, including fitleowing:

« actual or anticipated variations in our quartegheating results;

« unscheduled system downtime;

« additions or departures of key person

« announcements of technological innovations or nemwices by us or our competitors;
« changes in financial estimates by securities atglys

« conditions or trends in the Internet and online owrce industries

« changes in the market valuations of other Intecoetpanies;

« developments in regulation;

« events affecting PayF s business

* announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifie@quisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vuees$ or capital commitments;
 unanticipated economic or political events;

« sales of our common stock or other securitieséndfpen market; ar

« other events or factors, including these describelis “Risk Factors That May Affect Results of @gations and Financial Condition”
section and others that may be beyond our cor

In addition, the trading prices of Internetcks in general, and ours in particular, have ggpeed extreme price and volume fluctuations in
recent periods. These fluctuations often have beeslated or disproportionate to the operatinggrerbnce of these companies.
Notwithstanding a sharp decline in the prices oédmet stocks in general, the valuation of ourlsteenains extraordinarily high based
conventional valuation standards such as priceatobegs and price-to-sales ratios. The tradingepoicour common stock has increased
enormously from the initial public offering pric€his trading price and valuation may not be susthitNegative changes in the public’s
perception of the prospects of Internet or e-conemer technology companies have in the past andimidne future depress our stock price
regardless of our results. Other broad market addsitry factors may decrease the market price o€ommon stock, regardless of our
operating performance. Market fluctuations, as w&elgeneral political and economic conditions, saghecession or interest rate or currency
rate fluctuations, also may decrease the markee fi our common stock. In the past, following dfexd in the market price of a company’s
securities, securities class-action litigation nftes been instituted. Litigation of this typeintituted, could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of management’s attention and resources.

New and existing regulations could harm our busirge

We are subject to the same foreign, fedstate and local laws as other companies condubtisgess on and off the Internet. Today there
are relatively few laws specifically directed towaionline services. However, due to the increagopmularity and use of the Internet and on
services, many laws relating to the Internet airdodebated at the state and federal levels (lothe U.S. and abroad) and it is possible that
laws and regulations will be adopted with respedhe Internet or online services. These laws agdlations could cover issues such as user
privacy, freedom of expression, pricing, fraud,

65




Table of Contents

content and quality of products and services, taraadvertising, intellectual property rights @nfbrmation security. Applicability to the
Internet of existing laws governing issues suchraperty ownership, copyrights and other intellatproperty issues, taxation, libel, obscenity
and personal privacy is uncertain. The vast mgjafithese laws were adopted prior to the advetit@internet and related technologies and,
as a result, do not contemplate or address thaianggues of the Internet and related technologigsse laws that do reference the Internet,
such as the U.S. Digital Millennium Copyright Actdithe European Unios’(E.U.) Directive on Distance Selling and Elecicd@ommerce al
only now beginning to be interpreted by the coartd implemented by the E.U. Member States, anteioapplicability and scope remain
somewhat uncertain. In addition, numerous statdsa@meign jurisdictions, including the State of {fiainia, where our headquarters is located,
have regulations regarding how “auctions” may bede@ted and the liability of “auctioneers” in corting such auctions. No final legal
determination has been made with respect to thicappity of the California regulations to our boess to date and little precedent exists in
this area. Several states and some foreign jutisdghave attempted, and may attempt in the futomgosing such regulations upon us or our
users, which could harm our business. In additigrthe nature of the products listed by our udeasges, we may become subject to new
regulatory restrictions, such as licensure as &m@degaler or real estate broker.

Several domestic jurisdictions have proposed, Minnesota has recently passed, legislationvbald limit the uses of personal user
information gathered online or offline. Many juristions already have such laws and continuouslsicten strengthening them, especially
against online services. eBay and PayPal in ceitatances are subject to some of these currest RayPal may be subject to recently ene
legislation in several states and countries imppgieater restrictions on the ability of finan@akvices companies to share user information
with third parties without affirmative user consefte U.S. Federal Trade Commission also has detfieeral proceedings against companies
regarding the manner in which personal informat#ocollected from users and provided to third gartiSpecific statutes intended to protect
user privacy have been passed in many non-U.Sdjations, including virtually every nod-S. jurisdiction where we currently have a web
Compliance with these laws, given the tight intéigraof our systems across different countries thedheed to move data to facilitate
transactions amongst our users (e.g., to paymenpanies, shipping companies, etc.), is both necgssal difficult. Failure to comply could
subject us to lawsuits, fines, criminal penaltsatutory damages, adverse publicity and otheeto#igat could harm our business. Changes to
existing laws or the passage of new laws intendetitiress these issues could directly affect theweado business or could create uncert:
on the Internet. This could reduce demand for ewises, increase the cost of doing business asut of litigation costs or increased service
or delivery costs, or otherwise harm our businksaddition, because our services are accessiblelwioe, and we facilitate sales of goods to
users worldwide, foreign jurisdictions may clainathve are required to comply with their laws. Feamaple, the Australian high court has rt
that a U.S. website in certain circumstances musiply with Australian laws regarding libel. As waue expanded our international activities,
we have become obligated to comply with the lawthefcountries in which we operate. Laws regulaliigrnet companies outside of the U.S.
may be less favorable than those in the U.S., gigireater rights to consumers, content owners aagsuCompliance may be more costly or
may require us to change our business practicesstict our service offerings relative to thoseha U.S. Our failure to comply with foreign
laws could subject us to penalties ranging frormaral fines to bans on our ability to offer ourgees.

We are dependent on the continued growth of onlec@mmerce.

The business of selling goods over the Imtgnparticularly through online trading, is new ayhamic. Our future net revenues and profits
will be substantially dependent upon the widespiamptance of the Internet and online servicesrasdium for commerce by consumers.
Rapid growth in the use of and interest in therlmteand online services is a recent phenomends.abgeptance and use may not continue.
Even if the Internet is accepted, concerns abauwidfy privacy and other problems may mean thatfecmuftly broad base of consumers will not
adopt the Internet as a medium of commerce. Iriqueéat, our websites require users to make pubbeigilable personal information that some
potential users may be unwilling to provide. Thesecerns may increase as additional publicity over

66




Table of Contents

privacy issues on eBay or generally over the Irgeimcrease. Market acceptance for recently inttedwservices and products over the Internet
is highly uncertain, and there are few proven sewiand products. In order to expand our user baseust appeal to and acquire consumers
who historically have used traditional means of nwrce to purchase goods. If these consumers podve less active than our earlier users,
and we are unable to gain efficiencies in our djiggeacosts, including our cost of acquiring newtonsers, our business could be adversely
impacted.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our future performance will be substanti@@pendent on the continued services of our serémagement and other key personnel. Our
future performance also will depend on our abiiityetain and motivate our other officers and keyspnnel. The loss of the services of any of
our executive officers or other key employees cddtn our business. We do not have long-term empéoy agreements with any of our key
personnel, we do not maintain any “key person”iliigurance policies, and our Chief Executive Officas fully vested the vast majority of her
equity incentives. Our new businesses are all digrgtron attracting and retaining key personnehddition, employee turnover and other le
problems frequently increase during the periocbfelihg an acquisition as employees evaluate posskdages in compensation, culture,
reporting relationships and the direction of theibess. Such increased turnover could increaseastis and reduce our future revenues. Our
future success also will depend on our abilityttoaat, train, retain and motivate highly skillegthnical, managerial, marketing and customer
support personnel. Competition for these persoisnatense, and we may be unable to successfutlycatintegrate or retain sufficiently
qualified personnel. In making employment decisjqrasticularly in the Internet and high-technoldgglustries, job candidates often consider
the value of the stock options they are to receiv@nnection with their employment. Fluctuationur stock price may make it more diffic
to retain and motivate employees whose stock otike prices are substantially above current migpkices.

Our industry is intensely competitivi

Depending on the category of product, weeantty or potentially compete with a number of comipa serving particular categories of
goods as well as those serving broader rangesoafsgd he Internet provides new, rapidly evolving artensely competitive channels for the
sale of all types of goods. We expect competitomtensify in the future as the barriers to ety these channels are relatively low, as
current offline and new competitors can easily uanline sites at a nominal cost using commescelailable software or partnering with
one of a number of successful electronic commesogpanies. Our broad-based competitors include asemajority of traditional department,
warehouse, discount and general merchandise seresging online retailers, online classified segs| and other shopping channels such as
offline and online home shopping networks. Theséuohe most prominently: Wal-Mart, Kmart, TargetaB Macy’s, JC Penney, Costco,
Office Depot, Staples, OfficeMax, Sam’s Club, Amazmm, Buy.com, AOL.com, Yahoo! Shopping, MSN, Q& Home Shopping
Network/ HSN.com

We face competition from local, regional aradional specialty retailers and exchanges in eddur categories of products. For example:
Antigues: Bonhams, Christie’s, eHammer, Sotheby’s, PhillipgNIH), antique dealers and sellers

Coins & Stamps:Collectors Universe, Heritage, US Mint, Bowers &fhakrena

Collectibles: Franklin Mint, Go Collect, Collectiblestoday.comizardworld.com, Russ Cochran Comic Art Auctiond, @tar Auctions

Musical Instruments:Guitar Center/ Musicians Friend, Sam Ash, Gbase,.¢temmony-Central.com, musical instrument retaiferd
manufacturers

Sports Memorabilia:Beckett’s, Collectors Universe, Mastro, LeylandsePit.com, Superior
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Toys, Hobbies, Dolls, Bearstoys R Us, Amazon.com/Toysrus.com, KB Toys/KBTogmi¢ FAO Inc. (FAO Schwarz, Zany Brainy, the
Right Start), Lego, TY Inc.

Premium CollectiblesBonhams, Christies, DuPont Registry, Greg Manningti®ns, iCollector, Lycos/ Skinner Auctions,
Millionaire.com, Phillips (LVMH), Sotheby’s, othgaremium collectibles dealers and sellers

Automotive (used cars and partshdvance Auto Parts, Autonation.com, AutoTrader.cémtozone, Barrett-Jackson, California Classics,
CarMax, Cars.com, CarsDirect.com, Collectorcartraniéne.com, Dealix, Discount Auto Parts, DupongiR&y, eClassics.com, Edmunds,
General Parts (Carquest), Genuine/ NAPA, Hemmiimgstors.com, JC Whitney, TraderOnline, Trader Rlifig, vehix.com, Wal-Mart,
newspaper classifieds, used car dealers, swap joaetdubs

Books, Movies, MusicAmazon.com, Barnes & Noble, Barnesandnoble.confrislicom, Blockbuster, BMG, Columbia House, BesyBu
CDNow, Express.com, Emusic.com, Tower Records/ TdRezords.com

Clothing and AccessoriesAbercrombie.com, AE.com, Amazon.com, Bluefly.conoJdvaterCreek.com, Delias.com, Dockers.com, Ec
Bauer, The Gap, Gap Online sites, J. Crew, JCremw.t@ndsEnd.com, The Limited, LLBean.com, Macy’keTMen’s Wearhouse,
Payless.com, Ross, Urbang.com, VictoriasSecret.com

Computers & Consumer Electronic&mazon.com, Best Buy, Buy.com, Circuit City, CNEJogmpUSA, Dell, Electronics Boutique, Fry’'s
Electronics, Gamestop, Gateway, The Good Guys,dMi@rehouse, PC Connection, Radio Shack, Ritz Cafierdn Depot, Tiger Direct,
Tweeter Home Entertainment, uBid, Computer Discaatehouse, computer, consumer electronics anagtayihy retailers

Home & Garden:IKEA, Crate & Barrel, Home Depot, Williams-Sonorme. (Pottery Barn, Williams-Sonoma), Bed, Bath &yBnd,
Lowes, Linens ‘n Things, Pier One, Ethan Allen, riigate, Burpee.com

Jewelry: Bluenile.com, Diamond.com, Macy's
Pottery & Glass: Just Glass, Pottery Auction, Pottery Barn, Go @bJIBier 1 Imports, Restoration Hardware

Sporting Goods/ EquipmenBassPro, Cabellas, dsports.com, Footlocker, Gear.Gdobal Sports, golfclubexchange, MVP.com, Play |
Again Sports, REI, Sports Authority, Sportsline.com

Tickets: Ticketmaster, Tickets.com, ticket brokers
Tool/ Equipment/ HardwareHome Depot, HomeBase, Amazon.com, Ace Hardware, OSH

Business-to-Business#riba, BidFreight.com, Bid4Assets, BizBuyer.comidphid.com, Buyer Zone, CloseOutNow.com, Commerce,On
Concur Technologies, DoveBid, FreeMarkets, IromPialabx.com, Oracle, Overstock.com, Purchase®m.RicardoBiz.com, Sabre,
SurplusBin.com, Ventro, VerticalNet

Additionally, we face competition from var®online commerce sites including: Amazon.com, Bew§ndHaggle, Surplus Auction, uBid,
Yahoo! Auctions and a large number of other rediama national companies engaged in consumer-tstooar or business-tmensumer sale
Different aspects of our fixed-priced business cetaith the major Internet portals (AOL, MSN, Yahand comparable companies outside
the U.S.) as well as Amazon.com and others.

Our international websites compete with samdnline and offline channels in each of theirticat categories in most countries. In addition,
they compete with general online e-commerce ségsh as Quello and Otto in Germany, Yahoo-Kimoaiwkn, eSellpia in South Korea, El
Corte Inglés in Spain, Kelkoo in Italy and Amazarthe U.K. and other countries. In some of thesmt@s, there are online sites that have
much larger customer bases and greater brand rigioogthan we do, and in each of these
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countries there are competitors that have a bettéerstanding of local culture and commerce tharlove
The principal competitive factors for eBaglirde the following:
« ability to attract buyers and sellers;
« volume of transactions and selection of goods;
* customer service; ar
« brand recognition.
With respect to our online competition, athaial competitive factors include:
e community cohesion and interaction;
« system reliability:
« reliability of delivery and payment;
« website convenience and accessibility;
« level of service fees; ar

« quality of search tools.

Some current and potential competitors hamgér company operating histories, larger custdmses and greater brand recognition in
other business and Internet spaces than we do. 8bthese competitors also have significantly greéihancial, marketing, technical and ot
resources. Other online trading services may baieat|by, receive investments from, or enter irtteeo commercial relationships with larger,
well-established and well-financed companies. Assallt, some of our competitors with other revesoigrces may be able to devote more
resources to marketing and promotional campaigiaptanore aggressive pricing policies and devobstsuntially more resources to website
and systems development than we can. In additenmgio offline competitors may encourage manufaesito limit or cease distribution of
their products to dealers who sell through onlinarmels such as eBay. The adoption by manufactafensti-Internet policies could force
eBay users to stop selling certain products orsidar Increased competition or afriternet distribution policies may result in reddageratin
margins, loss of market share and diminished vafumir brand. Some of our competitors have offeredices for free, and others may do this
as well. We may be unable to compete successfgdinat current and future competitors.

In order to respond to changes in the cortipetenvironment, we may, from time to time, makeipg, service or marketing decisions or
acquisitions that could harm our business. For @t@mve have implemented a buyer protection progteahgenerally insures items up to a
value of $200, with a $25 deductible, for userdqwgitnon-negative feedback rating at no cost taslee. In addition, certain competitors may
offer or continue to offer free shipping or othearsaction related services, which could be impralcor inefficient for eBay users to match.
New technologies may increase the competitive pressby enabling our competitors to offer a lonestservice

Although we have established Internet tradfimngements with several large online servicdssaarch engine companies, these
arrangements may not be renewed on commercialporedble terms. Even if these arrangements are sgheley may not result in increased
usage of our service. In addition, companies tbhatrol access to transactions through network a¢deternet browsers, or search engines, or
Internet-based applications could promote our cditgee, channel users to electronic commerce $iiteiscompete with us, or charge us
substantial fees for inclusion.
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The market for PayPal’s product is emergintgnsely competitive and characterized by rapititelogical change. PayPal competes with
existing on-line and off-line payment methods, udthg, among others:

« Credit card merchant processors that offer theirices to online merchants, including First Datan€ord EFS, Paymentech, and Wells
Fargo; and payment gateways, including VeriSign Auathorize.net

* MoneyZap and BidPay offered by Western Union, s&liéry of First Data
« Yahoo! PayDirect offered by Yahoo! and HSBC;

« c2it offered by Citigroup

* WebPay and Valid offered by CheckFree; .

* U.S.P.S. SendMoney offered by the U.S. Postal 8ervi

Some of these competitors have longer opeydtistories, significantly greater financial, taidal, marketing, customer service and other
resources, greater name recognition or a larger dbsustomers in affiliated businesses than Pay@alexample, Citigroup’s c2it has existing
arrangements with AOL Time Warner and MicrosoftyPa’s competitors may respond to new or emergiegrologies and changes in
customer requirements faster and more effectivedy PayPal. They may devote greater resourceg tdetelopment, promotion and sale of
products and services than PayPal, and they may lofiver prices. Some of these competitors haweredf and may continue to offer, their
services for free in order to gain market shard, RayPal may be forced to lower its prices in raspoCompeting services tied to established
banks and other financial institutions may offezager liquidity and engender greater consumer denfie in the safety and efficacy of their
services than PayPal. If these competitors acqusigrdficant market share, this could result in Palylosing market share.

PayPal also competes with providers of tiadil payment methods, particularly credit cardigoks, money orders and ACH transactions.
Associations of traditional financial institutiosach as Visa, MasterCard and NACHA generally seféatures of these payment methods.
associations have initiated programs to enhancagahility of these payment methods for onlinegesions and could lower fees charged to
online merchants. Either of these changes coulcentakore difficult for PayPal to retain and attraustomers.

Overseas, PayPal faces competition from aimethannels and payment methods in most countng$ram regional and national online and
offline competitors in each country including Figate and World Pay in the European Community, Hexdn the U.K., CertaPay and
HyperWallet in Canada, and Paymate in Australiaaddition, in certain countries, such as Germalagtenic funds transfer (EFT) is a lead
method of payment for both online and offline tr@et®ons. As in the U.S., established banks and ditiencial institutions that do not curren
offer online payments could quickly and easily depesuch a service.

Half.com competes directly with online anflioé retailers in its product categories such asa&on.com, as well as with traditional offline
and online sellers of new and used books, videdsCids, consumer electronics and other products.

Our business is dependent on the development anthteaance of the Internet infrastructure

The success of our service will depend Igrgel the development and maintenance of the Intémfrastructure. This includes maintenance
of a reliable network backbone with the necesspeged, data capacity and security, as well as timielelopment of complementary products,
for providing reliable Internet access and servidé® Internet has experienced, and is likely tatiooie to experience, significant growth in
numbers of users and amount of traffic. If the iné¢ continues to experience increased numbersestpuincreased frequency of use or
increased bandwidth requirements, the Interneagtfucture may be unable to support the demandsglan it. In addition, the performance
the
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Internet may be harmed by increased number of wsdrandwidth requirements or by “viruses,” “wornasid similar programs. The backbone

computers of the Internet have been the targetsai programs. The Internet has experienced atyafi®utages and other delays as a result

of damage to portions of its infrastructure, ancbiild face outages and delays in the future. Thatmges and delays could reduce the level of
Internet usage as well as the level of traffic Hrelprocessing transactions on our service.

Our business is subject to online commerce securigks.

To succeed, online commerce and communications pnaside a secure transmission of confidentialiimfation over public networks. G
security measures may not prevent security breaéhasfailure to prevent security breaches couldrhaur business. Currently, a significant
number of our users authorize us to bill their dredrd accounts directly for all transaction feearged by us. PayPal’s and Billpoint’s users
routinely provide credit card and other financigbrmation. We rely on encryption and authenticatiechnology licensed from third parties to
provide the security and authentication technolmggffect secure transmission of confidential infation, including customer credit card
numbers. Advances in computer capabilities, newodisries in the field of cryptography or other depenents may result in a compromise or
breach of the technology used by us to protecbeoust transaction data. A number of websites haperted breaches of their security. Any
compromise of our security could harm our reputatiad, therefore, our business. In addition, ayp&ho is able to circumvent our security
measures could misappropriate proprietary inforomatir cause interruptions in our operations. We nmesd to expend significant resources to
protect against security breaches or to addresdgms caused by breaches. These issues are likbcome more difficult as we expand the
number of places where we operate. Our users nsaybal targeted by parties attempting to misappatgpasswords, credit card numbers or
other personal information by using fraudulent denaind websites appearing to be sent or operated.bye actively pursue the parties
responsible for these attempts at misappropriaimhencourage our users to divulge sensitive irdtion only after they have verified that
they are on our legitimate websites, but we caentitely eliminate these types of activities.

Security breaches could damage our reputatiohexpose us to a risk of loss or litigation podsible liability. Our insurance policies carry
low coverage limits, which may not be adequatestmburse us for losses caused by security breaches.

We must keep pace with rapid technological changeegmain competitive

Our competitive space is characterized bidhpghanging technology, evolving industry stardfarfrequent new service and product
introductions and enhancements and changing cusideneands. These characteristics are caused ilby#re emerging and changing nature
of the Internet. Our future success therefore egfpend on our ability to adapt to rapidly changehnologies, to adapt our services to
evolving industry standards and to improve theqremtince, features and reliability of our servicar @ilure to adapt to such changes would
harm our business. New technologies, such as tredafement of a peer-to-peer personal trading telclyyo could adversely affect us. In
addition, the widespread adoption of new Internetyworking or telecommunications technologies tieeotechnological changes could require
substantial expenditures to modify or adapt owises or infrastructure.

We need to develop new services, features and fanstin order to expand

We plan to expand our operations by develppiew or complementary services, products or tidimsaformats or expanding the breadth
and depth of services. We may be unable to expandgerations in a cost-effective or timely maniaren if we do expand, we may not
maintain or increase our overall acceptance. Ifauach a new business or service that is not féblpraceived by consumers, it could damage
our reputation and diminish the value of our braifé. anticipate that future services will include{trade and post-trade services.
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We are pursuing strategic relationships whird parties to provide many of these servicexaBse we use third parties to deliver these
services, we may be unable to control the quafithese services, and our ability to address problié any of these third parties fails to
perform adequately will be reduced. Expanding qerations in this manner also will require sigrafit additional expenses and development,
operations and other resources and will straimmamagement, financial and operational resourceslddk of acceptance of any new services
could harm our business.

Our growth will depend on our ability to develop obrand.

We believe that eBag/historical growth has been largely attributablevord of mouth. Both eBay and PayPal have bermkfitam frequen
and high visibility media exposure both nationahd locally. We believe that continuing to stremgtlour brand will be critical to achieving
widespread acceptance of our services. Promotidgasitioning our brand will depend largely on shecess of our marketing efforts and our
ability to provide high quality services. In orderpromote our brand, we will need to increaserarketing budget and otherwise increase our
financial commitment to creating and maintainingra loyalty among users. Brand promotion activities/ not yield increased revenues, and
even if they do, any increased revenues may neebthe expenses we incurred in building our bréngle do attract new users to our servic
they may not conduct transactions over our sengces regular basis. If we fail to promote and rtemour brand or incur substantial expel
in an unsuccessful attempt to promote and maimtairbrand, our business would be harmed.

We may be unable to protect or enforce our own Itgetual property rights adequatel’

We regard the protection of our trademarkpycights, patents, domain names, trade dressradd secrets as critical to our success. We
aggressively protect our intellectual property tgghy relying on a combination of trademark, coglytj patent, trade dress and trade secret
and through the domain name dispute resolutioresystVe also rely on contractual restrictions tagebour proprietary rights in products and
services. We have entered into confidentiality savéntion assignment agreements with our emplogedscontractors, and nondisclosure
agreements with parties with whom we conduct bsime order to limit access to and disclosure ofpaprietary information. These
contractual arrangements and the other steps takan to protect our intellectual property may pavent misappropriation of our technology
or deter independent third-party development oflaimtechnologies. We pursue the registration afammain names, trademarks and service
marks in the U.S. and internationally. Effectivademark, copyright, patent, trade dress, tradeesand domain name protection is very
expensive to maintain and may require litigatiorot€ction may not be available in every countrwirich our services are made available
online. Furthermore, we must also protect our tnealks, patents and domain names in an increasimgpeof jurisdictions, a process that is
expensive and may not be successful in every lmtat/e have licensed in the past, and expecteadie in the future, certain of our
proprietary rights, such as trademarks or copyedtmhaterial, to third parties. These licensees talkg actions that might diminish the value of
our proprietary rights or harm our reputation.

We are subject to the risks of owning real prope!

We own real property including land, buildéngnd interests in a partnership holding land anldiibgs, primarily related to our operations.
We have little experience in managing real propedynership of this property subjects us to risksluding:

« the possibility of environmental contamination ahe costs associated with fixing any environmeptablems;

< adverse changes in the value of these propertiestadinterest rate changes, changes in the neilgbbds in which the properties ¢
located, or other factor

« the possible need for structural improvements @eoto comply with zoning, seismic, disability actother requirements; and
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« possible disputes with tenants, partners or others.
Some anttakeover provisions may affect the price of our comon stock.

The Board of Directors has the authorityssue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stockcadetermine the preferences, rights and
privileges of those shares without any further vartaction by the stockholders. The rights of th&llars of common stock may be harmed by
the rights of the holders of any preferred stogl thay be issued in the future. Some provisiormuofcertificate of incorporation and bylaws
could have the effect of making it more difficudirfa third party to acquire a majority of our oateding voting stock. These include provisions
that provide for a classified board of directontpbit stockholders from taking action by writteansent and restrict the ability of stockholders
to call special meetings. We are also subjectdwipions of Delaware law that prohibit us from egigg in any business combination with any
interested stockholder for a period of three yéans the date the person became an interestedtsitnige, unless certain conditions are met.
This restriction could have the effect of delayorgreventing a change of control.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

During the fiscal years ended December 30120hd December 31, 2002, fees for services prdwgePricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or
PwC, were as follows (rounded to the nearest $3;000

Year Ended December 31

2001 2002
Audit Fees $ 670,00( $1,195,00!
Audit-Related Fee 969,00( 747,00(
Tax Fees 15,00( 19,00(
All Other Fees 31,00( 91,00(
Total $1,685,00! $2,052,00!

| |

Audit fees consisted of fees billed for seed rendered for the audit of eBay’s annual firgrstatements, review of financial statements
included in eBay'’s quarterly reports on Form 10a€d other services normally provided in connectigth statutory and regulatory filings.
Audit-related fees consisted primarily of feesdidlfor due diligence review in connection with asgions and divestitures and consultation
regarding financial accounting and reporting mattgéax fees consisted of fees billed for consultegarding tax compliance, tax advice and
tax planning. All other fees consisted of feesdrilfor services in connection with legal matterd tathnical accounting research.

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directtyas determined that the rendering of non-auditices by PwC was compatible with
maintaining their independence.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

Our Audit Committee has adopted a policy néng the pre-approval of any non-audit engagenoéwC. In the event that we wish to
engage PwC to perform accounting, technical, dilageor other permitted services not related tcséreices performed by PwC as our
independent auditor, our internal finance persomikprepare a summary of the proposed engagendetdjling the nature of the engagement,
the reasons why PwC is the preferred provider ohservices and the estimated duration and cdseadngagement. The report will be
provided to our Audit Committee or a designated kdttee member, who will evaluate whether the pregosngagement will interfere with
independence of PwC in the performance of its anglgervices. In the future, we intend to disclab@pproved non-audit engagements in the
appropriate quarterly report on Form 10-Q or anmejpbrt on Form 10-K.
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Our Audit Committee adopted the policy on-ppproval of non-audit engagements in October 20@Papproved the following non-audit
engagements through December 31, 2002:

« the prior engagement by PayPal of PwC to perforraralysis under Statement on Accounting Stand&AS) No. 70 Service
Organizations) of PayP¢'s information technology processes and cont

« the possible engagement of PwC to provide generah€ial advisory services to us in connection weitin possible involvement in ¢
arbitration proceeding related to the interpretattba contractual provisiol

« the engagement by PayPal of PwC to review Payiraésal compliance audit under the provisionshef Y SA PATRIOT Act;

« the engagement by PayPal Asset Management, liwGfto audit the financial statements and pregeddaderal tax return of PayF
Money Market Reserve Fund; a

« the engagement by PayPal of PwC to prepare themargsicome tax return of an expatriate employeayPal working in the Unite
Kingdom.
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ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The primary objective of our investment aitids is to preserve principal while at the sametimaximizing yields without significantly
increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we rteimour portfolio of cash equivalents, short-teand long-term investments in a variety of
securities, including government and corporategaitions and money market funds. These securiteegamerally classified as available for
sale and consequently are recorded on the baléweet at fair value with unrealized gains or logegorted as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (losspfnestimated tax.

Investments in both fixed rate and floatiaterinterest earning instruments carry varying elegiof interest rate risk. Fixed rate securities
may have their fair market value adversely impacdhgel to a rise in interest rates. In general, séesiwith longer maturities are subject to
greater interest rate risk than those with shanaturities. While floating rate securities genagralte subject to less interest rate risk than fixed
rate securities, floating rate securities may poedess income than expected if interest ratesedser Due in part to these factors, our
investment income may fall short of expectationsvermay suffer losses in principal if securities sold that have declined in market value
due to changes in interest rates. As of Decembe2(®12, our fixed income investments had an urzedlgain of $3.6 million with a pretax
yield of approximately 2.2% and a weighted avenmagéurity of 2 months. If interest rates were taamsaneously increase (decrease) by
basis points, the fair market value of the totakstment portfolio could decrease (increase) byapmately $3.3 million. Assuming an
average investment balance of $1.8 billion, if sateere to increase (decrease) by 100 basis ptimgsyould translate to an increase (decrease)
in interest income of approximately $18 million aaily.

We entered into two interest rate swaps ore 19 and July 20, 2000, totaling $95 million tduee the impact of changes in interest rates
on a portion of the floating rate operating leasmeour primary office facilities. The interest rawaps allow us to receive floating rate receipts
based on LIBOR in exchange for making fixed ratgnpants which effectively changes our interest eegosure on our operating lease from a
floating rate to a fixed rate on $95 million of ttueal $126.4 million notional amount of our opéngtlease commitment. Of the $126.4 million
operating lease commitment for our San Jose facilie interest rate is fixed on $95 million witretbalance of $31.4 million remaining at a
floating rate of interest based on the spread 8waonth LIBOR. See “Item 2: Properties” and “ltemVWfanagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationfthe 3-month LIBOR rates were to increase (dexegdy 100 basis points, then our lease
payments would increase (decrease) by approxim@#3y000 per quarter.

Equity Price Risk

We are exposed to equity price risk on theketable portion of equity investments we hold,i¢glly as the result of strategic investments
in third parties that are subject to considerabéekat risk due to their volatility. We typically dmt attempt to reduce or eliminate our market
exposure in these equity investments. As of Dece®bg2002, we did not have any unrealized gairlesses associated with our equity
investments. In accordance with our policy to assdsether an impairment loss on our investmentbagrred due to declines in fair value
and other market conditions, we determined thaliresin fair value of certain of our marketablelaron-marketable equity investments were
other than temporary. Accordingly, we recorded impant charges totaling $3.8 million during the yeaded December 31, 2002, relating to
the other-than-temporary impairment in the fairuneabf certain equity investments. At December BD22 the total value of our equity
investments was $44.2 million, including $3.4 noifliin marketable investments.

Foreign Currency Risk

International net revenues result from tratieas by our foreign operations and are typicdbyominated in the local currency of each
country. These operations also incur most of thejrenses in

75




Table of Contents

the local currency. Accordingly, our foreign opéas use the local currency as their functionateney. Our international operations are
subject to risks typical of international operaipimcluding, but not limited to differing econongdonditions, changes in political climate,
differing tax structures, other regulations andrietsons and foreign exchange rate volatility. Acdingly, our future results could be materi
adversely impacted by changes in these or oth&srac

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may ad\giisnpact our financial position as well as owsuks of operations. Foreign exchange rate
fluctuations may adversely impact our financialipos as the assets and liabilities of our foreggrerations are translated into U.S. dollars in
preparing our consolidated balance sheet. Thetadfdoreign exchange rate fluctuations on eBainarficial position for the year ended
December 31, 2002, was a translation loss of ajpmately $48.0 million. This loss is recognized asagjustment to stockholders’ equity
through other comprehensive income. Additionalbyefgn exchange rate fluctuations may adversehashpur results of operations as
exchange rate fluctuations on transactions dendsdna currencies other our functional currencyateegains and losses which are reflected in
our consolidated statement of income. The effedoign exchange rate fluctuations on eBay’s itssafl operations for the year ended
December 31, 2002, was a transaction loss of appedly $1.1 million.

As of December 31, 2002, we had outstandingdrd foreign exchange contracts with notionabiealequivalent to approximately
$69 million with maturity dates within 92 days. Theeward contracts are used to offset changesdrvétiue of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies as a result ooy fluctuations. Transaction gains and lossethe contracts and the assets and liabilities
are recognized each period in our statement ofhigcand generally are offsetting. As we purchaseddiward contracts on December 31,
2002, the fair values of the forward contracts wammaterial as of this date.

ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Annual Financial Statements: See Part IMnlfd(a)(1) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART llI

ITEM 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Executive officers are elected annually ey Board and serve at the discretion of the Boané. fdllowing table sets forth certain
information regarding our directors and executiffecers as of March 31, 2003.

Name Age Position
Pierre M. Omidyar(4 35 Founder, Chairman of the Board and Diret
Margaret C. Whitman(t 46 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
Matthew J. Bannick 38 Senior Vice President and General Manager, Globdh®
Payments
William C. Cobb 46 Senior Vice President and General Manager, eBayriationa
Rajiv Dutta 41 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Michael R. Jacobsa 48 Senior Vice President, Legal Affairs, General Caland Secretar
Jeffrey D. Jordal 44 Senior Vice President and General Manager, U.SinBss
Maynard G. Webb, J 47 Chief Operating Office
Philippe Bourguignon(2)(& 55 Director
Scott D. Cook(1)(3)(6 50 Director
Robert C. Kagle(1)(2)(€ 47 Director
Dawn G. Lepore(1)(3)(4 49 Director
Howard D. Schultz(2)(3)(4 49 Director
Thomas J. Tierney(2)(3)(! 49 Director

(1) Member of our Audit Committe

(2) Member of our Compensation Commit:

(3) Member of our Corporate Governance and NominatiognQittee
(4) Director continuing in office until our 2003 Annuislleeting

(5) Director continuing in office until our 2004 Annuslleeting

(6) Director continuing in office until our 2005 Annulslleeting

Pierre M. Omidyaifounded eBay as a sole proprietorship in Septerh®@5. He has been a director and Chairman of tleedBsince
eBay’s incorporation in May 1996 and also serveilsaShief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officand President from inception to
February 1998, November 1997 and August 1996, céispdy. Prior to founding eBay, Mr. Omidyar wasl@veloper services engineer at
General Magic, a mobile communication platform campfrom December 1994 to July 1996. Mr. Omidyafamded Ink Development
Corp. (later renamed eShop) in May 1991 and semgealsoftware engineer there from May 1991 to $ame 1994. Prior to co-founding Ink,
Mr. Omidyar was a developer for Claris, a subsidiasfrApple Computer, and for other Macintosh-orexzhsoftware development companies.
Mr. Omidyar also serves on the Board of Trusteebuffs University, The Santa Fe Institute and Theidyar Foundation. Mr. Omidyar holds
a B.S. degree in Computer Science from Tufts Usiter

Margaret C. Whitmarserves eBay as President and Chief Executive @Offgiee has served in that capacity since Febr29g and as a
director since March 1998. From January 1997 tad=atly 1998, she was General Manager of the Pres€haision of Hasbro Inc., a toy
company. From February 1995

77




Table of Contents

to December 1996, Ms. Whitman was employed by AMD, a floral products company, most recently gesiglent, Chief Executive Officer
and a director. From October 1992 to February 1885 Whitman was employed by The Stride Rite Coaion in various capacities,
including President, Stride Rite Children’s Grouna &xecutive Vice President, Product Developmeraikdting & Merchandising, Keds
Division. From May 1989 to October 1992, Ms. Whitmaas employed by The Walt Disney Company, an &itgnent company, most
recently as Senior Vice President, Marketing, DysBensumer Products. Before joining Disney, Ms. iMlain was at Bain & Co., a consulting
firm, most recently as a Vice President. Ms. Whitnagso serves on the board of directors of ThetBr& Gamble Company and is a Member
of the Board of Trustees of Princeton Universitys.MVhitman holds an A.B. degree in Economics fraindeton University and an M.B.A.
degree from the Harvard Business School.

Matthew J. Bannickerves eBay as Senior Vice President and Genenadéa, Global Online Payments and Chief Executiffee€ of
PayPal. He has served in those capacities sinaeh@c002. From December 2000 to October 2002 Bennick served as eBaySenior Vice
President and General Manager, eBay Internatiémam February 1999 to December 2000, Mr. Bannickeskin a variety of other executive
positions at eBay. From April 1995 to January 19@8,Bannick was an executive for Navigation Tedogees (NavTech), the leading
provider of digital map databases for the vehiceigation and internet mapping industries. Mr. Bakmvas President of NavTech North
America for three years and also served as Sernaar Rresident of Marketing and Vice President oé@fions. From June 1992 to August
1992, Mr. Bannick served as a consultant for McKin& Company, in Europe and from June 1993 to Ap#R5 in the U.S. Mr. Bannick also
served as a U.S. diplomat in Germany during theegesf German unification. Mr. Bannick holds a BiA.Economics and International
Studies from University of Washington and an M.RBlégree from the Harvard Business School.

William C. Cobbserves eBay as Senior Vice President and Genenahdéa, eBay International. He has served in thadcéy since
September 2002. From November 2000 to Septembé&, R00 Cobb served as eBay’s Senior Vice Presidseluhal Marketing. From
February 2000 to June 2000, Mr. Cobb served a&#reral Manager of Consumer Sales for Netpliamae, &n Internet-based content
Company. From July 1997 to February 2000, Mr. Cedtvyed as the Senior Vice President of Internatibtaaketing for Tricon Global
Restaurants, Inc. From August 1995 to July 1997,@&bb served as the Senior Vice President and Gtaeketing Officer for Pizza Hut, Inc
a division of Tricon Global Restaurants, Inc. Fritay 1994 to August 1995, Mr. Cobb served as ViaskRlent of Colas for the Pepsi-Cola
Company, a division of PepsiCo., Inc. Mr. Cobb IlscddB.S. degree in Economics from the UniversitPefinsylvania and an M.B.A. degree
from Northwestern University.

Rajiv Duttaserves eBay as Senior Vice President and ChiehEiabOfficer. He has served in that capacity sid@euary 2001. From
August 1999 to January 2001, Mr. Dutta served ag/&sB/ice President of Finance and Investor Refetid-rom July 1998 to August 1999,
Mr. Dutta served as eBay'’s Finance director. Frabrbary 1998 to July 1998, Mr. Dutta served astoeld Wide Sales Controller of KLA-
Tencor. Prior to KLA-Tencor, Mr. Dutta spent terayg from January 1988 to February 1998, at®&ot Laboratories, Inc., a manufacturer
distributor of life science and diagnostic produstth operations in over 24 countries. Mr. Duttddhe variety of positions with the Company,
including the group controller of the Life Scien@eoup. Mr. Dutta holds a B.A. degree in Economiosif St. Stephen’s College, Delhi
University in India and an M.B.A. degree from DreclSchool of Management.

Michael R. Jacobsoserves eBay as Senior Vice President, Legal Aff@eneral Counsel and Secretary. He has servéditrcapacity or
as Vice President, Legal Affairs, General CounselesAugust 1998. From 1986 to August 1998, Mrobaon was a partner with the law firm
of Cooley Godward LLP, specializing in securitias/| mergers and acquisitions and other transactdnslacobson holds an A.B. degree in
Economics from Harvard College and a J.D. degmem f6tanford Law School.

Jeffrey D. Jordarserves eBay as Senior Vice President and Genenahdés, U.S. Business. He has served in that cgpsinite April
2000. From September 1999 to April 2000, Mr. Jorslertved as eBay'’s Vice President, Regionals and&®sr From September 1998 to
September 1999, Mr. Jordan served as
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Chief Financial Officer for Hollywood Entertainmesmd President of their subsidiary, Reel.com. FEaptember 1990 to September 1998,
Mr. Jordan served in various capacities includirgstmecently Senior Vice President and Chief Firedr@fficer of The Disney Store
Worldwide, a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Compally. Jordan holds a B.A. degree in Political Sceeaad Psychology from Amherst
College and an M.B.A. degree from the Stanford Ga&el School of Business.

Maynard G. Webb, Jserves eBay as Chief Operating Officer. He haseskitv that capacity since June 2002. From Augud® 18 June
2002, Mr. Webb served as President, eBay Techredogirom July 1998 to August 1999, Mr. Webb wad@erice President and Chief
Information Officer at Gateway, Inc. From Febru&895 to July 1998, Mr. Webb was Vice President@hif Information Officer at Bay
Networks, Inc. From June 1991 to January 1995 Wkbb was Director, IT at Quantum Corporation. MetW also serves on the boarc
directors of Gartner, Inc., a high technology reseand consulting firm. Mr. Webb holds a B.A.Agdee from Florida Atlantic University.

Philippe Bourguignorhas served as a director of eBay since Decembé&. E96m April 1997 to January 2003, Mr. Bourguigrsamved as
Chairman of the Board of Club Mediterranee S.AoPt his appointment at Club Mediterranee S.A., Bwurguignon was Chief Executive
Officer of Euro Disney S.A., the parent companyp@neyland Paris, since 1993, and Executive Viasigent of The Walt Disney Company
(Europe) S.A., since October 1996. Mr. Bourguign@s named President of Euro Disney in 1992, alposteld through April 1993. He join
The Walt Disney Company in 1988 as head of RealtEstevelopment. Mr. Bourguignon holds a Mastergr®in Economics at the
University of Aix-en-Provence and holds a post-gietd diploma from the Institut d’Administration désterprises (IAE) in Paris.

Scott D. Coolhas served as a director of eBay since June 1988Cdbk is the founder of Intuit Inc., a financsalftware developer.
Mr. Cook has been a director of Intuit since Mat@&84 and is currently Chairman of the Executive @uttee of the Board of Intuit. From
March 1993 to July 1998, Mr. Cook served as Chairofahe Board of Intuit. From March 1984 to A@B94, Mr. Cook served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of Intuit. Mr. Cook alserves on the board of directors of The Proct&adnble Company. Mr. Cook holds a B
degree in Economics and Mathematics from the Ugityeof Southern California and an M.B.A. degreanfrthe Harvard Business School.

Robert C. Kaglénas served as a director of eBay since June 1987Kagle has been a Member of Benchmark Capitaldgdament Co.,
L.L.C., the General Partner of Benchmark Capitatrieas, L.P. and Benchmark Founders’ Fund, L.RAgsesits founding in May 1995.
Mr. Kagle also has been a General Partner of Téobgpd/enture Investors since January 1984. Mr. Kagso serves on the board of directors
of Ariba, Inc. and E-LOAN, Inc. Mr. Kagle holds a® degree in Electrical and Mechanical Engineefiiogn the General Motors Institute
(renamed Kettering University in January 1998) andV.B.A. degree from the Stanford Graduate Schb8usiness.

Dawn G. Leporéias served as a director of eBay since Decemb&. M@ Lepore is Vice Chairman of Technology, Ofierss, and
Administration and a member of the Executive Mamagiet Committee of the Charles Schwab Corporatioaere/she has served for over
19 years in various capacities. From October 1893e¢cember 2001, Ms. Lepore served as Chief Infoom®fficer at Schwab. Prior to that
she served as Senior Vice President of Informafiechnology at Schwab from May 1993 to October 1®B8re she was responsible for the
development of a wide range of systems to suppdnwab’s growing product offerings and client ba&Siee also led a strategic initiative for
redesigning Schwab'’s entire technology platform. Mepore also serves on the board of directors alfMart Stores, Inc. and on the Board of
Trustees of Smith College. Ms. Lepore holds a Blégree from Smith College in Music.

Howard D. Schulthas served as a director of eBay since June 1988 dhultz is the founder of Starbucks Corporataprovider of
gourmet coffee, and has been its Chairman of tregdBand Chief Global Strategist since June 200@mFstarbucks’ inception in 1985 to June
2000, he served as its Chairman of the Board areff ElRecutive Officer. From 1985 to June 1994, Bichultz also served as President of
Starbucks. Mr. Schultz is also one of two foundimgmbers of Maveron LLC, a company providing adwis®arvices to consumer-based
businesses, and is a member of two LLCs that s&sve
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General Partners of Maveron LLC's affiliated verteapital funds, Maveron Equity Partners LP and &fen Equity Partners 2000 LP.
Mr. Schultz has announced that he will step dowmfthe board when his current term expires at ourual Meeting in June 2003.

Thomas J. Tiernelyas served as a director of eBay since March 2003Tierney is the founder of The Bridgespan Graaupon-profit
business consulting firm serving the non-profittegcand has been its Chairman of the Board siatee1999. Prior to founding Bridgespan,
Mr. Tierney served as Chief Executive Officer offB& Company, a consulting firm, from June 1992 &muary 2000. Mr. Tierney holds a
B.A. degree in Economics from the University of i@ahia at Davis and an M.B.A. degree with distioatfrom the Harvard Business School.
Mr. Tierney is the co-author of a book about orgation and strategy callédigning the Stars

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l&Rjuires our directors and executive officersl, parsons who own more than 10%
registered class of our equity securities, toMilth the SEC initial reports of ownership and reépaf changes in ownership of our Common
Stock and other equity securities of the compatrific€s, directors and greater than 10% stockhaldee required by SEC regulation to furi
us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they.file

To our knowledge, based solely on a reviewhefcopies of such reports furnished to us anttemrrepresentations that no other reports
were required, during the fiscal year ended Decer@be2002, all Section 16(a) filing requiremenpplacable to our officers, directors and
greater than 10% beneficial owners were compligtl,veixcept Mr. Bannick reported one late reporEorm 4 that involved one transaction
covering 411 shares.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a written code of ethicsdpaties to our senior financial officers, inclugliaur principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officékle intend to satisfy the disclosure requiremeritesh 10 of Form 8-K regarding an
amendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of cadle of ethics that applies to our principal exeeusdfficer, principal financial officer, or
principal accounting officer by posting such inf@tion on our website atww.shareholder.com/ebay/code-of-ethics.cfm
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ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary of Compensation

The following table shows certain compengagarned during the fiscal years ended Decembe2(®1), 2001 and 2002, by our Chief
Executive Officer and four most highly-compensatéiter executive officers (based on their total ahsalary and bonus compensation), also
referred to as the Named Executive Officers, atebdmer 31, 2002.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term and Other

Annual Compensation Compensation
Number of
Securities
Fiscal Other Annual Underlying All Other
Name and 2002 Principal Positions Year Salary(1) Bais(2) Compensation(3) Options Compensation(6)

Margaret C. Whitmal 200z $250,00¢ $419,69¢(8) $133,06: 300,00( $ 1,98(
President and Chief Executi 2001 241 ,25¢ 139,33. — 750,00( 1,88¢
Officer 200C 210,00( 87,91« — 500,00((4) 1,882
Maynard G. Webb, Jr 200z 531,25( 837,1549) — 150,00( 1,10¢
Chief Operating Office 2001 500,00( 646,13(9) — 500,00( 384
200C 450,00( 503,15: — 100,00((4) 384

Jeffrey D. Jordal 200z 345,10: 739,764(10) — 135,00( 672
Senior Vice President ar 2001 322,40 467,04:(10) — 400,00( 4,75¢
General Manager, U.S. Busine 200( 290,00( 136,25: — 300,00((5) 30,75(
Matthew J. Bannicl 200z 334,08t 472,54((11) 15,98° 140,00( 2,17:
Senior Vice Presiden 2001 279,50¢ 133,39t — 300,00( 1,88¢
Global Online Paymen 200c 207,25( 86,13¢ — 140,00((4) 1,87
William C. Cobb 200z 312,18! 240,39((12) — 125,00( 2,17:
Senior Vice President ar 2001 283,66¢ 202,02¢12) — — 92,12%
General Manage 200c 27,57¢7) — — 280,00( 14,06¢

eBay Internatione

1)

@)

®)

(4)

Q)

Effective April 1, 2002, all eligible employees@Bay, including certain of the Named Executive €fs, received an annual sal
increase representing: (i) in the case of Mr. Webdalary of $525,000 per annum; (ii) in the casdo Jordan, a salary of $350,136
annum; (iii) in the case of Mr. Bannick, a salafy$850,112 per annum; and (iv) in the case of Miblg; a salary of $300,000 per
annum. Mr. Cobb’s salary increased to $350,112jot&nber 2002 in connection with his increasedamsipilities as Senior Vice
President and General Manager, eBay InternatidMralWebb'’s salary increased to $575,000 in Oct@¥)2 in connection with his
increased responsibilities as Chief Operating @ffidls. Whitma's salary in 2002 was $250,008 per ann

All 2002 bonuses represent amounts paid in 2002808 for services rendered in 2002, all 2001 beauspresent amounts paic
2001 and 2002 for services rendered in 2001, dri2D8D bonuses represent amounts paid in 2000 @@ fr services rendered in
2000.

Represents: (i) in the case of Ms. Whitntaer, personal use of eBay’s corporate aircraft (8%B), which is valued at rates prescribed
under applicable IRS regulations, and of a corgoaatcraft from an unaffiliated third-party vendadich is valued at actual invoiced
amounts ($74,961); and (ii) in the case of Mr. Baekncosts associated with family transportatiorilevivir. Bannick worked out of our
European offices during the summer of 2C

Reflects option grants that were subsequently mesci and cancelled by agreement between eBay arapfilicable Named Executi
Officer in July 2000 after it was determined tHa grants might call into question the desired anting treatment of our acquisition of
Half.com.

All but 100,000 of the shares of our ComnStack underlying options granted to Mr. Jordan00@ were subsequently rescinded and
cancelled by agreement between eBay and Mr. Jafianit
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(6)

()

®)

©)

(10)

11)

(12)

was determined that the grants might call into jaeghe described accounting treatment of our esitipn of Half.com.

Represents: (i) in the case of Mr. Jordareimbursement for relocation expenses paid toihi2000 ($28,866) and 2001 ($2,875);
(ii) in the case of Mr. Cobb, a reimbursement felocation expenses paid to him in 2000 ($13,79€)2001 ($90,243); and (iii) in the
case of each of the Named Executive Officers, rste premiums we paid with respect to group ligaiiance for their benefit and
matching contributions under our 401(k) Plan (sobje the maximum of $1,500 per annu

Mr. Cobb was hired by eBay in November 208€cordingly, the amounts shown in the table abfovdiscal year 2000 are for a period
of less than a year. Mr. Cc’s salary in 2000 was $280,000 per ann

Represents for 2002, $329,698 paid under 's Management Incentive Plan and an additional $@0h@nus granted by ti
Compensation Committee after the end of the figeat.

Represents for 2002, $387,254 paid undey’'sBdanagement Incentive Plan and $449,900 paictuitt. Webb’s special retention
plan and represents for 2001, $290,927 paid uriBay’s Management Incentive Plan and $355,200 uktieWebb's special retention
plan. Se¢“ltem 13: Certain Relationships and Related Traimag”

Represents for 2002, $202,212 paid under 's Management Incentive Plan, $522,550 under Mdal’s special retention plans a
$15,000 pursuant to our discretionary reward pnogrnd represents for 2001, $153,041 paid undey’sB&anagement Incentive Plan
and $314,000 under Mr. Jor('s special retention plan. S*Item 13: Certain Relationships and Related Traimas”

Represents for 2002, $207,540 paid under 's Management Incentive Plan, $250,000 under Mrnig&’s special retention plan a
$15,000 pursuant to our discretionary reward pnogigee” Item 13: Certain Relationships and Related Tramzas”

Represents for 2002, $170,390 paid under ‘sBdgnagement Incentive Plan and $70,000 under@dhb’s special retention plan and
represents for 2001, $132,026 paid under eBay’sagament Incentive Plan and $70,000 under Mr. Cafiésial retention plan. See
“Item 13: Certain Relationships and Related Trainsas”

The following executive officers received igisof options in 2002 under eBay’s 2001’s Equitgdntive Plan, which we also refer to as the

2001 Plan.
Option Grants During 2002
Potential Realizable Value ai

Number of Percentage o Assumed Annual Rates o

Securities Total Options Stock Price Appreciation for

Underlying Granted to Exercise Option Term(4)

Options Employees Price Expiration
Name Granted(1) during 2002(2) Per Share(3) Date 5% 10%

Margaret C. Whitmal 300,00( 2.1% $58.0¢ 02/12/1: $10,952,20 $27,755,02
Maynard G. Webb, Jr 150,00( 1.1 58.0¢ 02/12/1: 5,476,10! 13,877,51
Jeffrey D. Jordal 135,00 1.C 58.0¢ 02/12/1: 4,928,49I 12,489,76
Matthew J. Bannicl 140,00( 1.C 58.0¢ 02/12/1: 5,111,02 12,952,34
William C. Cobb 125,00( 0.9 58.0¢ 02/12/1: 4,563,41 11,564,59
(1) Options granted in 2002 were granted under the Z0&d. All options granted in 2002 to the Nameddtrtiwe Officers were granted |

%)

our Board, are nonqualified stock options and atgext to a four-year vesting schedule, vesting%®after six months and 1/48 per
month thereafte!

Based on options to purchase 14,205,236 sharas @oonmon stock granted in 2002, exclusive of 1680 ghares granted to our direct
and options to purchase an aggregate of 2,511}iat@sthat were assumed by us in connection wattiPetyPal acquisition in October
2002.
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(3) Options were granted at an exercise priceldquhe fair market value of our common stockdatermined by the Board of Directors on
the date of grant. The exercise prices per shestesl in the table above are rounded to the neaees!

(4) Reflects the value of the stock option on the d@tgrant assuming (i) for the 5% column, a 5% ahnate of appreciation in our comm
stock over the ten-year term of the option andfdiithe 10% column, a 10% annual rate of apprigidh our Common Stock over the
tenyear term of the option, in each case without disting to net present value and before income tagesciated with the exercise.
5% and 10% assumed rates of appreciation are loasti rules of the SEC and do not represent dima&te or projection of the future
common stock price. The amounts in this table n@ynecessarily be achieve

The following table sets forth the numbesbéres acquired and the value realized upon eres€istock options during 2002 and the
number of shares of our common stock subject tocesable and unexercisable stock options held &@eckmber 31, 2002, by each of the
Named Executive Officers. The value at fiscal yerad is measured as the difference between theisggnice and the fair market value
close of market on December 31, 2002, which was8&#67

Aggregate Option Exercises in 2002 and Values at Bember 31, 2002

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercisec
Options at December 31 In-the-Money Options at
Number of 2002 December 31, 2002(Z
Shares
Acquired on Value Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Name Exercise Realized(1) #) #) $) (&)
Margaret C. Whitmal — — 218,75( 831,25( $ 4,947,73 $18,801,39
Maynard G. Webl 400,00  $6,922,60 474,03t 465,96! 11,714,02 10,443,84
Jeffrey D. Jordal 133,32¢ 2,576,13 355,90 334,64 2,253,14 5,438,81.
Matthew J. Bannicl 113,32¢ 2,106,23. 220,83: 247,49 1,312,177 4,155,42;
William C. Cobb 85,00( 1,898,71! 86,87 233,12¢ 2,057,05. 4,942 ,53.

(1) Value realized is based on the fair market valueusfcommon stock on date of exercise minus thecese=price and does not necesse
reflect proceeds actually received by the offi

(2) Calculated using the fair market value of our commstmck on December 31, 2002 ($67.82) less theciseeprice of the optior

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

No member of the Compensation Committee isas formerly an officer or an employee of eBay.iberlocking relationship exists
between the Board of Directors or Compensation Citteenand the board of directors or compensationroittee of any other company, nor
has such interlocking relationship existed in thstp

Mr. Kagle, a member of our Compensation Cotta®j is a member of the general partner of cexairture capital funds that beneficially
hold greater than 10% of the equity interests iefiKeom and Vcommerce, Inc. We engaged in the faliguransactions with these companies
in 2002:

In April 2000, we entered into an advertisargl promotions agreement with Keen.com under wivielecognized revenues of
approximately $200,000 in 2002 in exchange formoamotion of Keen. Our agreement with Keen.com epiluring 2002. In February 2001,
our wholly owned subsidiary, Half.com, entered iatoertain content licensing and inventory salesemgent with Vcommerce pursuant to
which Vcommerce agreed to list its inventory onfttaim’s website and to allow Half to use Vcommesogatalog data to supplement Half's
existing catalog data. Half paid Vcommerce apprataty $25,000 in 2002 under this agreement. Hadfreaognized approximately $17,00(
expense in 2003 under its agreement with Vcommerce.
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We believe that all of the transactions seihf above were made on terms no less favorahls than we could have obtained from
unaffiliated third parties.

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain infation known to us with respect to beneficial owhgrof the Common Stock as of March 1,
2003, by (i) each stockholder known to us to belttreeficial owner of more than 5% of our commorkstdii) each director and nominee for
director, (iii) each of the executive officers nairie the Summary Compensation Table set forth ufitesn 11: Executive Compensation —
Summary of Compensation” and (iv) all executivaagffs and directors as a group.

Shares Beneficially

Owned(1)

Name of Beneficial Owner Number Percent
Pierre M. Omidyar(2 63,077,94 20.1%
Jeffrey S. Skoll(3 33,177,34 10.€
Janus Capital Management LL"“Janus Capit”)(4) 15,750,22 5.0
Margaret C. Whitman(t 7,211,55 2.3
Maynard G. Webb, Jr.(¢ 525,42: *
Jeffrey D. Jordan(7 404,59¢ *
Matthew J. Bannick(8 225,83. *
William C. Cobb(9) 95,62« *
Philippe Bourguignon(1C 186,25( *
Scott D. Cook(11 838,53t *
Robert C. Kagle(12 2,042,29. *
Dawn G. Lepore(13 156,25( *
Howard D. Schultz(14 75,04 *
All directors and executive officers as a group [f&Bsons)(15 75,649,23 23.¢

@

@)

©)
4)

Less than one percent.

This table is based upon information supplied Wicefs, directors and principal stockholders andesitiles 13D and 13G filed with tl
Securities and Exchange Commission. Beneficial oship is determined in accordance with the rulethefSecurities and Exchange
Commission and generally includes voting or investtrpower with respect to securities. Unless otiemindicated below, the persons
and entities named in the table have sole votingsate investment power with respect to all shaereeficially owned, subject to
community property laws where applicable. Sharesuofcommon stock subject to options that are ctisreexercisable or exercisable
within 60 days of March 1, 2003 are deemed to hstanding for the purpose of computing the peramtavnership of the person
holding those options, but are not treated as audinhg for the purpose of computing the percentagership of any other person. The
percentage of beneficial ownership is based on5554966 shares of our common stock outstandind Eah 1, 2003

Mr. Omidyar is our Founder and Chairman of Board. Includes 383,800 shares held by his spasise which he disclaims beneficial
ownership. The address for Mr. Omidyar is 2145 HemiAvenue, San Jose, California 951

The address for Mr. Skoll is ¢c/o Capricorn ManagetneLC, 2005 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 260, San J&aifornia 95125

Janus Capital has an indirect 100% ownership staBay Isle Financial LLC, or Bay Isle, and an iretit 50.1% ownership stake
Enhanced Investment Technologies LLC, or INTECHe Duthe above ownership structure, holdings fougaCapital, Bay Isle and
INTECH are aggregated fi
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®)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

beneficial ownership disclosure purposes. Janugt&apay Isle and INTECH are registered investnahtisers, each furnishing
investment advice to various investment comparggstered under Section 8 of the Investment Companypf 1940 and to individual
and institutional clients (collectively, the “MaredPortfolios”).Neither Janus Capital, Bay Isle nor INTECH hasrigbt to receive an
dividends from, or the proceeds from the saleh#f,gecurities held in the Managed Portfolios asdldims any ownership associated
with such rights. Janus Capital has sole votingdispositive power over 15,320,121 shares of comstock and shared voting and
dispositive power over 430,100 shares of commockstbhe address for Janus Capital Management LLIDG@sFillmore Street, Denve
Colorado 8020-4923.

Ms. Whitman is our President and Chief Examiffficer. Includes 6,425,262 shares held by th#ith R. Harsh, IV & Margaret C.
Whitman TTEES of Sweetwater Trust U/ A/ D 10/15/B9addition, it includes (a) 1,198 shares held3iffith Rutherford Harsh 1V
Custodian Griffith Rutherford Harsh V UTMA Califaenas to which Ms. Whitman’s spouse is custodiartte trust and as to which
Ms. Whitman disclaims beneficial ownership andX[ )98 shares held by Griffith Rutherford Harsh IWstbdian William Whitman
Harsh UTMA California as to which Ms. Whitman’s gfge is custodian for the trust and as to which\Witman disclaims beneficial
ownership. Includes 306,250 shares Ms. Whitmartheasight to acquire pursuant to outstanding ogtiexercisable within 60 days. 1
address for Ms. Whitman is 2145 Hamilton Avenuea) $@se, California 9512

Mr. Webb is our Chief Operating Officer. Includez55421 shares Mr. Webb has the right to acquirsyant to outstanding optio
exercisable within 60 days. The address for Mr. B/isl2145 Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California2®6

Mr. Jordan is our Senior Vice President and Gerndealager, U.S. Business. Includes 404,596 shareddvidan has the right to acqu
pursuant to outstanding options exercisable wiiirdays. The address for Mr. Jordan is 2145 Hamiteenue, San Jose, California
95125.

Mr. Bannick is our Senior Vice President, Globali®& Payments. Includes 225,832 shares Mr. Banméskthe right to acquil
pursuant to outstanding options exercisable wiiirdays. The address for Mr. Bannick is 2145 HamiAvenue, San Jose, California
95125.

Mr. Cobb is our Senior Vice President and Gahlglanager, eBay International. Includes 95,62 af Mr. Cobb has the right to
acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisatitén 60 days. The address for Mr. Cobb is 214Briton Avenue, San Jose,
California 95125

Includes 186,250 shares Mr. Bourguignon hagight to acquire pursuant to outstanding optexercisable within 60 days. The
address for Mr. Bourguignon is 33 rue Censier, BSRaris, France

Includes 716,250 shares Mr. Cook has the righttize pursuant to outstanding options exercisafitlein 60 days. The address
Mr. Cook is c/o Intuit, Inc., 2535 Garcia Avenuepbhtain View, California 9404:

The shares are held by Robert & Joanne Kagist UAD 4/4/96, Robert Kagle and Joanne KagleEES. Includes 36,250 shares
Mr. Kagle has the right to acquire pursuant to taunging options exercisable within 60 days. Thereskifor Mr. Kagle is c/o
Benchmark Capital Management Co., L.L.C., 2480 S4ildRoad, Suite 200, Menlo Park, California 940

Includes 156,250 shares Ms. Lepore has the rigatdqoire pursuant to outstanding options exerasafthin 60 days. The address
Ms. Lepore is c/o The Charles Schwab Corporatioa, Mlontgomery Street, M.S., 1-30-305, San Francisco, California 941!

Includes 36,250 shares Mr. Schultz has tjie tb acquire pursuant to outstanding options@sable within 60 days. The address for
Mr. Schultz is c/o Starbucks Corporation, 2401 WAae. South, 8th Floor, Seattle, Washington 98:

Includes 3,335,005 shares subject to options esadvl? within 60 days
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table gives information about our s¥gof common stock that may be issued upon thesisgeof options, warrants and rig
under all of our existing equity compensation plasa®f December 31, 2002, including our 1996 Spkon Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan,
1998 Equity Incentive Plan, 1998 Directors Stocki@pPlan, the 1999 Plan, the 2001 Plan as wedhases of our common stock that may be
issued under individual compensation arrangeméatsiere not approved by our stockholders, alsermed to as our Non-Plan Grants. No
warrants or rights are outstanding under any ofdhegoing plans.

©

(a) Number of Securities
Number of Securities (b) Remaining Available for
to Be Issued upor Weighted Average Future Issuance under
Exercise Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Equity compensation plat
approved by securityholde 34,722,00 $56.2 22,238,40(1)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by securityholde 780,00((2)(3)(4)(5)(6) $ 1.5¢ —
Total 35,502,00 $55.01 22,238,40
.| | .|

(1) Includes 1,623,993 shares of our common stock mantaavailable for future issuance under our 1968%Byee Stock Purchase Plan,
amended, or the ESPP, as of December 31, 200ZE8RIP contains an “evergreen” provision that autmaiét increases, on each
January 1, the number of securities availabledsnance under the ESPP by the number of shardsasedt under the ESPP in the
preceding calendar year. An aggregate amount gD076hares was purchased under the ESPP in 2002. ™ our other plans has an
“evergree” provision.

(2) Does notinclude 13,772 shares of our common steith,a weighted average exercise price of $1.¥Gspare, to be issued upon exer
of outstanding options assumed by us under thedilt, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan, or the Billpoiitian, in connection with our
acquisition of Billpoint in 1999, as we cannot mak#sequent grants or awards of our equity seesinithder the Billpoint Plan. Prior to
our acquisition of Billpoint, the stockholders offlBoint approved the Billpoint Plan. Our stockheld, however, did not approve the
Billpoint Plan in connection with our acquisitioh Billpoint.

(3) Does notinclude 95,363 shares of our common steith,a weighted average exercise price of $13&3spare, to be issued up
exercise of outstanding options assumed by us uhdddalf.com, Inc. 1999 Equity Compensation Ptarthe Half.com Plan, in
connection with our acquisition of Half.com in 20@8 we cannot make subsequent grants or awanis efjuity securities under the
Half.com Plan. Prior to our acquisition of Halfetbtockholders of Half approved the Half.com P@ut stockholders, however, did not
approve the Half.com Plan in connection with ouguasition of Half.

(4) Does notinclude 59,159 shares of our common steith,a weighted average exercise price of $0.43pare, to be issued upon exer
of outstanding options assumed by us under thei@ignfinc. 1999 Stock Plan, or the Confinity Plamconnection with our acquisition
of PayPal in October 2002, as we cannot make subségrants or awards of our equity securities utttee Confinity Plan. The
Confinity Plan was assumed by PayPal in connedtiitimits merger with Confinity in 2000. Prior to oacquisition of PayPal and
PayPal's merger with Confinity, the stockholdergainfinity approved the Confinity Plan. Our stoclders, however, did not approve
the Confinity Plan in connection with our acquisitiof PayPal
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(5) Does notinclude 323,313 shares of our comstock, with a weighted average exercise price d@per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding options assumed by us uhdeX.com Corporation 1999 Stock Plan, or the ¥addlan, in connection with our
acquisition of PayPal in October 2002, as we cammake subsequent grants or awards of our equityrisies under the X.com Plan. Pr
to our acquisition of PayPal, the stockholdersaffPal approved the X.com Plan. Our stockholdensglver, did not approve the X.com
Plan in connection with our acquisition of Pay}

(6) Does notinclude 1,182,373 shares of our commarksteith a weighted average exercise price of $3p&r share, to be issued ug
exercise of outstanding options assumed by us uhddPayPal, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, erfayPal Plan, in connection with
our acquisition of PayPal in October 2002, as wenoamake subsequent grants or awards of our eg@dyrities under the PayPal Plan.
Prior to our acquisition of PayPal, the stockhaddefrPayPal approved the PayPal Plan. Our stockhgltiowever, did not approve the
PayPal Plan in connection with our acquisition afPal.

The only outstanding NdAlan Grant as of December 31, 2002 relates todinidual compensation arrangement that was maade farithe
initial public offering of our Common Stock in 1998t the time of this Non-Plan Grant, members of Baard and their affiliates beneficially
owned in excess of 90% of our then outstandingtga@und voting interests. This Non-Plan Grant hanbgreviously disclosed in our initial
public offering Prospectus filed with the SEC omp®enber 25, 1998 under the headings “Managementireefor Compensation” and “—
Compensation Arrangements.” Except as set forbvgehe terms and conditions of this Non-Plan Geae identical to the terms of our 1997
Stock Option Plan, a copy of which was filed as#&hibit to our S-1 Registration Statement (No. 38%y/) filed in connection with our initial
public offering.

The outstanding Non-Plan Grant involved tloai8’s grant of an option to purchase 900,000 shafreur Common Stock at an exercise
price of $1.56 to Mr. Cook upon his joining our Bad@n June 1998 as an independent director. Thesens granted to Mr. Cook were non-
qualified options and were immediately exercisabigh a term of 10 years. These options veste® @5% of the underlying shares in June
1999 and as to 2.08% of the shares each monthafterentil they fully vested in June 2002. Mr. ®axercised 120,000 of these options in
May 2002 and exercised an additional 100,000 cfetogptions in February 2003.

A second Non-Plan Grant involved the Boagtant of an option to purchase 3,600,000 sharesio€ommon Stock at an exercise price of
$2.50 to Brian Swette upon his joining eBay in Asigli998 as Senior Vice President of Marketing antérhational. These options granted to
Mr. Swette were non-qualified options with a terfitem years. During 2002, Mr. Swette exerciseaptlons available to him in connection
with his departure from eBay. No options were autding under this grant as of December 31, 2002.

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into indemnification agreemeiith each of our directors and executive officdihese agreements require us to
indemnify such individuals, to the fullest exteermitted by Delaware law, for certain liabilitieswhich they may become subject as a result
of their affiliation with eBay.

In August 2000, Mr. Webb, our Chief Operatfficer, entered into a four-year term loan witghat an interest rate of 6.37% per annum,
with 10%, 15%, 25% and 50% of principal on the lb@mg due on each of the first, second, third fandth anniversary of the loan’s issue
date, respectively. The principal amount on the leas approximately $2,169,800, which amount repreesi the principal and accrued inte|
due at the end of a one-year term loan enterednndaigust 1999 between Mr. Webb and us shortlgrdits relocation to San Jose as a result
of his joining eBay in 1999, and was secured by Webb's principal place of residence. In Januai§12@ve entered into a special retention
bonus plan with Mr. Webb, under which Mr. Webb ieed bonus payments in August of 2001 and 2002rantiins eligible to receive bonus
payments in August 2003 and 2004 if he is then eygal by us.
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Payment amounts under Mr. Webb’s bonus plan arg,888 for 2001, $449,900 for 2002, $646,100 for8Ad $1,154,000 for 2004, and
may be used to pay principal and interest paymanisg to us under the terms of his loan. In Aug2@21 and August 2002, in accordance
with the terms of his loan, Mr. Webb paid down $28® and $449,900, respectively, of principal aoctaed interest on the loan. The
maximum indebtedness of Mr. Webb to us during 2088 $2,077,211. In January 2003, Mr. Webb prepafdll the principal and accrued
interest on his loan in the amount of approximagdly670,800.

In May 2000, Mr. Jordan, our Senior Vice Riteat and General Manager, U.S. Business, entatedwo fouryear term loans with us at
interest rate of 6.40% per annum, with principal ancrued interest payable on each loan in egatdliments on each anniversary. The
principal amounts on the loans were $1,000,000%20®,000, respectively, with the loan amounts satby Mr. Jordan’s principal place of
residence. In May 2000, we entered into a speetahtion bonus plan with Mr. Jordan under which 8drdan received bonus payments in
May of 2001 and 2002 and remains eligible to reedonus payments in May 2003 and 2004 if he is #¢meployed by us. Payment amounts
under this bonus plan with Mr. Jordan are $314f00@001, $298,000 for 2002, $282,000 for 2003, $266,000 for 2004, and may be use
pay principal and interest payments Mr. Jordan tliéin owe to us under the loans described in @viagraph. In July 2000, Mr. Jordan repaid
in full the principal and accrued interest on tl8®000 term loan. In addition, in April 2001, Mordan entered into a foyear term loan wit
us at an interest rate of 4.94% per annum, withgpal and accrued interest payable in equal ilnségdts on each anniversary of this loan. The
principal amount on this loan was $750,000, with ldan amount secured by Mr. Jordan’s principat@laf residence. In April 2001, we
entered into a second special retention bonuswidnMr. Jordan under which Mr. Jordan receivedumpayments in April of 2002 and
remains eligible to receive bonus payments in A2B103, 2004 and 2005 if he is then employed byagment amounts under this bonus plan
with Mr. Jordan are $224,550 for 2002, $215,288@03, $206,025 for 2004, and $196,763 for 2008,raay be used to pay principal and
interest payments Mr. Jordan will then owe to udeaurthe loans described in this paragraph. In M#12and May 2002, Mr. Jordan paid do
$314,000 and $298,000, respectively, of principal accrued interest on his May 2000 loan. In ApBi02, Mr. Jordan paid down $224,550 of
principal and accrued interest on his April 200dnoThe maximum indebtedness of Mr. Jordan to usg2002 was $1,579,050.

In March 2001, in connection with his relocation3an Jose as a result of his joining eBay in |8&02Mr. Cobb, our Senior Vice Presid
and General Manager, eBay International, enteredariour-year, nomaterest bearing term loan with us in the amour$&#£0,000. The loan
Mr. Cobb is secured by his principal place of resick. Principal payments of $70,000 are due ofirdtesecond and third anniversaries of the
date Mr. Cobb joined eBay (November 27, 2000), withalloon payment of the remaining principal daeNmvember 27, 2004. In November
2000, we entered into a special retention bonus with Mr. Cobb under which Mr. Cobb received a $00 bonus payment in November of
2001 and 2002 and remains eligible to receive bpaysments in November 2003 and 2004 if he is tmepl@yed by us In April 2002, we
entered into a second special retention bonuswaidnMr. Cobb under which Mr. Cobb will receive 280,000 bonus payment on
November 27, 2004 if he is then employed by us.Ghbb may use these bonus payments to pay prinegyahents due under his loan.
November 2001 and 2002, Mr. Cobb paid down $7040@0$70,000, respectively, of principal on his loBine maximum indebtedness
Mr. Cobb to us during 2002 was $770,000.

In September 2002, we entered into a spestahtion bonus plan with Mr. Bannick. Under therte of this bonus plan, Mr. Bannick
received a $250,000 bonus payment after the clasfiogr acquisition of PayPal in October 2002 apdruhis acceptance of the new position
as our Senior Vice President and General ManadebaGOnline Payments. Mr. Bannick remains eligitaleeceive performance-based bonus
payments related primarily to the integration ardgrmance of our PayPal subsidiary of up to $2806n each of the nine-month, 18-month,
and 24-month anniversaries of the October 2002radosf the PayPal acquisition.

Mr. Omidyar, our Founder and the ChairmanwfBoard of Directors, and Mr. Skoll, a benefimalner of more than 5% of our common
stock, from time to time make their personal afitcaaailable to
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our officers for business purposes at no cost td ki imputed cost of the aircraft use was not nat® our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Mr. Cook, a member of our Board of Directors, wir@ctor and Chairman of the Executive CommittethefBoard of Directors of Intuit. |
September 2000, prior to eBay’s acquisition of RdyPayPal entered into a strategic marketing agee¢ with Intuit. PayPal paid Intuit
approximately $672,000 in 2002 under this agreenidrg agreement was terminated in December 20@2PawgPal paid Intuit an early
termination fee of $1,349,000 in January 2003 oatance with the terms of the agreement.

Certain other transactions are described uth@ecaption “Compensation Committee Interlockd brsider Participation” in Item 12, which
is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedutdader the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial iOéfr, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosarrols and procedures (as defined in
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-14(c)lui14(c)) as of a date, also referred to as tteduation Date, within 90 days before the
filing date of this annual report. Based upon thatluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our €Htinancial Officer have concluded that as
of the Evaluation Date, the design and operatioounfdisclosure controls and procedures were éffect

(b) Changes in internal control3.here were no significant changes in our interoalttiols or in other factors that could significgrelffect
these controls subsequent to the Evaluation Date.
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PART IV
ITEM 15: EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport:

1.Consolidated Financial Statements:

Page
Number
Report of Independent Accountal 93
Consolidated Balance She 94
Consolidated Statement of Incoi 95
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Inc 96
Consolidated Statement of Stockhol¢ Equity 97
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flc 98
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 99
2.Financial Statement Schedules.
Page
Number
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 14C

All other schedules have been omitted becthesenformation required to be set forth therasimét applicable or is shown in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

3.Exhibits
Filed Incorporated by Reference
with
this Date
No. Exhibit Description 1C-K Form File No. Filed
2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of JulyY0@22among 8-K 07/08/02
PayPal, Inc., the Registrant and Vaquita AcquisitBorp.
3.01 Registrar’'s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporz 1C-Q 11/13/98
3.02 Registrant’s Certificate of Amendment of Certifieaif 10K 03/28/01
Incorporation.
3.0¢ Registrant’s Corrected Certificate of Certificatedonendment 10K 03/28/01
of Certificate of Incorporatior
4.01 Form of Specimen Certificate for Registrs Common Stock S-1 333-59097 08/19/98
4.0z Investor Rights Agreement, dated June 20, 199Wdmat the S-1 333-59097 07/15/98
Registrant and certain stockholders named the
10.014 Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registwith S-1 33359097 07/15/98

each of its directors and executive office
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Filed Incorporated by Reference
with
this Date
No. Exhibit Description 10-K Form File No. Filed
10.024 Registrar’s 1996 Stock Option Pla S-1 33359097 07/15/98
10.034 Registrar’s 1997 Stock Option Pla S-1 33359097 07/15/98
10.04+ Registrar’s 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amenc S1 33:-59097 07/15/98
10.054 Registrar’s 2001 Equity Incentive Pla S-8 333-9772¢  08/06/02
10.064 Registrar’s 1998 Directors Stock Option Ple S-1 333-59097 07/15/98
10.07+4 Amendment No. 1 to Registrés 1998 Directors Stock Optic 1C-K 03/29/99
Plan.
10.08+ Registrar’'s Amended and Restated 1998 Employee < 1C-K 03/25/02
Purchase Plar
10.09+ Registrar’s 1999 Global Equity Incentive Plan, as amen S-8 33:-9772¢  08/06/02
10.104 Employment Letter Agreement dated January 16, 1888vyee! S-1 333-59097 08/19/98
Margaret C. Whitman and Registra
10.114 Employment Letter Agreement dated August 20, 18@8yeer S-1 333-59097 09/01/98
Michael R. Jacobson and Registre
10.124 Offer Letter to Maynard G. Webb, Jr. dated July 1999. S-3 33:3-88205 09/30/99
10.13+ Retention Bonus Plan dated January 10, 2001, bat 1C-Q 08/14/01
Registrant and Maynard G. Webb, Jr. (Correct
10.14+4 Stock Option Agreement dated June 9, 1998 betwegsRan! X
and Scott D. Cook
10.15+ Offer Letter to Jeffrey D. Jordan dated July 3099 S-3 33:-88205 09/30/99
10.164 Retention Bonus Plan dated May 16, 2000, betwegisRant 10K 03/28/01
and Jeffrey D. Jordal
10.174 Retention Bonus Plan dated April 3, 2001, betweegifrant 1C-Q 08/14/01
and Jeffrey D. Jordal
10.18+ Offer Letter to William C. Cobb dated November 2200. 1C-K 03/25/02
10.19+4 Supplemental Retention Bonus Plan dated April D022 10Q 08/06/02

between Registrant and William C. Col
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Filed Incorporated by Reference
with
this Date
No. Exhibit Description 10-K Form File No. Filed
10.20A Employment Letter Agreement between Registrant and 10Q 11/14/02
Christopher T. Hjelm, dated as of March 11, 2(
10.214 Special Bonus Plan between Registrant and Matthew J 10Q 11/14/02
Bannick, dated as of September 6, 2(
10.2z Lease dated March 1, 2000, between eBay Realtyt aings 10K 03/30/00
Registrant
10.2: Cash Collateral Agreement between Registrant ars€h 10K 03/30/00
Manhattan Bank as Agent, dated March 1, 2
21.01 List of Subsidiaries X
23.01 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP cons: X
24.01 Power of Attorney (see signature pa X

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatamnyqs arrangement

(b) Reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quartefiscal 2002:

1. On October 3, 2002, eBay filed a report omi8-K to report under Item 5 that it had obtaiaddapprovals required under
applicable state money transmitter laws to comptstpreviously announced merger with PayPal, N financial statements were filed
with the report

2. On October 4, 2002, eBay filed a report om#8-K to report under Item 2 that it had obtaitieel approval of the holders of a
majority of common stock of PayPal, Inc. of the geerof Vacquita Acquisition Corp., a wholly-ownagbsidiary of eBay, with and into
PayPal, as well as the completion of the mergerfifcial statements were filed with the reportduese the required financial statements
were filed with Amendment No. 1 to the Company’gR#ation Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-Fj7#%hich was filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2&? ..

3. On November 14, 2002, eBay furnished a tepoiForm 8-K to report under Item 9 that it hdddiits Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q, and that accompanying such report wereertifications of eBay’s Chief Executive Offiaard Chief Financial Officer, as

required by Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 2002. No financial statements weredilwith the repor

(c) See the Exhibits listed under Iltem 15(a)(3)va&bo

(d) The financial statement schedules requirechtsyitem are listed under Item 15(a)(2) above.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of eBay Inc.:

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financiat8ments listed in the index appearing under ItBa){1) on page 88 present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of eBay. land its subsidiaries (the “Compangt)December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, a
results of their operations and their cash flowdlie three years then ended in conformity withoaoting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statesarg the responsibility of the Company’s manageénoem responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits. We conducted our audits of these stateneiaiscordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Ameridach require that we plan and perform the awdititain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An auditcludes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amount
and disclosures in the financial statements, asgese accounting principles used and signifiestimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@rmaWe believe that our audits provide a reastnbasis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidatediéial Statements, effective January 1, 2002Cthrapany changed its method of accounting
for goodwill in accordance with Statement of Finahé&ccounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and @tintangible Assets.”

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
January 17, 2003, except for Note 17,
which is as of March 28, 2003
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eBay Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, n
Funds receivabl
Other current asse

Total current asse
Long-term investment
Restricted cash and investme
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Deferred tax asse
Other asset

December 31

2001

2002

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Funds payable and amounts due to custol
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Deferred revenue and customer advair
Shor-term debt

Income taxes payab

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Minority interests

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9 anc
Stockholder equity:
Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value; Q0 ghare:
authorized; no shares issued or outstan
Common Stock, $0.001 par value; 900,000 share®san#u;
277,259 and 311,277 shares issued and outsta
Additional paic-in capital
Unearned stoc-based compensatic
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It

Total stockholder equity

$ 523,96  $1,109,31L
199,45( 89,69(
101,70: 131,45:
41,01«

58,68: 96,98¢
883,80: 1,468,45:
286,99¢ 470,22
129,61 134,64
142,34¢ 218,02t
187,82¢ 1,456,02
10,81( 279,46!
21,54( 84,21¢
15,58¢ 13,38(
$1,678,520  $4,124,44.
| |
$ 3323 $ 4742
50,39¢

94,59: 199,32
15,58: 18,84¢
16,11° 2,97(
20,61 67,26¢
180,13¢ 386,22
12,00¢ 13,79¢
3,62¢ 111,84:
15,86¢ 22,87:
37,75! 33,23:
249,39 567,97
277 311
1,275,241 3,108,44:
(2,367) (5,259
164,63 414,47
(8,645) 38,49¢
1,429,13 3,556,47:
$1,678,520  $4,124,44.
| |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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eBay Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
Net revenue $431,42:  $748,82: $1,214,101
Cost of net revenue 95,45:¢ 134,81¢ 213,87¢
Gross profil 335,97: 614,00! 1,000,22.
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 166,76 253,47. 349,65(
Product developmel 55,86: 75,28t 104,63t
General and administrati\ 73,027 105,78« 171,78t
Payroll taxes on stock option gai 2,337 2,44; 4,01¢
Amortization of intangible asse 1,43 36,59: 15,94
Merger related cos 1,55(C — —
Total operating expens: 300,97 473,57¢ 646,02
Income from operation 34,99 140,42¢ 354,19°
Interest and other income, r 46,33] 41,61 49,20¢
Interest expens (3,379 (2,85)) (1,492
Impairment of certain equity investmel — (16,245 (3,78))
Income before income taxes and minority inter 77,951 162,94: 398,13:
Provision for income taxe (32,72 (80,009 (145,94¢)
Minority interests in consolidated compan 3,06% 7,514 (2,29€)
Net income $ 48,29  $ 90,44¢ $ 249,89:
I L] .|
Net income per shar
Basic $ 01¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.87
I L] .|
Diluted $ 017 $ 03¢ $ 0.8t
| | ]
Weighted average share
Basic 251,77¢ 268,97 287,49¢
| | ]
Diluted 280,34t 280,59! 292,82(
I L] .|

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktiEssolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income $ 48,29: $90,44¢ $249,89:
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation adjustme 803 (5,83%) 48,00(
Unrealized gains (losses) on investme (11,589 1,21¢ 774
Investment gain included in net incol 3,79¢ 55€
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed — (3,86%) (2,637)
Estimated tax benefit (provisio 4,811 (459) 44¢

Net change in other comprehensive income (losgrbefumulative
effect of change in accounting princij (5,969 (5,144 47,14

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi (2,62¢€)
Comprehensive incon $42,32¢ $82,67¢ $297,03«
I I |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Convertible preferred stoc
Balance, beginning of ye. $ — $ — $ —
Balance, end of ye: — — —
Common stock
Balance, beginning of ye 262 26¢ 277
Common stock issue 7 8 34
Balance, end of ye: 26¢ 277 311
Additional paic-in-capital:
Balance, beginning of ye 831,12: 941,28 1,275,241
Common stock issue 49,04: 252,39! 1,740,48
Common stock repurchas (365) (145) (132
Contributions from partners and minority inter 23,81¢ — —
Unearned stoc-based compensatic 187 — 29¢
Stock option income tax bene 37,48 81,70¢ 92,54¢
Balance, end of ye: 941,28! 1,275,241 3,108,44.
Notes receivable from stockholde
Balance, beginning of ye (11) — —
Note repayment 11 — —
Balance, end of ye: — — —
Unearned stoc-based compensatio
Balance, beginning of ye (8,709 (1,427 (2,367%)
Unearned stoc-based compensatic (187) (4,117 (9,949
Amortization of unearned sto-based compensatic 7,141 3,091 5,95¢
Cancellation or repurchase of sha 327 82 1,104
Balance, end of ye: (2,427 (2,367) (5,259
Retained earning:
Balance, beginning of ye 26,36 74,50 164,63:
Partnership distributior (157) (319 (50)
Net income 48,29 90,44¢ 249,89:
Balance, end of ye: 74,50« 164,63: 414,47.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Ic
Balance, beginning of ye. 5,094 (875) (8,645
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, net of (6,772) 3,01( 724
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, néhx — (4,945 (1,587
Foreign currency translation adjustm: 803 (5,835 48,00(
Balance, end of ye: (875) (8,645 38,49¢
Total stockholder equity $1,013,76! $1,429,13 $3,556,47.
] ] ]

Number of shares
Common stock
Balance, beginning of ye 262,08 269,25( 277,25¢
Issuance of common stock for ce 4,59 5,831 10,02¢



Issuance of common stock for acquisitit

2,57( 2,17¢ 23,99(
Balance, end of ye: 269,25( 277,25¢ 311,27
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@solidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 48,29: $ 90,44¢ $ 249,89:
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided bgrafing
activities:
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized itse 18,231 25,24 25,45!
Provision for transaction loss — — 7,83
Depreciation and amortizatic 38,05( 86,64 76,57¢
Stoclk-based compensatic 7,141 3,091 5,95:
Tax benefit on the exercise of stock opti 37,48: 81,70¢ 91,231
Impairment of certain equity investmel — 16,24¢ 3,781
Minority interests and othe (1,475 (10,170 1,32¢
Gain on sale of asse — — (21,379
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquitesinesses
Accounts receivabl (48,862) (50,22)) (54,589
Funds receivabl — — (11,819
Other current asse (20,530 11,60" 10,71¢
Other nor-current asset (11,997 (4,787) (1,199
Deferred tax asse (8,257%) (11,409 8,13«
Accounts payabl (40€) (4,087 14,63
Funds payable and amounts due to custol — — (6,027)
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 31,16° 6,79( 35,48:
Deferred revenue and customer advai 6,65¢ 1,51¢ 2,78(
Income taxes payab 4,637 9,49¢ 41,11«
Net cash provided by operating activit 100,14¢ 252,11 479,90:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm (49,759 (57,420 (138,67()
Purchases of investmer (398,999 (602,48 (723,30)
Maturities and sales of investmel 248,54° 738,98 727,45!
Proceeds from sale of ass — 4,56( 35,77
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir — (112,730 (59,41))
Purchases of other n-current asset (5,850 (2,739 397
Net cash used in investing activiti (206,05/) (29,819 (157,759
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 45,53( 123,71( 252,18:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock by subsd 37,73t — —
Proceeds from (principal payments on) I-term debt 2,86¢ (21,88¢) (64)
Partnership distributior (157) (319 (50
Net cash provided by financing activiti 85,97¢ 101,50! 252,06°
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cashaénts — (2,702 11,13
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (19,92 322,09¢ 585,34«
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 221,80: 201,87 523,96¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $201,87: $ 523,96¢ $1,109,31
| | ]
Supplemental cash flow disclosur
Cash paid for intere: $ 1,91¢ $ 2,19t $ 1,49
Cash paid for income tax $ — $ — $ 2,382
Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Common stock issued for acquisiti $ 17,34: $ 128,54( $1,476,50.

Preferred stock issued for notes pay: $ 3,49« $ — $ o



The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@solidated Financial Statements.
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eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Blicies:

The Compan

eBay Inc. (“eBay”) was incorporated in Catif@ in May 1996, and reincorporated in Delawardjmil 1998. As of December 31, 2002,
through our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidis and affiliates, we had websites directed tde/éhe United States, Australia,
Austria, Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Irel#aty, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Singaporeitis&orea, Spain, Sweden,
Switzerland, Taiwan and the United Kingdom. We piered online trading by developing a Web-based aamitsnin which buyers and sellers
are brought together to buy and sell almost angthiie eBay online service permits sellers toitéshs for sale, buyers to bid on items of
interest, and all eBay users to browse throughdigems in a fully-automated, topically-arrangedvice that is available online seven days a
week.

On October 3, 2002, we completed our acdaisibf PayPal, Inc. in a tax-free, stock-for-sté@dnsaction. PayPal provides an online global
payments platform and is headquartered in Mountém, California. The PayPal financial statementsiacluded in our Consolidated
Financial Statements for the post-acquisition gefiom October 4, 2002 through December 31, 2002.

Stock splits

In April 2000, our Board of Directors approva two-for-one common stock split. Stockholderseabrd on May 9, 2000 received one
additional share for each share owned on May 2d0 28Il share and per share amounts in these Ciolasetl Financial Statements and related
notes reflect the stock splits in all periods presé.

Use of estimate

The preparation of Consolidated Financiate3teents in conformity with generally accepted actimg principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities and discséicontingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the Consolidated Financial Statements laadeported amounts of revenues and expenses dhangporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Principles of consolidation and basis of presemsa

The accompanying financial statements areaaated and include the financial statementsBafyeand our majority-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transattihave been eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidated accounts include 100 peraktite assets and liabilities of these majorityaed subsidiaries and the ownership interests
of minority investors are recorded as minority ies. Investments in entities where we hold mioaa 1 20 percent but less than a 50 percent
ownership interest and have the ability to sigaifity influence the operations of the investeeaam@unted for using the equity method of
accounting and the investment balance is includddrig term investments, while our share of theestges’ operations is included in other
income.

Certain prior period balances have been ssiflad to conform to the current period preseatati

Fair value of financial instrumen

Cash and cash equivalents are short-terrhyhiigiuid investments with original maturities thfree months or less when purchased. Our
financial instruments, including cash, cash eqeintd, accounts
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTI NUED)
receivable, and accounts payable are carried gtwbich approximates their fair value becauséhefdhort-term maturity of these instruments.

Short and long-term investments, which inelngarketable equity securities, municipal, govemina@d corporate bonds, are classified as
available-for-sale and reported at fair value ushregspecific identification method. Realized gaansl losses are included in earnings and were
immaterial in all periods presented. Unrealizechgaind losses are excluded from earnings and ezpasta component of other compreher
income (loss), net of related estimated tax prowisior benefits. Additionally, we assess whethesther-than-temporary impairment loss on
our investments has occurred due to declines irvédile or other market conditions. Declines im failue that are considered other than
temporary are recorded as an impairment of ceetqirity investments in the statement of income.

Derivative instrument

We recognize all derivative instruments om Iblalance sheet at fair value. Changes in thevdduie (i.e., gains or losses) of the derivatives
are recorded each period in the statement of incame¢her comprehensive income (loss). For a deviealesignated as a cash flow hedge, the
gain or loss on the derivative is initially repattes a component of other comprehensive incoms)(fvel subsequently reclassified into the
statement of income when the hedged transactiectafearnings. For derivatives recognized as avédire hedge, the gain or loss on the
derivative in the period of change and the offagttbss or gain of the hedged item attributed &htbdged risk, are recognized in the statement
of income. For derivatives not recognized as hedesgain or loss on the derivative in the penbdhanges is recognized as other income.

Concentrations of credit ris

Our cash, cash equivalents, investments and accoeteivable are potentially subject to concertratif credit risk. Cash, cash equivale
and investments are deposited with financial ing8tihs that management believes are of high copditity. Our accounts receivable are der
from revenue earned from customers located in ti$ &hd internationally. The revenues earned floert.S. site are denominated in
U.S. dollars and revenue earned from our internatisites are denominated in the country’s funei@urrency. Accounts receivable balances
are typically settled through customer credit candd, as a result, the majority of accounts re¢dévare collected upon processing of credit
card transactions. We maintain an allowance fobtfalaccounts receivable and authorized credisgtaipon our historical experience.
Historically, such losses have been within our etq@ns. However, unexpected or significant futthianges in trends could result in a
material impact to future statements of incomeashcflows. Generally, due to the relatively smallat amount of individual accounts
receivable, we do not require collateral on thedarices. The provision for doubtful accounts i®rded as a charge to operating expense,
while the provision for authorized credits is recizgd as a reduction of revenues.

We also entered into two interest rate sweifis two separate financial institutions to redwcg interest rate exposure on our lease
payments. If either of these financial institutiatould fail to deliver under these contracts, vag/ foe subject to variable interest rate
payments.

During the years ended and as of Decembe2@®1) and 2002, no customers accounted for morel@%b of net revenues or net accounts
receivable. During the year and as of DecembeRBQ], no customers accounted for more than 10%tofevenues and one customer
represented approximately 20% of net accountsvabks.
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Allowances for transaction loss

Our Payments segment is exposed to transdotises due to fraud, as well as non-performahti@rd parties and customers. We establish
allowances for estimated losses arising from prgingscustomer transactions, such as charge-backm&uthorized credit card use and
merchant related charge-backs due to non-delivegpods or services, Automated Clearing House, ©@HAreturns, and debit card overdrafts.
These allowances represent an accumulation ofsireated amounts, using an actuarial techniquessseey to provide for transaction losses
incurred as of the reporting date, including thiwsehich we have not yet been notified. The allovesnare monitored monthly and are upd;
based on actual claims data reported by our clpimsessors. Customers typically have up to 180 tafike transaction disputes.
Consequently, the time between estimating theposgisions and realization of the actual amoumsthigrt. The allowances are based on known
facts and circumstances, internal factors includingexperience with similar cases, historical diemvolving loss payment patterns and the
mix of transaction and loss types. Additions toahewance, in the form of provisions, are reflectss a general and administrative expense in
our results of operations, while writdfs to the allowance are made when a loss is éted to have occurred. Recoveries, when collectes
recorded as an increase to the allowance for teéinsdosses. As of December 31, 2002, the allowdactransaction losses totaled
$10.1 million and was included in other currenbiidies in our consolidated balance sheet.

Funds receivable and funds paya

Funds receivable and payable relate to oymeats segment and arise due to the time takeleao tansactions through external payment
networks. When customers fund their account ugieg bank account or credit card, or withdraw motwetheir bank account or through a
debit card transaction, there is a clearing pebiefre the cash is received or sent by PayPal]lysua or three days. Hence, these funds are
treated as a receivable or payable until the cashtiled.

Foreign currency

All of our foreign subsidiaries use the locatrency of their respective countries as theicfional currency. Assets and liabilities are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at thenbalaheet dates. Revenues, costs and expensemnafated into United States dollars at
average exchange rates for the period. Gains asédaesulting from translation are accumulatesl@smponent of other comprehensive
income (loss).

Realized gains and losses from foreign cayéransactions are recognized as other incomesnuhsignificant for all periods presented.

Property and equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at histbcigst less accumulated depreciation. Depreciaimhamortization are computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated usefulslivéthe assets, generally five years or lessdaipement and furniture, and up to thirty years
for buildings and building improvements.

Intangible asset

Intangible assets resulting from the acqgoisg of entities accounted for using the purchasthod of accounting are estimated by
management based on the fair value of assets egbdilentifiable intangible assets are comprisepuoéhased customer lists, developed
technologies, trade names, and other intangibletsidslentifiable intangible assets are being amestusing the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives ranging from two to sevearge
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Goodwill represents the excess of the pueeipaise over the fair value of the net tangible atahtifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. In accordance with StatemwfRinancial Accounting Standards No. 142 or SFAS N2, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill is no longer subjextimortization. Rather, goodwill is subject toestdt an annual assessment for impairment,
applying a fair-value based test.

Impairment of lon-lived asset:

We evaluate lontived assets for impairment whenever events or gasin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof an asset mq
not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 14dcounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lehiyed Assets.” An asset is
considered impaired if its carrying amount excelbdsfuture net cash flow the asset is expecte@teigte. If such asset is considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is messby the amount by which the carrying amount efdabset exceeds its fair market value.
We assess the recoverability of our long-lived emt@ngible assets by determining whether the untireal balances can be recovered through
undiscounted future net cash flows of the relatsts. The amount of impairment, if any, is measbesed on projected discounted future net
cash flows using a discount rate reflecting ourage cost of capital.

We evaluate goodwill, at a minimum, on anwairasis and whenever events and changes in gtaanges suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Impairment of gobdsviested at the reporting unit level by compgrthe reporting unit’s carrying amount,
including goodwill, to the fair value of the repiog unit. The fair values of the reporting unite astimated using a combination of the income,
or discounted cash flows, approach and the mapgggbach, which utilizes comparable companies’ datae carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is considemgaired and a second step is performed to medlseir@mount of impairment loss, if any.

Due to customer

Customers utilize our payment services togfer money via the Internet. Any stored value lieing from transactions in a customer’s
account represents a liability to the customer t@usrs can elect to sweep their account balanteshie PayPal Money Market fund to earn a
rate of return; otherwise, no interest is paid ostomer account balances.

Custodial account

We deposit all U.S.-based customer funddnaosferred to PayPal's Money Market Fund into FaldBeposit Insurance Corporation
insured bank accounts. FDIC insurance is availeblayPal customers if we (1) place pooled custdorets in bank accounts denominated
“PayPal as Agent for the Benefit of its CustomersSimilar caption, (2) maintain records sufficiémtidentify the claim of each customer in
FDIC-insured account, (3) comply with applicablelEDecordkeeping requirements, and (4) truly opeeat an agent of our customers. We
receive a custodial credit from our service prowidehe form of a reduction in transaction progeggees based upon balances held with each
institution. This credit is recognized as a redutiin processing costs.

Environmental expenditure

As a result of our 1999 merger with Buttddie we own real estate properties that are eitbed in our business or leased to unrelated
parties for various commercial uses. We have reatiedi responsibility for certain environmental astcuctural deficiencies. Liabilities are
recorded when environmental assessments are negdegliation obligations are probable, and the amstshe reasonably estimated. Estimated
liabilities of approximately $5.8 million at Decemb31, 2001 and $404,000 at December 31,
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2002 are included within other liabilities. Dueuncertainties inherent in the estimation procdssamounts accrued for these matters may be
revised in future periods as additional informati@ebtained.

Comprehensive incon

Comprehensive income includes all changesiity (net assets) during a period from non-ovaoerrces. The change in comprehensive
income for all periods presented resulted fromifpreurrency translation gains and losses, unredland realized gains and losses on
investments, and unrealized losses on cash flogdwed

Revenue recognitic

Our net revenues result from fees associattdour transaction, third-party advertising, eneend services, and offline services in our
U.S., International and Payments segments. Transa&venue is derived primarily from listing, fae¢ and final value fees paid by sellers
fees from payment processing services. Revenue thiothparty advertising is derived principally frothe sale of online banner and
sponsorship advertisements for cash and throughrterangements. End-to-end services revenueiigedeprincipally from contractual
arrangements with third parties that provide tratisa services to eBay users. Offline services mereeis derived from a variety of sources
including seller commissions, buyer premiums, bideégistration fees and auction-related servicekiding appraisal and authentication,
primarily related to our Butterfields and Kruse sigliaries.

Listing and feature fee revenues are receghiatably over the estimated period of the auctibite revenues related to final value fees are
recognized at the time that the transaction isessgfally concluded. A transaction is consideredsssfully concluded when at least one buyer
has bid above the seller’s specified minimum padceeserve price, whichever is higher, at the drnti@transaction term. We earn transaction
fees, allocated to our Payments segment, from psirtg transactions for certain customers. Reveesidting from a payment processing
transaction is recognized once the transactioongptete. Provisions for doubtful accounts, autredtizredits and transaction losses are ma
the time of revenue recognition based upon ouptiéstl experience. The provision for doubtful aaetsus recorded as a charge to operating
expense, while the provisions for authorized ceeditd transaction losses are recognized as redsdfmet revenues.

Our thirdparty advertising revenue is derived principallynfrthe sale of online banner and sponsorship ddearénts for cash and throt
barter arrangements. To date, the duration of annér and sponsorship advertising contracts hagdainom one week to three years, but is
generally one week to three months. Advertisinggnexes on both banner and sponsorship contracte@rgnized as “impressions” (i.e., the
number of times that an advertisement appearsgagaiewed by users of our websites) are deliveredtably over the term of the agreement
where such agreements provide for minimum monthiguarterly advertising commitments or where summmitments are fixed throughout
the term. Barter transactions are valued basednmuats realized in similar cash transactions o@ogwithin six months prior to the date of
the barter transaction. To the extent that sigaiftaelivery obligations remain at the end of dqukor collection of the resulting account
receivable is not considered probable, revenuedefesred until the obligation is satisfied or tirecertainty is resolved. These amounts are
included in deferred revenue in our balance shidetd-party advertising revenues, including battansactions, totaled 3%, 11% and 5% of
our consolidated net revenues for the years enaégegmber 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. iRevfrom barter arrangements totaled
$2.5 million, $10.4 million and $10.1 million foné¢ years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2G&2atévely.

Third-party advertising revenues may be affedy the financial condition of our customers agdhe success of online promotions in
general. Recently, the industry pricing of onlinlvartisements has deteriorated. Our third-partyegtésing revenue historically has been
dependent on the performance of the
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sales force of AOL Time Warner, or AOL. Reductiarthirdparty advertising, whether due to softening ofdeenand for online advertising
general or particular problems facing parties witiom we have contractual arrangements, would adleadfect our operating results. Unlike
our auction transaction revenues, third-party aibiag revenues are derived from a highly conceetr@ustomer base. During the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 2001, thpdrty advertising revenues were attributable ta@gmately 20 customers each year. During the pede(
December 31, 2002, third-party advertising reverwe® derived from approximately 30 customers. Addally, our advertising sales
representative agreement with AOL has not beemdgtd or renewed and is scheduled to terminate awhviil, 2003, with AOL to continue

its electronic delivery of our online advertiseneefdr a specified wind-down period. After March 2003, we will be dependent on the efforts
of our existing internal sales staff.

Our end-teend services revenues are derived principally fcomtractual arrangements with third parties thatjge transaction services
eBay users. To date, the duration of our end-tosemdices contracts has ranged from one to thraesyEnd-to-end services revenues are
recognized as the contracted services are deliteredd users. To the extent that significant @tlans remain at the end of a period or
collection of the resulting receivable is not calesed probable, revenues are deferred until thgatinn is satisfied or the uncertainty is
resolved. End-tend services revenues were 7%, 4% and 2% of owotidated net revenues for the years ended Decedih@000, 2001 ar
2002, respectively.

Similar to our third-party advertising revesyour end-to-end services revenues may be alfegtéhe financial condition of the parties
with whom we have these relationships and by tleeesss of online services and promotions in genAdaditionally, end-to-end services
revenues are also concentrated among a small cessttase. End-to-end services revenues were ddriwedapproximately 10 customers in
2000 and from approximately 20 customers in eac06fL and 2002.

Offline revenue represents seller commissiboger premiums, bidder registration fees, andiancelated services including appraisal i
authentication derived from the traditional auctsamvices provided by Butterfields and Kruse Inétional. Butterfields auction revenues are
derived primarily from auction commissions and f&esn the sale of property through the auction pesc Revenues from seller commissions
and buyer premiums are recognized at the datesthted auction is concluded. Service revenuesexieat! from financial, appraisal and other
related services and are recognized as such seaieaendered. During 2002, we sold our Buttetfi@ind Kruse subsidiaries.

Website development co

We expense costs related to the planningopastiimplementation phases of our website developmefgorts. Direct costs incurred in the
development phase are capitalized and amortizedtbggroduct’s estimated useful life of one tethyears as charges to cost of net revenues
Costs associated with minor enhancements and maimte for the website are included in cost of eeénues in the accompanying
consolidated statement of income.

Advertising expens

We expense the costs of producing advertia&sra the time production occurs, and expensedbseof communicating advertising in the
period during which the advertising space or aietisiused. Internet advertising expenses are rezetjbased on the terms of the individual
agreements, which is generally over the greatéinefatio of the number of impressions deliveredrdiie total number of contracted
impressions, or on a straight-line basis over énmtof the contract. Advertising expenses totasl4 million, $127.1 million, and
$181.8 million during the years ended Decembe2800, 2001, and 2002, respectively.
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Stockbased compensatic

Generally accepted accounting principles g®eompanies with the option of either recognizimg fair value of option grants as an
operating expense or disclosing the impact ofvfalue accounting in a note to the financial stat@meConsistent with predominant industry
practice, we account for stock-based employee cosgi®n arrangements using the intrinsic value otktivhich calculates compensation
expense based on the difference, if any, on the afahe grant, between the fair value of our st the exercise price and have elected to
disclose the impact of fair value accounting fotiap grants. Had we elected to recognize the faline of option grants as an operating
expense, our reported net income would have bdestamtially reduced, as follows (in thousands, pkper share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income, as reporte $ 48,29: $ 90,44¢ $ 249,89:
Add: Amortization of stoc-based compensation expense determined und
intrinsic value methoi 7,141 3,091 5,95:
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expensendeted under fair value
based method for all awards, net of (169,65¢) (211,52¢) (192,907
Pro forma net income (los $(114,22)) $(117,98) $ 62,94.
I I I
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic— as reportel $ 0.1¢ $ 03¢ $ 081
pro forma $ (0.4 $ (049 $ 0.2
Diluted — as reportet $ 017 $ 0.3z $ 0.8t
pro forma $ (0.4%) $ (049 $ 0.21

The 2000 and 2001 pro forma amounts have aépisted to reflect the correction of previousiycalated pro forma option pricing and
amortization amounts. These adjustments are limddde footnote disclosure of non-cash SFAS N@&, 1&ccounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” pro forma expense and do not res@hy changes or impact to our historically rembgtatements of income or cash flows.
The previously reported diluted pro forma net Ipssshare was $(0.36) and $(0.05) for the yearsdBe:cember 31, 2000 and 2001,
respectively.

We account for stock-based arrangementsdssuson-employees using the fair value based ndethibich calculates compensation
expense based on the fair value of the stock gilargmg the Black-Scholes option pricing modehat date of grant.

Income taxe

We account for income taxes using an assktialility approach, which requires the recognitaf taxes payable or refundable for the
current year and deferred tax liabilities and asBatthe future tax consequences of events that haen recognized in our financial statements
or tax returns. The measurement of current andideféax assets and liabilities is based on promisof enacted tax laws; the effects of future
changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipafetedessary, the measurement of deferred tax dsgetduced by the amount of any tax ben:
that are not expected to be realized based oraéaiévidence.
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Recent accounting pronounceme

Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disgdsctivities

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Stadsl@oard or FASB issued Statement of Financialodoting Standards No. 146 or SFAS
No. 146,“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disgab Activities,” which nullifies Emerging IssuesskaForce, or EITF Issue No. 94-
3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Teimation Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Acii\including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a ligbfor a cost associated with an exit or dispasalvity be recognized when the liability is
incurred and states that an entity’s commitmerant@xit plan, by itself, does not create a presbligation that meets the definition of a
liability. SFAS No. 146 also establishes that faitue is the objective for initial measurementhd# tiability. The provisions of SFAS No. 146
are effective for exit or disposal activities iatttd after December 31, 2002. We do not expeadbetion of SFAS No. 146 to have a material
impact upon our financial position, cash flows esults of operations.

Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure RequiremdotsGuarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Intetigtion No. 45 or FIN 45, “Guarantor’'s Accountiaigd Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Inetiiss of Others.” FIN 45 requires a guarantoe¢ognize a liability for obligations it has
undertaken in relation to the issuance of a guagarit requires that the liability be recordedait ¥alue on the date that the guarantee is issued
It also requires a guarantor to provide additiatistlosures regarding guarantees, including thereaf the guarantee, the maximum potential
amount of future payments under the guaranteesahrging amount of the liability, if any, for theigrantor’s obligations under the guarantee,
and the nature and extent of any recourse prodsiomvailable collateral that would enable thergo®or to recover the amounts paid unde|
guarantee. The disclosure requirements under Flard®ffective for the interim and annual perioddieg after December 15, 2002. The
recognition and measurement provisions under Flldréeffective for guarantees issued or modifi¢erddecember 31, 2002. We do not
expect the adoption of FIN 45 to have a materigdant upon our financial position, cash flows owitsof operations. See “Note 11 —
Commitments and Contingencies.”

Accounting for Stock Based Compensa

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS N8, 14ccounting for Stock Based Compensation — Titéms and Disclosure.” SFAS 148
provides two additional transition methods for gesi that voluntarily adopt the fair value methddexording expenses when accounting for
stock based compensation. Further, the statemeuires disclosure of comparable information forcalinpanies regardless of whether, when,
or how an entity adopts the preferable, fair vdlased method of accounting. These disclosuresoaveequired for interim periods in addition
to the traditional annual disclosure. The amendmtnSFAS No. 123, which provides for additionahsition methods, are effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2002. Thdaksce provisions are effective for fiscal yeardiag after December 15, 2002 and have
been incorporated into the notes to the accompagrfinancial statements. We have chosen not to vatilyp adopt the fair value method of
accounting for employee stock option grants attihig.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “€tidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisénpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51,“Consolidated Financial Statements,” addressesatiolagion by business enterprises of certain véei@iiterest entities where there is a
controlling financial interest in a variable intetentity or where the variable interest entitysinet have sufficient
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equity at risk to finance its activities withoutditional subordinated financial support from otparties. This interpretation applies immedia

to variable interest entities created after Jan34r2003 and applies in the first year or intep@niod beginning after June 15, 2003 to variable
interest entities in which an enterprise holds ratéde interest that it acquired before Februard)3. We expect that the adoption of FIN 46
will require us to include our San Jose facilifiesse arrangement and potentially certain investsriarour Consolidated Financial Statements
effective July 1, 2003. In connection with our Sase facilities lease arrangement, our balance &ikmving the July 1, 2003 adoption of

FIN 46 will reflect changes to record assets of@42nillion, liabilities of $122.5 million and nocentrolling interests of $3.9 million. In
addition, our post-adoption income statement \eillect the reclassification of rent expense paysé&oim operating expenses to interest
expense as well as the recognition of depreciaiqense, within operating expenses, for our uskeobuildings. We estimate that the income
statement impact of consolidating our San Joséitfasilease will consist of a charge against eaysj net of taxes, of $5.6 million upon the
adoption of FIN 46 on July 1, 2003. This chargd weflect the accumulated depreciation chargeswiatd have been recorded in previous
periods had consolidation of the San Jose fadiltieen required. Additionally, we have not decidéether we will keep the existing financi
arrangement or purchase the San Jose facilitiestighor not we keep the existing financing arramg@, we anticipate recording additional
annual operating expenses of $1.7 million, netrés, for the recognition of depreciation expenséhe buildings. In the event we purchase
San Jose facilities, we will also pay $126.4 millieliminate financing payments and settle ouritwerest rate swaps we used to establish a
fixed rate of interest for $95 million of our fineing arrangement. During the year ended Decemhe2®X2, our financing payments related to
the San Jose facilities totaled $7.9 million. AttBmber 31, 2002, settlement of our two interest sataps would have resulted in a loss of
$10.9 million.

Note 2 — Net Income Per Share:

Basic net income per share is computed biglidig the net income for the period by the weighagdrage number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incoree ghare is computed by dividing the net incomeHerperiod by the weighted average
number of common and common equivalent sharesamatisty during the period. Potentially dilutive setes, composed of unvested,
restricted common stock and incremental commoneshiasuable upon the exercise of stock optionsaamchnts, are included in diluted net
income per share to the extent such shares atérdilu
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The following table sets forth the computataf basic and diluted net income per share fop#rgods indicated (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Numerator:
Net income $ 48,29¢ $ 90,44¢ $249,89:
| | |
Denominator
Weighted average common sha 266,82¢ 272,56° 287,68(
Weighted average restricted common st (15,050 (3,59¢) (184)
Denominator for basic calculatic 251,77¢ 268,97: 287,49¢
Weighted average effect of dilutive securiti
Warrants 93 — —
Weighted average restricted common st 15,05( 3,59¢ 184
Employee stock optior 13,42: 8,02¢ 5,14(
Denominator for diluted calculatic 280,34¢ 280,59! 292,82(
L] L] L]
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3 $ 0.87
L] L] L]
Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.8t
| | |

Note 3 — Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intarigle Assets

During 2001 and 2002, we completed a numbpumhase acquisitions that are summarized agvisl(in thousands):

Post Net Identifiable Deferred Aggregate
Acquisition  Acquisition Tangible Intangible Tax Unearned Minority Purchase
Company Name Date Ownership Assets Assets Liabikits Compensation Goodwill Interest Price
Internet Auction February
2001 50.1% $ 67,67( $ 9,00C $ (3,600 = $ 82,69: $(33,839) $ 121,92
iBazar May 2001 10C% 4,69¢ 2,14( (856) — 119,60t — 125,58¢
Billpoint January
2002 10C% 6,64¢ 1,75C (700) — 35,84¢ — 43,54
EachNet March 200: 38% 9,37¢ 2,28( (912) — 19,25: — 30,00(
NeoCom April 2002 10C% 1,44¢ 16& (66) — 9,76( — 11,30¢
PayPal October
2002 10C% 104,96! 277,00( (34,959 9,94 1,135,55. — 1,492,50.
eBay Australia and New October
Zealand 2002 10C% 444 4,65( (1,860) — 62,26¢ — 65,50(
Total $195,24: $296,98! $(42,957) $9,94: $1,464,97: $(33,839) $1,890,36:
L] L] I | I I |

Tangible net assets were valued at theire@sge carrying amounts as we believe that thesmuaits approximated their current fair values
at the respective acquisition dates. The valuaifddentifiable intangible assets acquired was Basemanagement’s estimates using a
valuation report prepared by an independent théndypvaluation consultant. Such assets consiseeéldped technologies, customer lists, trade
names and other acquired intangible assets ingdumbntractual agreements. Identifiable intangilsigets are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of threes/gmseven years. We believe the straight-linehowbf amortization best represents the
distribution of the economic
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value of the identifiable intangible assets. Godldwpresents the excess of the purchase pricetbednir value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in eachrtass combination. In accordance with SFAS No. §#ddwill is no longer subject to
amortization. Rather, goodwill is subject to atstean annual assessment for impairment, applyfag-&alue based test. See “Note 1 — The
Company and Summary of Significant Accounting He&c'

We account for our investment in EachNet gishve equity method of accounting and the totabgtment, including identifiable intangible
assets, deferred tax liabilities and goodwill,I&ssified on our balance sheet as a long-term tmes.

The following table presents details of thieghased intangible assets acquired during 200thdnsands, except number of years):

Estimated Estimated Estimated
Acquisition Developed Useful Life Customer Useful Life Trade Useful Life
Company Name Date Technologies (in years) Lists (years) Names (in years)
Billpoint January 200: $ 1,75( 3 $ — — = =
EachNet March 200z 22¢ 2 26€ 4 1,78¢ 4
NeoCom April 2002 78 2 87 4 — —
PayPal October 200: 16,50( 3 196,90( 7 63,60( 7
eBay Australia and New Zealal October 200: — — 4,65( 4 — —
Total $18,55¢ $201,90: $65,38¢
| | |
Billpoint

On May 25, 1999, eBay acquired a 100% inteéreBillpoint, Inc. a leading provider of billingnd payment fulfilment services. On
February 24, 2000, Billpoint reincorporated in Dredae and sold 350 shares of common stock and B89%hares of Series A preferred stock
to Wells Fargo Bank, which represented an approdim@5% ownership interest in Billpoint. Simultanesly, we exchanged 25,999,350 of
Billpoint’'s common shares for 2,599,935 sharesafes A preferred stock. The merger was accoumteds a pooling of interests.

In January 2002, we acquired the 35% minanitgrest in Billpoint held by Wells Fargo Bankarpurchase acquisition for approximately
$43.5 million in cash.

In October 2002, we acquired PayPal, Inc. ddrabined operations of PayPal and Billpoint fonan Bayments segment. We will be
phasing out Billpoint operations during the firstifrof 2003 and we expect the goodwill and ideatife intangible assets related to the
acquisition of the 35% minority interest to contnto benefit the ongoing operations.

eBay Japan

On February 17, 2000, eBay Japan Inc., alwloained subsidiary of eBay, entered into a shddehtand marketing services agreement
with NEC Corporation. In accordance with the shataéér agreement, NEC acquired 30% of eBay Japameaouided marketing services to
eBay Japan in an effort to deliver a minimum lesfetonfirmed registered users. As compensatiomnhfiemmarketing and other services
performed by NEC, eBay Japan paid NEC an annu#&lami-fee of approximately $1.5 million. On July, 01, eBay purchased the
outstanding 30% interest in eBay Japan held by RE@pproximately $1.7 million. In March 2002, eBdgpan ceased business operations.

Half.com

On July 11, 2000, we acquired a 100% intarebtalf.com, Inc. Half.com was incorporated in Rgylvania in June 1999 and provides a
fixed-price, online e-commerce site that allowsgledo buy
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and sell new and previously owned goods at disasliptices. In connection with the merger, we issoedeserved for issuance, a total of
approximately 5,484,000 shares of eBay common dtélalf.com’s existing shareholders, option hotdand warrant holders as consideration
for all shares of capital stock, options and wasarf Half.com held immediately prior to consumroatdf the merger. The merger was
accounted for as a pooling of interests.

Internet Auction Co., Ltc

On February 15, 2001, we acquired an appratéiy 51% majority interest in Internet Auction Clotd., a South Korean company in a
purchase acquisition for $120.8 million in cash arairred $1.1 million of direct acquisition cositisternet Auction introduced online trading
South Korea when it launched in April 1998. Sharekternet Auction are listed on the KOSDAQ. Thansaction was accounted for using
purchase method of accounting and accordinglytehelts of operations of Internet Auction have bieefuded in our Consolidated Financial
Statements since February 15, 2001.

iBazar S.A.

On May 18, 2001, we acquired a 100% intéredazar S.A. iBazar is a French-based corporattiat introduced online trading in France
and at the time of the acquisition had websiteBalgium, Brazil, France, Italy, the NetherlandsitBgal, Spain and Sweden. As consideration
for the acquisition, we issued shares in a Belgigsidiary exchangeable for 2,045,054 shares of eBamon stock valued at $120.4 million,
paid $2.3 million in cash to certain shareholderd imcurred acquisition-related costs of approxehe$2.9 million. The shares issued in the
acquisition were valued on May 18, 2001, the filste on which the number of eBay’s shares andrtimuiat of other consideration became
fixed, using the average closing price of eBay eb&or the five days prior to and including thesihg date of May 18, 2001. The transaction
was accounted for using the purchase method ofuatiogy and accordingly, the results of operatiohi®azar have been included in our
Consolidated Financial Statements since May 181200

We have established plans to exit certain actwitieiBazar and to involuntarily terminate cert@azar employees. In accordance with-
exit plan included in our purchase accounting, apipnately $2.0 million has been accrued for thénested costs associated with severance,
contract terminations and financial advisory arghldees and has been included in net tangibleésasse of December 31, 2002, we have
utilized all of the $2.0 million liability. In adtbn, we are in the process of resolving variou®ine tax related contingencies that could result
in an increase in goodwill to the extent that afauarable outcome is reached.

In September 2001, we entered into a strategginess relationship with MercadoLibre, a legdinline auction site serving Latin America.
In exchange for our equity interest in iBazar Cotud, a Brazilian subsidiary of iBazar, we receigetd.5% ownership interest in
MercadoLibre. We accounted for this investment ieréhdoLibre using the cost method, and no gainss Was recognized on the exchange.

NeoCom Technology Co., Ltd. Acquisit

In April 2002, we acquired a 100% interesNisoCom Technology Co., Ltd. in a purchase acqaisfor $11.1 million cash and incurred
direct acquisition costs of $198,000. NeoCom presidn online Chinese language marketplace foraldéng of goods and services in Taiwan.
The results of operations of NeoCom have been deddun our Consolidated Financial Statements siymd 2002.

110




Table of Contents
eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTI NUED)
EachNet, Inc. Equity Investme

On March 17, 2002, we acquired a 38% intdéresite outstanding common stock of EachNet, wbich is a 33% interest on a fully diluted
basis, in a purchase acquisition for $30.0 millimeash. EachNet provides an online marketplacéh®trading of goods and services for both
individual and business customers in the PeoplefsuRlic of China.

We account for our investment in EachNet gighve equity method of accounting and the totabstment, including identifiable intangible
assets, deferred tax liabilities and goodwill,lzssified on our balance sheet as a Itarga investment. In periods subsequent to the aitipn,
our consolidated financial results include 38%haf het income or loss of EachNet together with &imadion expense relating to acquired
intangible assets.

PayPal, Inc. Merge

On October 3, 2002, we acquired a 100% istérePayPal, Inc. in a tax-free, stock-f&inck transaction. PayPal provides a global pays
platform and is headquartered in Mountain View,if@atia. We acquired PayPal to provide a signifitaimproved customer experience to
eBay'’s users by making their trading experiencéeeasafer, and faster. The PayPal financial statémare included in our Consolidated
Financial Statements for the post-acquisition gefiom October 4, 2002 through December 31, 2002.

The purchase price reflects the issuancppfaximately 23,825,000 shares of our common stodkayPal stockholders using a fixed
exchange ratio of 0.39 shares of our common stockdch PayPal share of common stock outstandir@ctober 3, 2002. In addition, we
assumed PayPal’s outstanding stock options. Thedhie of the shares of our common stock issuedPayPal options assumed is based on a
per share value of $57.92, which is equal to oughted average closing share price for the fivditrg days surrounding the July 8, 2002
acquisition announcement date. Total purchase @icemprised of the following (in thousands):

Fair value of eBay common stock isst $1,379,94.
Fair value of PayPal stock options assumed by ¢ 96,56(
Estimated acquisition related co 16,00(
Aggregate purchase pri $1,492,50.
.|

The acquisition related costs consist primari investment banking fees, legal and accounta®s, printing costs, and other direct costs of
the acquisition.

The intrinsic value of PayPal’'s unvested camrmatock options and restricted stock subjectporehase assumed in the merger totaled $9.¢
million as of October 3, 2002 and was recordedresmned stock-based compensation. For purposegdaigse price allocation, PayPal’s
outstanding options that vested solely as a restite proposed merger were deemed to be vestefitlas October 3, 2002 acquisition date.
The unearned stock-based compensation relatirgetarivested options and the restricted stock sutgjgepurchase will be amortized on an
accelerated basis over the remaining vesting pafitess than one year to three years, consistightthe graded vesting approach described in
FASB Interpretation No. 28.

In connection with the acquisition of PayPal, maragnt is in the process of formalizing an integralan to exit certain activities of bc
eBay and PayPal. Preliminary plans include theightion of redundant contracts, phase-out of eBaynients by BillPoint, discontinuance of
PayPals online gambling payment processing and othertsfiimed at achieving operational synergies. Weeeixto finalize the adoption of
formal integration plan after our assessment isptete, likely in the second
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quarter of 2003. During the fourth quarter of 2082, discontinued PayPal’s online gaming paymentgssing. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, revenues generated from Paydtdire gambling payment processing, including rexes generated prior to our
acquisition of PayPal on October 3, 2002, represk6®o of PayPal's total revenues for 2002. Includettie PayPal purchase price allocation
as of December 31, 2002 is $38.5 million of acdiaisirelated accrued expenses related primaritpécelimination of redundant contracts.
Additional costs related to the integration plafi v accounted for as charges to our income sttér adjustment to the purchase price
allocation in accordance with SFAS No. 146, “Acctog for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal iittes” and EITF Issue Number 95-3,
“Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Biness Combination.”

Acquisition of Remaining Equity Interest in eBatalia & New Zealand Pty Lic

In October 2002, we acquired the remainintp Bterest in our eBay Australia & New Zealand foienture held by ecorp Limited in a
purchase acquisition for approximately $65.5 millio cash. This acquisition increased our ownershihis entity to 100%. The results of
operations of eBay Australia and New Zealand haenhincluded in our Consolidated Financial Stateamgimce October 2002.

Sale of Butterfields, Kruse and Certain Real EsRr@perties

During 2002 we sold our Butterfields and Kassibsidiaries as well as several real estate frep&e acquired as a result of our 1999
acquisition of Butterfields. During the year end@dscember 31, 2002, we recognized an aggregateofj&ih7.1 million, which is reported in
other income.

Pro forma financial informatioi

The following unaudited pro forma financiafarmation presents the combined results of eBatgrihet Auction, iBazar, and PayPal as if
the acquisitions had occurred as of the beginnfrRP01 and 2002, respectively, after applying éeréaljustments, including amortization of
goodwill and other acquisition related transactiinghousands except per share amounts):

Year ended
December 31

2001 2002
(unaudited’

Net revenue $857,29( $1,377,77.
L] |

Net income (loss $(62,007) $ 231,31t
| ]

Net income (loss) per shal

Basic $ (0.2)) $ 0.7€
| ]

Diluted $ (0.2)) $ 0.74
L] |

The pro forma financial information does netessarily reflect the results of operations wWwild have occurred had eBay, Internet
Auction, iBazar, and PayPal constituted a const#dl@ntity during such periods. See “Note 1 — Thenfany and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, Recent Accounting Pronouncemmén
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill information for each reportable segmis as follows (in thousands):

December 31, Goodwill Goodwill December 31,
2001 Acquired Disposed of Adjustments 2002
Segments
u.S. $ 14,91t $ 107,81( $(3,24)) $ (83Y) $ 118,64
International 172,91 93,00¢ — 28,84: 294,76:
Payment: — 1,061,86 — — 1,061,86
$187,82¢ $1,262,68: $(3,247) $28,001 $1,475,27
| | [ | | |

The increase in goodwill during the year ehBecember 31, 2002, resulted from business adigumisiand from foreign currency
translation adjustments relating to goodwill asated with prior period acquisitions, partially @ty the disposal of goodwill in connection
with the sale of our Butterfields and Kruse sulzgi@is. Goodwill of $1.1 billion resulted from ourcuisition of PayPal, $62.3 million resulted
from our acquisition of the remaining 50% interies¢Bay Australia and New Zealand, $35.8 milliosuiéed from our acquisition of the
remaining 35% minority interest in Billpoint, $1%dllion resulted from our acquisition of a 38%enest in EachNet, and $9.8 million resulted
from our acquisition of NeoCom. Foreign curren@nglation adjustments are included in the adjustsnesiumn.

We account for our investment in EachNet gisive equity method of accounting and the totabgtment, including identifiable intangible
assets, deferred tax liabilities and goodwill, lessified on our balance sheet as a long-term imasg. As of December 31, 2002, the goodwill
related to our acquisition of EachNet totaled $1filion.

The following table summarizes the pro foimaact of excluding goodwill amortization from oeperating results (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2000 December 31, 2001
Net income as reporte $48,29¢ $ 90,44¢
Add: Goodwill amortization expen: 62C 32,58¢
Net income, pro form $48,91¢ $123,03:
| I
Basic net income per shal
As reportec $ 0.1¢ $ 0.34
Pro forma $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4¢
Diluted net income per shat
As reportec $ 0.17 $ 0.3z
Pro forma $ 0.17 $ 044
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The components of acquired identifiable igible assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 200. December 31, 200;

Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Intangible asset:

Developed technologie $ 9,07¢ $(3,64%) $ 5,43¢ $ 27,82t $ (8,359 $ 19,47:
Customer list: 6,52¢ (2,30€) 4,21¢ 208,81 (10,729 198,08t
Trademarks 1,39( (350) 1,04( 65,14( (3,235 61,90¢
All other 972 (85E) 11€ 732 (739)

$17,96¢ $(7,159) $10,81( $302,50¢ $(23,044) $279,46!

| | | | | |

All of our acquired identifiable intangiblesets are subject to amortization. Acquired idexti€ intangible assets are comprised of
developed technologies, customer lists, trademarid other acquired intangible assets includindractual agreements. Developed
technologies are being amortized over a weightedame period of approximately three years. Custdistsrare being amortized over a
weighted average period of approximately sevensydaademarks are being amortized over a weightethge period of approximately seven
years. No significant residual value is estimatadliie intangible assets. Aggregate amortizatigrenasge for intangible assets tota
$4.0 million and $16.3 million for the years endagcember 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

As of December 31, 2002, expected futurenigitzle asset amortization expense is as followsh@sands):

Fiscal Years

2003 $ 47,55¢
2004 47,05:
2005 43,84
2006 38,297
2007 37,21
Thereaftel 65,50¢
$279,46"

|

Note 4 — Segment Information:

Segment selection is based upon our intemynization structure, the manner in which ourapens are managed, the measurement of
the performance of our operations evaluated by gemant in the chief operating decision-maker capattie availability of separate financial
information, and overall materiality considerations

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the growflour international operations and our acquisitdd PayPal prompted us to change the basis
for measuring our financial performance and evalgatesource allocations, and therefore our reptatsegments. We changed our business
segments from Online and Offline services to Ur8ernational, and Payments operations. This neynsat structure reflects the new
composition of our business. Additionally, we chatghe internal measurement basis of segment peafaze from operating income before
certain items to a direct contribution measurerofitability.

114




Table of Contents

eBay Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTI NUED)

Direct contribution consists of revenues léissct costs. Direct costs include specific cadtset revenues, sales and marketing expenses,
and general and administrative expenses over vgggment managers have direct discretionary costioh as advertising and marketing
programs, customer support expenses, bank chagngessions for doubtful accounts, authorized creditd transaction losses. Expenses over
which segment managers do not have discretionaryapsuch as site operations costs, product dpwetnt expenses, and general and

administrative costs, are monitored by managenieatugh shared cost centers and are not evaluatbd imeasurement of segment
performance.

The U.S. segment comprises U.S. online teadlatforms other than PayPal and Billpoint. Theetnational segment comprises our
international online trading platforms. The Paynsesggment comprises our global payments platfommsisting of our PayPal and Billpoint
subsidiaries. The Payments amounts reflect Billpwimistorical operations and PayPal's operatianste post-acquisition period from
October 4, 2002 through December 31, 2002. We hessously announced that we intend to discontiBilipoint’'s operations in the first half
of 2003. Billpoint’s operations will continue to beflected in the Payments segment results uriimtind-down of Billpoint’s operations.

The following tables illustrate the financpsrformance of our new reporting segments. Addily, we have presented our current period

financial performance on a reporting segment basisistent with our old reporting segments for psgs of comparison during this transition
period (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 200

uU.S. International Payments Consolidated

Net revenues from external custom $397,40° $28,97¢ $5,03¢ $431,42:
Direct costs 179,63! 21,747 4,04¢ 205,42¢
Direct contributior 217,77. 7,231 99t 225,99¢
Operating expenses and indirect costs of ¢ 191,00¢
Income from operatior 34,99«
Interest and other income and expense 46,331
Interest expens (3,379
Impairment of certain equity investmel —
Income before income taxes and minority inte $ 77,957
|

December 31, 200!

uU.S. International Payments Consolidated
Total asset $1,122,01. $22,76: $37,621 $1,182,40:
— — — —
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Year Ended December 31, 200

uU.S. International Payments Consolidated
Net revenues from external custom $617,01: $114,16: $17,64¢ $748,82:
Direct costs 246,66 63,96+ 18,64( 329,26¢
Direct contributior 370,34 50,19¢ (992) 419,55!
Operating expenses and indirect costs of ¢ 279,12°
Income from operatior 140,42t
Interest and other income and expense 41,61
Interest expens (2,85))
Impairment of certain equity investme (16,24%)
Income before income taxes and minority inte $162,94:
|

December 31, 2001

uU.S. International Payments Consolidated
Total asset $1,321,34 $322,56: $34,62: $1,678,52!
— — — —

Year Ended December 31, 2002

uU.S. International Payments Consolidated

Net revenues from external custom $816,59¢ $302,13¢ $95,36¢ $1,214,101
Direct costs 300,65¢ 123,78« 68,10" 492,55(
Direct contributior 515,93 178,35: 27,26 721,55(
Operating expenses and indirect costs of ¢ 367,35:
Income from operatior 354,19°
Interest and other income and expense 49,20¢
Interest expens (1,497)
Impairment of certain equity investme (3,78))
Income before income taxes and minority inte $ 398,13
.|

December 31, 2002

u.s. International Payments Consolidated
Total asset $1,858,23! $583,25: $1,682,95 $4,124,44.
.| L] .| .|
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Net revenues from extern
customers
Direct costs

Direct contributior

Operating expenses and indir

costs of sale

Income from operatior

Interest and other income and

expense, ne

Interest expens

Impairment of certain equity
investment:

Income before income taxes ¢

minority interes!

Total asset

Net revenues from extern
customers
Direct costs

Direct contributior

Operating expenses and indir

costs of sale

Income from operation

Interest and other income and

expense, ne

Interest expens

Impairment of certain equity
investment:

Income before income taxes
and minority interes

Total asset
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2001 2002
uU.s. International Payments Consolidated u.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
(Unaudited)
$133,63¢ $17,90¢ $2,55( $154,09( $187,76¢ $52,55: $4,787 $245,10¢
55,47¢ 11,77¢ 3,002 70,25¢ 69,15¢ 23,95« 5,41: 98,52(
78,157 m E) 83,83« 118,61t E E) 146,58t
53,12« 75,87(
30,70 70,71¢
14,97¢ 7,381
(719 (685)
(9,929 (1,189
$ 35,05( $ 76,231
L] L]
March 31, 2001 March 31, 2002
uU.s. International Payments Consolidated u.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
$1,021,29: $198,42¢ $37,30¢ $1,257,02! $1,391,31 $361,95¢ $35,747 $1,789,01.
— — — — — — — —
Three Months Ended June 30
2001 2002
u.s. International Payments Consolidated uU.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
(Unaudited)
$150,76: $25,93¢ $4,20¢ $180,90! $197,26( $64,30¢ $4,71¢ $266,28°
59,93¢ 13,70¢ 4,45( 78,094 68,697 29,63: 6,14¢ 104,47t
90,82¢ ﬂ E) 102,81: 128,56 34,67, (].,E) 161,80¢
67,357 82,36¢
35,454 79,44
10,14 9,001
(959) (69¢)
$ 44,64; $ 87,74«
— —
June 30, 2001 June 30, 2002
u.s. International Payments Consolidated U.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
$1,116,56. $323,22. $35,87¢ $1,475,65 $1,500,31: $436,70¢ $33,00! $1,970,02:
| L] I | I L] I |
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and minority interes

Total asset
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Income from operation
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Interest expens
Impairment of certain equity
investment:
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and minority interes

Total asset
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Three Months Ended September 30,

2001 2002
u.s. International Payments Consolidated uU.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
(Unaudited)
$159,01- $30,23: $5,18( $194,42¢ $206,49: $76,19¢ $ 6,094 $288,77¢
63,83: 16,66: 5,19¢ 85,69: 76,28¢ 31,75« 7,222 115,26(
95,18: E E) 108,73¢ 130,20 44,44( (].,E) 173,51¢
76,084 83,40:
32,64¢ 90,11%
9,30z 8,72¢
(45¢) (50
(6,329 (2,600
$ 35,16¢ $ 96,19¢
I L]
September 30, 2001 September 30, 2002
uU.s. International Payments Consolidated u.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
$1,184,88: $327,32: $36,40: $1,548,60 $1,581,38 $467,78. $31,39¢ $2,080,56!
— — — — — — — —
Three Months Ended December 31
2001 2002
u.s. International Payments Consolidated uU.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
(Unaudited)
$173,60( $40,09: $5,71( $219,40: $225,07¢ $109,08: $79,76¢ $413,92¢
67,41¢ 21,82 5,99( 95,227 86,52¢ 38,44+ 49,32% 174,29
106,18! @ a) 124,17: 138,55! 70,63¢ 30,44 239,63!
82,55¢ 125,71:
41,61¢ 113,92
7,18¢ 24,09
(722) (59)
$ 48,08: $137,95¢
L] L]
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002
u.s. International Payments Consolidated u.s. Interational Payments Consolidated
$1,321,34 $322,56: $34,62: $1,678,52! $1,858,23! $583,25: $1,682,95' $4,124,44.
— — — — — — — —
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The following tables illustrate the financgsrformance of our old reporting segments for psesoof comparison during this transition
period (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Online Offline Consolidated

Net revenues from external custom $391,95: $39,47: $431,42:
| I |

Operating income (loss), as adjus $ 49,76" $(2,319) $ 47,45t
Interest and other income and expense 45,64 69& 46,337
Interest expens (2,077 (2,309 (3,379
Impairment of certain equity investmel — — —
Amortization of certain nc-cash item: (11,469 (997) (12,46))
Income before income taxes and minority inte $ 82,87 $(4,917) $ 77,953
| | |

December 31, 200!

Online Offline Consolidated

Total asset $1,084,90! $97,49¢ $1,182,40:
| | |

Year Ended December 31, 200

Online Offline Consolidated

Net revenues from external custom $714,40! $34,41¢ $748,82:
| | |

Operating income (loss), as adjus $185,29¢ $(2,759 $182,53¢
Interest and other income and expense 42,20¢ (595) 41,61
Interest expens (1,686 (1,165 (2,85))
Impairment of certain equity investmel (16,245 — (16,245
Amortization of certain nc-cash item: (41,772 (341) (42,119
Income before income taxes and minority inte $167,80: $(4,860) $162,94:
| | |

December 31, 2001

Online Offline Consolidated

Total asset $1,588,91: $89,61¢ $1,678,52!
| | |

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Online Offline Consolidated

Net revenues from external custom $1,192,29i $21,80¢ $1,214,101
| | |

Operating income (loss), as adjus $ 384,06! $(4,15¢) $ 379,90°
Interest and other income and expense 38,97% 10,23: 49,20¢
Interest expens (18) (1,479 (1,497)
Impairment of certain equity investmel (3,78)) — (3,78))
Amortization of certain nc-cash item: (25,670 (40) (25,710
Income before income taxes and minority inte $ 393,57: $ 4,56( $ 398,13



December 31, 2002

Online Offline Consolidated
Total asset $4,079,99; $44,45; $4,124,44.
| | |
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Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
United States net revenu $402,44¢ $634,65¢ $ 897,70:
International net revenu 28,97¢ 114,16: 316,39¢
Net revenue $431,42: $748,82: $1,214,10!

| | |

December 31,

2001 2002
United States lor-lived asset: $149,13: $1,648,75:
International lon-lived asset: 191,85° 304,76"
Total lonc-lived asset: $340,98¢ $1,953,51!

| |

Note 5 — Investments:

At December 31, 2001 and 2002, short and-teny investments were classified as availablestde securities, except for restricted cash
and investments, and are reported at fair valdelisvs (in thousands):

December 31, 2001

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Shor-term investments
Municipal bonds and not¢ $149,44¢ $ 724 $ 2 $150,16¢
Government securitie 10,70( — 2 10,69¢
Time deposits and oth 38,58¢ — — 38,58¢
Total $198,73( $ 724 $ 4 $199,45(
| [ ] [ | [ |
Long-term investments
Restricted cash and investme $129,18: $ 43¢ $ — $129,61-
Municipal bonds and note 8,14¢ 25 2 8,171
Government securitie 251,13. 1,25¢ (26€) 252,12:
Equity instrument: 26,557 14¢ — 26,70¢
Total $415,01¢ $1,86¢ $(270) $416,61:
| [ ] [ | [ |
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December 31, 200:

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Shor-term investments
Municipal bonds and note $ 46,15¢ $ 157 $ — $ 46,31t
Government securitie — — —
Time deposits and oth 43,29¢ 152 (76) 43,37t
Total $ 89,457 $ 30¢ $ (76) $ 89,69(
| | | |
Long-term investments
Restricted cash and investme $133,54: $1,10: $ — $134,64«
Municipal bonds and note 388,53! 2,32( — 390,85!
Government securitie 35,23: 281 (291) 35,22
Equity instrument: 44,15( — — 44,15(
Total $601,45¢ $3,70¢ $(297) $604,87:
| | | |

The estimated fair value of short and longatévestments classified by date of contractuaiuniiy at December 31, 2002 are as follows
(in thousands):

December 31

2002
Due within one year or le: $ 89,69(
Due after one year through two ye 221,68
Due after two years through three ye 179,27
Due after three years through four ye 25,41
Restricted cash and investments expiring in less five year: 134,64
Equity investment 43,86(
$694,56:

I

During the year ended December 31, 2001, we redandpairment charges totaling $16.2 million relgtprimarily to the impairment in tl
fair value of certain private equity investmentse Yécorded impairment charges for these investnerssd upon the deterioration of the
financial condition of certain investees and bageah financing obtained by certain other investges valuation below which we made our
investment.

During the year ended December 31, 2002 emerded impairment charges totaling $3.8 millidatirg to the impairment in the fair value
of certain equity investments. We recorded an apprately $640,000 impairment charge for an equityestment in a public company based
upon a significant decline in the market value wf imvestment during 2002, which we determineddmther than temporary. We recorded
$3.2 million in impairment charges for certain @i equity investments based upon the deteriorafitime financial condition of certain
investees and as a result of financing obtaineddntain other investees at a valuation below whietmade our investment.
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Note 6 — Derivative Instruments:

We entered into two interest rate swaps o 19, 2000 and July 20, 2000, with notional amewfits45 million and $50 million
respectively, that allow eBay to receive floatiagerreceipts based on London Interbank Offered, RatelBOR, in exchange for making fixed
rate payments of approximately 7% of the notiomabant. These interest rate swaps effectively chéimgénterest rate exposure on a portic
the operating lease payments relating to eBay’garate office facilities from a floating rate tdiged rate. The fair value of the interest rate
swaps as of December 31, 2002 was an unrealizedfd&l0.9 million and is recorded in accumulatéeeocomprehensive loss on the balance
sheet.

On January 1, 2001, we adopted Statement of FiabActounting Standards No. 133, as amended, anduimulative effect of this chan
in accounting method relating to the interest sataps was an immaterial gain on net income andceselized loss, net of tax, of
approximately $2.6 million on other comprehensiveoime. During the year ended December 31, 2002]dtieative losses reclassified into
rent expense were offset by decreases in rent egpetating to the operating lease. At DecembeRBQ2, we expect to reclassify $3.5 million
of losses, net of tax, on the interest rate swapa ficcumulated other comprehensive income toengmeense during the next twelve months.

As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanddngdrd foreign exchange contracts with notionaliealequivalent to approximately
$69 million with maturity dates within 92 days. Theeward contracts are used as to offset changtinalue of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies as a result oeoey fluctuations. Transaction gains and lossethe contracts and the assets and liabilities
are recognized each period in our statement ofirecand generally are offsetting. As of December2BD2, the fair values of the forward
contracts were immaterial.

Note 7 — Balance Sheet Components:

December 31,

2001 2002

(in thousands
Accounts receivable, ne

Accounts receivabl $130,72° $162,15!
Allowance for doubtful accoun (26,45)) (27,73))
Allowance for authorized credi (2,577 (2,977

$101,70: $131,45!

Write-offs against the allowance for doubticbounts and authorized credits were $12.5 mjlldi®.3 million, and $23.8 million in the
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 ctaspp.

December 31,

2001 2002

(in thousands
Other current asset

Prepaid expense¢ $27,73¢ $32,31¢
Restricted cash and investments, cur 5,73¢ 21,44¢
Deferred tax asset, curre 13,61¢ 16,03(
Other 11,59¢ 27,19t

$58,68! $96,98¢

122




Table of Contents
eBay Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTI NUED)

December 31

2001 2002

(in thousands
Property and equipment, ni

Computer equipment and softw: $ 163,13° $ 266,58¢
Land and buildings, including building improveme 60,72¢ 31,92¢
Aviation equipmen 30,47:
Leasehold improvemen 12,34¢ 18,91¢
Furniture and fixture 15,891 19,34t
Vehicles and othe 11,93( 12,54(

264,03: 379,78¢
Accumulated depreciatic (121,68) (161,76

$ 142,34¢ $ 218,02¢

During the years ended December 31, 20001 20@ 2002, we capitalized $9.4 million, $6.7 noifliand $15.5 million, respectively, for
site-related software and development costs. T&pieciation expense was $36.7 million in 2000, 84dillion in 2001, and $60.7 million in
2002.

December 31

2001 2002

(in thousands
Accrued expense

Acquisition related accrued expen: $ — $ 40,47t
Compensation and related bene 17,867 27,681
Advertising 14,02¢ 32,42(
Contractors and consultar 9,57( 12,615
Professional fee 7,732 10,24:
Other current liabilitie: 45,39¢ 75,88:

$94,59: $199,32!
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Note 8 — Debit:

Notes and capital leases payal

Notes and capital leases payable are aswfsllo

December 31

2001 2002

(in thousands

Mortgage notes, prime plus 1%, due September 318 $ 1,581 $ —
Mortgage notes, LIBOR plus 1.75%, due January 082 3,271 —
Mortgage notes, 8.175%, due February 15, 2 11,73: —
Mortgage notes, 8.175% variable, due August 1, : 9,30( 9,30(
Loan on foreclosed property, prime plus 2%, dueusa®, 201¢ 48¢ —
Capital lease 1,745 8,64
Subtotal 28,11¢ 17,94«
Less: Current portio (16,117 (4,145
Long-term portion $ 12,00¢ $13,79¢
I |

Notes payable consists of a $9.3 million mage note payable to a financial institution cellalized by commercial real estate property.
The mortgage note payable carries a variable istteade, which was 8.175% at December 31, 2004sadde in 2023. Capital leases consist of
various leases that totaled $8.6 million at Decandtie 2002. During 2002, we reduced our notes payaltligations in connection with the s
of several properties underlying the notes payable.

Minimum annual repayments on the note andtaldpases at December 31, 2002, are as followth@usands):

Year ending

December 31, Total
2003 $ 4,14¢
2004 2,51
2005 1,47¢
2006 61€
2007 —
Thereaftel 9,19-
$17,94«
|

We also maintain a credit facility with $14wllion available for equipment purchases and $28illion available for standby letters of
credit with a financial institution. The credit fhty is due August 6, 2005. No amounts were outdtag at December 31, 2002.

Note 9 — Operating Lease Arrangements:

On March 1, 2000, we entered into a five-ylease for general office facilities located in Sase, California. This five-year lease is
commonly referred to as a synthetic lease becauspriesents a form of off-balance sheet financinder which an unrelated third-party funds
100% of the costs of the acquisition of the propartd leases the asset to us as lessee. Undeyaser $tructure, upon termination or
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expiration, at our option, we must either purchigeproperty from the lessor for a predeterminedwmhor sell the real property to a third-
party. Our San Jose lease consists of approximd6£y000 square feet of office space. As of DecerBbhe2002, we occupied approximately
314,000 square feet of this total office spaceofaronline businesses and subleased additionatspdbe facility to third parties.

Payments under our lease are based on tlge4bdllion cost of the property funded by the thparty and are adjusted as the London
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, fluctuates. Untler terms of the lease agreement, the lease tat@sion March 1, 2005, unless extende
September 1, 2006. At any time prior to the finalnionths of the lease term, we may, at our oppanchase the property for approximately
$126.4 million. If we elect not to purchase thepedy, we will undertake to sell the facility to@or more third parties and have guaranteed to
the lessor a residual value equal to approxima&8%p of the $126.4 million cost of this property.r@uaximum exposure to loss is the entire
amount of $126.4 million if we default on any oftzén lease obligations and financial covenantthif payment is made, we would then
receive title to the property. At December 31, 2002 had not made a decision with respect to thiempve will pursue at the end of the lease
term. Management believes that the contingentliiglielating to the residual value guarantee wét have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations.

In addition, we are required to place $126illion of cash and investment securities as cetttfor the term of the lease and to maintain
certain financial covenants. The cash and investisegurities are restricted as to their withdrafn@h a thirdparty trustee and are classifiec
long-term restricted cash and investments on olamnica sheet. In the event of a default under tagelethe collateral could be used to pay the
purchase price of the property and the lease woallicbrminated. At December 31, 2002, we were ingtiamce with our financial covenants
under the lease.

If our lease were terminated, and we becadtigated to pay the purchase price of the landtanldiings, we would show the cost as an
asset on our balance sheet and our restrictedacabimvestments position would be reduced by theusinof the purchase price. Currently, we
reflect rent payments as operating expenses ostatament of income. In the event we were requogulirchase the land and buildings, our
rent expense would cease and we would subsequentiyd depreciation expense for the buildings tiveir estimated useful lives as operal
expenses.

We entered into two interest rate swaps o 19, 2000 and July 20, 2000 to reduce the impfagttanges in interest rates on a portion of
the floating rate operating lease for our facitiSee “Note 6 — Derivative Instruments.”

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “€tidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisénpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51,“Consolidated Financial Statements,” addressesatiolagion by business enterprises of certain végiaiterest entities where there is a
controlling financial interest in a variable intetentity or where the variable interest entitysinet have sufficient equity at risk to finance its
activities without additional subordinated finan@apport from other parties. This interpretati@plées immediately to variable interest enti
created after January 31, 2003 and applies initsteykar or interim period beginning after June 2803 to variable interest entities in whict
enterprise holds a variable interest that it aeglibbefore February 1, 2003. We expect that thetadopf FIN 46 will require us to include our
San Jose facilities lease arrangement and potigntedtain investments in our Consolidated Finanstatements effective July 1, 2003. In
connection with our San Jose facilities lease garent, our balance sheet following the July 1 328foption of FIN 46 will reflect changes
record assets of $126.4 million, liabilities of $12 million and non-controlling interests of $3.4lion. In addition, our post-adoption income
statement will reflect the reclassification of rempense payments from operating expenses to ghtexpense as well as the recognition of
depreciation expense, within operating expensegiuouse of the buildings. We estimate that tleeime statement impact of consolidating
San Jose facilities lease will consist of a chag@inst earnings, net
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of taxes, of $5.6 million upon the adoption of B on July 1, 2003. This charge will reflect thewoulated depreciation charges that would
have been recorded in previous periods had comgigidof the San Jose facilities been required.al¥e expect the accounting change to re¢
in a one-cent decrease in net income per basie $&001 and 2002 and have no impact on dilutediregs per share.

Our U.S. segment occupies approximately 4B uare feet of commercial office space in thaddrnStates. We occupy 314,000 square
feet of commercial office space in San Jose, Qalifounder the terms of our synthetic lease foramporate headquarters. We own and
occupy approximately 72,000 square feet of comrakoffice space in Salt Lake City, Utah for our destic customer support center. We le
and occupy an additional 48,000 square feet of ceraial office space in various domestic locatioorstfie operations of certain
U.S. subsidiaries.

Our International segment leases approxim®0,000 square feet of commercial office spacEicountries for our international
operations, including the operations of our Soutingén majority-owned subsidiary.

Our Payments segment leases approximatelyp@@&quare feet of commercial office space inthiged States and the United Kingdom.
In addition, our Payments segment owns approximé&2lacres of land near Omaha, Nebraska, on whidb#®00 square foot facility is under
construction. Upon completion, this facility wilbbise the primary customer service operations cémt@ur Payments segment.

We also have lease obligations under cedtiiar non-cancelable operating leases. Future mimimental payments under all non-
cancelable operating leases, exclusive of the uabkichlue guarantee on our general office facdlitecated in San Jose, California, at
December 31, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending Operating
December 31, Leases
2003 $16,41(
2004 17,05¢
2005 9,63(
2006 7,56¢
2007 6,10¢
Thereaftel 19,90¢
Total minimum lease paymer $76,68!
I

Lease obligations related to our generateffacilities in San Jose, California are estimét@sked on market interest rates (LIBOR) at
December 31, 2002, adjusted to reflect the twaésterate swaps and certain collateral assumptiR&st expense in the years ended
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, totaled $4.8omjl$5.7 million, and $3.6 million, respectively.

Note 10 — Purchase and Sale of Properties or Propgrinterests:

From time to time and in the ordinary cour§business, we elect to sell properties previotsly for lease, or purchase properties or
property interests for future rental. In March 206ar Butterfields subsidiary sold its Chicago prap for approximately $4.5 million in cash
and recognized a gain of $189,000. During 2002s@ld nine properties related to our Butterfieldsssdiary for approximately $21.8 million
in cash and recognized gains of $10.6 million.
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Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies:
Litigation

On April 25, 2001, our European subsidiaréay GmbH and eBay International AG, were suetbytres Rolex S.A. and certain Rolex
affiliates, or Rolex, in the regional court of Cotee, Germany. The suit subsequently was transféorétke regional court in Dusseldorf,
Germany. Rolex alleged that our subsidiaries wafringing Rolex’s trademarks as a result of usetbng counterfeit Rolex watches through
our German website. The suit also alleges unfairpatition. Rolex sought an order forbidding theesafl Rolex watches on the website as well
as damages. In December 2002, a trial was helteimiatter and the court ruled in favor of eBay lbeauses of action. Rolex has appealed the
ruling, but the appeal has not yet been briefeleaird.

On September 26, 2001, a complaint was bledlercExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsydand ReturnBuy, Inc. in the
Eastern District of Virginia (No. 2:01-CV-736) ajieg infringement of three patents (relating toilmalauction technology, multiple database
searching and electronic consignment systems) egkirgg a permanent injunction and damages (incfutteble damages for willful
infringement). We answered the complaint, denyhegdllegations. In April 2002, we filed four mot®for summary judgment relating to the
three patents in suit. The court denied three aetmotions and deferred ruling on the fourth moté “Markman” hearing was held in July
2002 to define certain disputed terms in the pateartd in October 2002 the court issued its clainstruction findings. In October 2002, the
court gave us leave to amend our answer to indutlaim that MercExchange committed fraud on themgeoffice during the prosecution of
one of the patents. On the same date, the courtggtan part our pending summary judgment motidiectively invalidating the patent related
to online auction technology and rendering it uoecgable. In November 2002, we filed two additiosi@inmary judgment motions regarding
the patents. One motion was denied as moot; thex oths denied because the court found there wiatderissues of fact. In February 2003,
filed an additional summary judgment motion, whiglstill pending. Only two patents remain in theeat this time. Trial is scheduled for
April 22, 2003. We believe we have meritorious defes and will defend ourselves vigorously. Howegeen if successful, our defense age
this action will be costly and could divert our ragement’s time. If the plaintiff were to prevail any of its claims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modifylusginess practices or even be enjoined from coimdpatsignificant part of our
U.S. business. Any such results could materiallyrhaur business. We are unable to determine whanfial losses we may incur if this
lawsuit were to have an unfavorable outcome.

On September 6, 2002, a complaint was file&ibst USA Bank, N.A. against PayPal in the Didtof Delaware (No. 02-C\1-462) allegin
infringement of two patents relating to assigningaéias to a credit card so as to eliminate thel ieethe physical presence of the card in a
transaction and seeking a permanent injunctiondandages. PayPal believes it has meritorious dedearsetintends to defend itself vigorously.
However, even if successful, our defense agaiisttttion will be costly and could divert managethetime. If the plaintiff were to prevail ¢
its claims, PayPal might be forced to pay signiftcdamages and licensing fees or modify its busipeactices. Any such result could
materially harm our business. We are unable torgiéte what potential losses we may incur if thii suere to have an unfavorable outcome.

On August 16, 2002, Charles E. Hill & Assaes Inc., or Hill, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. Mgt Court for the Eastern District of Texas
(No. 2:02-CV-186) alleging that we and 17 other pamies, primarily large retailers, infringed thpsgents owned by Hill generally relating to
electronic catalog systems and methods for tratisipiénd updating data at a remote computer. Thesseks an injunction against continuing
infringement, unspecified damages, including tretdmages for willful infringement, and intereststsy expenses and fees. In January 2003,
the court granted the collective
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defendantsimotion to transfer the case from the court wheveai$ filed in Marshall, Texas to the Federal De$t€Gourt for the Southern Distr
of Indiana. We believe that we have meritoriousedsés and intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

On February 20, 2002, PayPal was sued irfdCaia state court in a purported class actiongatig that its restriction of customer accounts
and failure to promptly unrestrict legitimate acotsuviolates state consumer protection law and igrdair business practice and a breach of
PayPal’'s User Agreement. This action was refiletthwidifferent named plaintiff on June 6, 2002, anélated action was filed in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of [farnia on the same day. On March 12, 2002, PayRal sued in the U.S. District Court for
the Northern District of California in a purporteldss action alleging that its restrictions of ous¢ér accounts and failure to promptly unrestrict
legitimate accounts violates federal and state wmes protection and unfair business practice ldwe dourt has denied PayPal’s motion to
compel individual arbitration as required by the/Pal User Agreement and has invalidated that piavisf the User Agreement. The two
federal court actions have been consolidated irsiogle case. PayPal is defending itself vigorousily if it is unable to prevail in these
lawsuits, it may have to change its anti-fraud afiens in a manner that will harm its business e substantial damages. Even if its defense
is successful, the litigation could damage PayRepsitation, could require significant managemenét will be costly and could require
changes to its customer service and operationcthed increase its costs and decrease the efémess of its anti-fraud program.

Three purported class action complaints iigd following announcement of the PayPal mergeduly 2002 in the court of Chancery in
the State of Delaware in and for New Castle Colmytalleged stockholders of PayPal. Two additionapprted class action complaints were
filed in the Superior Court of the State of Califia, County of Santa Clara, by alleged PayPal $tolclers. These complaints name as
defendants PayPal and each member of its boarteaftars as well as eBay. The complaints are pteplaclass actions that allege, among
other things, that eBay controlled PayPal pricth® execution of their merger agreement, the defietsdoreached fiduciary duties they
assertedly owed to PayPal’s stockholders in commeetith PayPal entering into the merger agreeraedtthe exchange ratio in the merger is
unfair and inadequate. The plaintiffs seek, amahgrathings, an award of unspecified compensatamates. We believe that each of the
lawsuits was without merit and intend to defendselues vigorously.

Other third parties have from time to timaicied, and others may claim in the future that asehnfringed their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We have in the pastioforced to litigate such claims. We may becormeemulnerable to such claims as laws ¢
as the Digital Millennium Copyright Act and Commaaiions Decency Act are interpreted by the courtsas we expand into jurisdictions
where the underlying laws with respect to the piiéhability of online intermediaries like oursels is less favorable. We expect that we will
increasingly be subject to copyright and tradenigitkngement claims as the geographical reach ofsewvices expands. We also expect that
we will increasingly be subject to patent infringemh claims as our services expand. In particularexpect that patent infringement claims
involving various aspects of our Payments busimégontinue to be made. We have been notifiedeferal potential disputes and are sut
to a suit by Tumbleweed Communications Corporatiiat is currently ongoing. These claims, whetheritmgous or not, could be time-
consuming, result in costly litigation, cause seevilpgrade delays, require expensive changes imetirods of doing business or could require
us to enter into costly royalty or licensing agreais, if available. As a result, these claims cdwddn our business.

Capital Expenditure

In June 2002, we entered into an agreememitthase computer equipment, software and retsrndces to expand our data warehousing
capabilities. Under the agreement we are obligetqray a
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minimum of $16.0 million to a third-party vendorrihg a 30-month period ending in December 2004.iiiinm purchases under the
commitment total $7.2 million during 2002, $4.5 linih in 2003, and $4.3 million in 2004. During thear ended December 31, 2002, we
purchased $8.6 million under this contract.

In December 2002, we entered into an agreetogrurchase computer equipment, software anteckiservices to further expand our data
warehousing capabilities. Under the agreement,r@®hbligated to pay a minimum of $20.0 million tthard-party vendor during 2003. The
commitment may be comprised of a maximum of $5 Maniin services purchases and the remainder cwssist of equipment and software
purchases. The agreement automatically renewdlftiti@nal one-year periods through 2005, if we dbcancel the agreement at the
conclusion of each year. In addition, this vendoeaded an existing promotions agreement and hasadgo pay us $5.0 million in quarterly
payments for promotion of their auctions on eBaman 2003 and to spend an additional $666,000iit jromotions during the year. The
promotions agreement, as amended, can be renewrth@imutual agreement of both parties for addéti@ne-year terms through 2005.
Equipment, software and services purchases widi¥pensed or capitalized in accordance with ourtaligation policy. Promotions will be
recognized as transaction revenue over the pefiddlivery.

Advertising

AOL interactive marketing agreeme

In April 2002, we amended our Interactive kting Agreement with AOL Time Warner, Inc., or AOAOL attained certain performance
goals in the contract year ending March 23, 2008,extended the amended agreement for an additfeaal through March 23, 2004. Under
the terms of the amended agreement, we will pay A@lits advertising services on a new user peréoroe basis, up to a maximum of
$15 million. We are recognizing these fees as saldsmarketing expense as such services are pthidem time to time, we have also
entered into incremental, discretionary purchasesleertising from AOL. Discretionary purchasesatetl $1.4 million during 2000,
$8.5 million during 2001, and $7.6 million during@2.

In the event that AOL'’s advertising servidesing the year achieve certain specified perforreagoals, AOL has the right to extend the
term of the amended agreement through March 23.200r financial obligation for this renewal ye#imany, will also be determined on a new
user performance basis and will amount to a maxirofi81.0.0 million.

Disney marketing agreeme

In February 2000, we entered a four-year etarg agreement with The Walt Disney Company, anBy, to provide us with online and
offline advertising and promotions and develop d@nded version of our online service. Subjeaeddain Disney performance obligations,
we were obligated to pay a minimum of $30 milliorOisney over the four-year term of the agreemianfugust 2001, we amended the terms
of the initial agreement and agreed to purchaséamam of $23.0 million in online and offline prortions through September 2004. We also
committed to provide Disney with online advertisimgthe eBay.com website valued at $3.5 milliorroligh December 31, 2002, we have
recognized $16.9 million in sales and marketingesge associated with the amended agreement.

Microsoft marketing and services agreeme

During 2001, we entered into a series of ratink and services agreements with Microsoft tiigate us to purchase online advertising
promotions, software and related services througgte3nber 2003, totaling $8 million. In addition,dvtisoft has agreed to purchase online
advertising and other
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services from us totaling $7 million over a thsgzar period ending June 2004. Through Decembe2@®12, we have recognized $4.3 millior
sales and marketing expenses for advertising ssviceived, incurred $3.0 million for Microsoffteeare products used to support our
operations and recognized $5.4 million in reverfoesdvertising services delivered to Microsoft.

Note 12 — Related Party Transactions:

We have entered into indemnification agreemeiith each of our directors, executive officemsl @ertain other officers. These agreements
require us to indemnify such individuals, to thédst extent permitted by Delaware law, for certbilities to which they may become sub,
as a result of their affiliation with us.

Commercial agreemen

A member of our Board of Directors and thedAand Compensation Committees of our Board oé&ors, is a general partner of certain
venture capital funds that beneficially hold in Hggregate a greater than 10% equity interestierakpublic and private companies. We
engaged in the following transactions with such panies:

In December 1999, we entered into an Intemmeaketing agreement with a privately held comptiuay facilitates buying decisions for
consumers. Under this agreement, we paid fees sippeting $4,000 in 2000, $503,000 in 2001, and narZ02 for the promotion of eBay.

In April 2000, we entered into an advertisargl promotions agreement with a privately held pany that provides a marketplace for live
advice. Under this agreement, we recognized reseatiapproximately $4.1 million in 2000, $1.0 nali in 2001, and $200,000 in 2002. In
1999, we invested $2.0 million in capital stocksath company and received a warrant to purchasgadd shares, which if exercised would
bring our total ownership to less than 5% of itpitzd stock.

In July 2000, we entered into an advertiging promotions agreement, which we subsequentlydeakin December 1999 and April 2000,
with a privately held company that provides a esthte solution to home buyers and sellers. Ugeterms of this agreement, we recognized
revenues of approximately $1.3 million in 2000, $800 in 2001, and none in 2002. The member oBward of Directors mentioned above
also a member of such compamBoard of Directors. In 2000, we invested $3.0iarilin capital stock of such company and receigedarran
to purchase additional shares, which if exercisedld/bring our total ownership to less than 5%tetapital stock.

In February 2001, our wholly owned subsididajf.com, entered into a content licensing aneimary sales agreement with a company
that provides order management and fulfillment Sohs. Under this agreement, such company agrekst its inventory on Half.com’s
website and to allow Half.com to use such compaostalog data to supplement Half.com’s existinglogt data. Half.com paid such company
approximately $100,000 in 2001 and $25,000 in 20@&er this agreement.

Separately, a member of our Board of Dirextera director and Chairman of the Executive Cotemiof the Board of Directors of a
company with whom PayPal, in September 2000, poi@Bay’s acquisition of PayPal, entered into atetfic marketing agreement. PayPal
paid the company approximately $670,000 in 2002utkis agreement. The agreement was terminatBeédember 2002, and PayPal paid the
company an early termination fee of $1,348,00aimuéry 2003 in accordance with the terms of theagent.

All contracts with related parties are aésaand terms that we believe are comparable wattetentered into with independent third parties.
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Notes receivable from eBay executive offit

At December 31, 2001 and 2002, we held natesivable from certain executive officers totalsy3 million and $3.5 million,
respectively. One note is a non-interest bearirtg rs3ued in connection with the relocation of erecutive officer to San Jose, California,
while the remaining notes bear interest at rates ®4%, 6.37%, and 6.40% per year. Each note iatedhlized by Deeds of Trust, which we
hold. The outstanding principal and interest are diod payable by 2005.

Note 13 — Preferred Stock:

We are authorized, subject to limitationsspribed by Delaware law, to issue Preferred Stoaknie or more series; to establish the number
of shares included within each series; to fix tigats, preferences and privileges of the sharesoli wholly unissued series and any related
qualifications, limitations or restrictions; anditwrease or decrease the number of shares ofegigg €but not below the number of shares of a
series then outstanding) without any further vataation by the stockholders. At December 31, 280d 2002, there were 10 million shares of
Preferred Stock authorized for issuance, and neeshasued or outstanding.

Note 14 — Common Stock:

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amendadhorizes us to issue 900 million shares of comstock. A portion of the shares outstanding
are subject to repurchase over a four-year permd the earlier of the issuance date or employeeddte, as applicable. At December 31,
2001, there were 772,000 shares subject to repseaiights at an average price of $0.36. At DecerBlbeP002, there were 184,000 shares
subject to repurchase at an average price of $0.89.

At December 31, 2002, we had reserved 22lllbmshares of common stock available for futigguiance under our stock option plans and
approximately 1.6 million shares of common stockikable for future issuance under the employeekspocchase plan.

In connection with certain stock option gsnte recorded unearned stock-based compensataimgo$187,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2000, $4.1 million in 2001, and $9ion in 2002. The unearned compensation for 230@lated to the acquisition of
Half.com and was amortized fully over the vestirgigd in 2000. The unearned compensation for 280&lated to the acquisition of Internet
Auction and is being amortized over thge&ar vesting period of the options, which endsd@2 The unearned compensation for 2002 is re
to the acquisition of PayPal and is being amortizeer the 3-year vesting period of the options,cliténds in 2005. Amortization expense
totaled approximately $7.1 million during the yeaded December 31, 2000, $3.1 million in 2001, $6lon in and 2002. The unearned
stock compensation balance at December 31, 200$%@amillion and will be amortized over the remamvesting period through 2005.

Note 15 — Employee Benefit Plans:

Employee Stock Purchase P!

We have an employee stock purchase planifeligible employees. Under the plan, shares ofammmon stock may be purchased over an
offering period with a maximum duration of two yeat 85% of the lower of the fair market value loa first day of the applicable offering
period or on the last day of the six-month purch@exéod. Employees may purchase shares havingua valt exceeding 10% of their gross
compensation during an offering period. During ykars ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, gegs@urchased 438,000, 124,000
and 176,000 shares at average prices of $8.437%$4Bd $45.25 per share, respectively. At DecerdbeP002, approximately 1.6 million
shares were reserved for future issuance. On eaxfady 1, the aggregate number of shares resesvégktiance under the employee
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stock purchase plan will be increased automatidatiyhe number of shares purchased under thisipldre preceding calendar year.
401(k) Savings Pla

We have a savings plan, which qualifies ur@kstion 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eipeting employees may contribute up to
25% of their annual salary, but not more than staguimits. We contribute one dollar for each @olh participant contributes, with a maxirr
contribution of $1,500 per employee. Our matchiagtdbutions were $1.8 million in 2000, $1.7 mikian 2001, and $2.3 million in 2002.

Stock option plan

We have stock option plans for directorsiceffs and employees, under which we have madetéoosidy nonqualified and incentive stock
option grants. These stock options generally v8%t Bne year from the date of grant and the remaweigs at a rate of 2.08% per month and
expire 10 years from the date of grant. Stock aystissued prior to June 1998, were exercisable ufatedy, subject to repurchase rights held
by us, which lapse over the vesting period. At Delger 31, 2002, stock options for 22.2 million slsarere available for future grant.

The following table summarizes activity under stock option plans for the years ended Deceibe2000, 2001 and 2002 (shares in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 26,23¢ $29.7: 26,24¢ $38.9¢ 35,10: $46.2¢
Granted 9,03 62.6¢ 19,62: 46.8i 16,86¢ 53.42
Exercisec (4,499 6.2 (6,817%) 17.2¢ (9,769 26.1¢
Cancellec (4,525 65.41 (3,955 51.2( (5,029 53.9¢
Outstanding at end of peric 26,24¢ 38.9¢ 35,10: 46.2¢ 37,17¢ 53.7:
I | | | | |
Options exercisable at end of per 7,00¢ 27.7: 10,46¢ 41.6i 13,124 52.5¢
| | I | I |
Weighted average grant date fair value of options
granted during perio $42.4¢ $23.67 $22.42
| | |
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The following table summarizes informatioroabfixed stock options outstanding at December28D2 (shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding at Options Exercisable at
December 31, 200: December 31, 200:
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Average Number of Average
Range of Shares Remaining Exercise Shares Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
$0.02- $40.06 9,60¢ 7.7 year $29.4¢ 4,11¢ $19.0:
$41.63- $55.23 6,45¢ 8.7 51.67 1,30( 47.9¢
$55.56- $58.05 6,99: 9.3 57.52 89C 57.9¢
$58.06- $65.24 6,587 8.5 61.57 2,017 61.7
$65.80- $84.81 6,30¢ 7.6 72.2% 3,761 73.4¢
$85.50- $116.31 1,227 6.8 95.52 98¢ 95.0¢
37,17¢ 8.3 $53.7:¢ 13,07: $52.5¢
— — — — —
Exercisable Unexercisable Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

In-the-Money 8,75k $39.4¢ 21,87: $52.3¢ 30,62¢ $48.67

Out-of-the-Money 4,31¢ 79.0¢ 2,232 74.2: 6,55( 77.4(

Total options outstandir 13,07: $52.5¢ 24,10: $54.3¢ 37,17¢ $53.7:¢

— — — — — —

In-the-money options are options with an ebger price lower than the $67.92 closing price wf@dmmon stock on December 31, 2002.
Out-of-the-money options are options with an exsergrice greater than the $67.92 closing pricauocommon stock on December 31, 2002.

2000 2001 2002
Grants during period as percent of outstandingest 3% 7% 5%
Total outstanding gran“in-the-money”’ as a percent of outstanding she 4% 10% 10%
Total outstanding grants as a percent of outstansliare: 10% 13% 12%
Grants to named officers during the period as aguerof total grants during the

period* 1% 10% 5%
Grants to named officers during the period as aquerof total outstanding

shares® 0% 1% 0%
Total outstanding grants to named officers as aguetrof total outstandin

grants* 10% 10% 9%
Total outstanding grants to named officers as aguerof total outstandin

shares* 1% 1% 1%

* Named officers are the chief executive officer #malother four most high-compensated executive officers during the applegbhr.
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Fair value disclosure

We calculated the fair value of each opticengion the date of grant using the Black-Schofg®o pricing model. The following are the
assumptions used for each respective period:

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
Risk-free interest rate 6.2% 4.4% 3.C%
Expected lives (in year: 3.C 3.C 3.C
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 115% 81% 68%

For options granted prior to our initial piehbffering, the fair value of option grants wagdetenined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with a zero volatility assumption. For op8agranted subsequent to our initial public offeritige fair value of option grants was
determined using the Black-Scholes option priciraget with volatility assumptions based on actuatxpected fluctuations in the price of our
common stock.

Nor-stockholder approved stock option gra

Prior to our initial public offering in 1998ur Board of Directors approved three stock opticants outside of formally approved
stockholder plans to two independent directors upeir joining our Board of Directors and to an exéve officer upon his hiring. All of such
option grants vested over 25% one year from the digrant, with the remainder vesting at a rat2.08% per month thereafter and expire
10 years from the date of grant. The options gratdehe independent directors were immediately@sable, subject to repurchase rights held
by us, which lapse over the vesting period. Thesesind conditions of such grants are otherwisetiichdnio nonqualified option grants made
under the stock option plan in effect at that tilethe time of such grants, members of our Bodmicectors (and their affiliates) beneficially
owned in excess of 90% of our then outstandingngotiterests. We have previously disclosed sucloogfrants in our Prospectus filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Septe?thdi998 in connection with our initial public effng under the headings
“Management — Director Compensation” and “ManagemerCompensation Arrangements.” Prior to 2002, dinector had exercised all
options under such grant. During 2002, the exeeutificer exercised all options available to himcannection with his departure from the
Company. At December 31, 2002, one grant remainéstanding to one independent director, with 780 $ifares to be issued upon exercise
of the outstanding options at an average exercise pf $1.56. There were no shares remaining abtglunder these nateckholder approve
plans for future issuance as of December 31, 2002.

Note 16 — Income Taxes:

The components of income including minoritterest in consolidated companies and equity isténepartnership income before income
taxes, for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2002002 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
United State: $80,87: $177,08:  $266,15:
International 147 (6,627  129,68!

$81,01¢ $170,45°  $395,83'
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The provision for income taxes is composetheffollowing (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
Current:
Federal $31,42( $ 70,55: $103,60¢
State and loce 8,49¢ 17,357 18,99:
Foreign 28C 3,54( 10,06:
40,19¢ 91,44¢ 132,66(
Deferred:
Federal (5,887 (10,187 8,091
State and loce (1,58¢) (1,259 5,19t

(7,479 (11,440 13,28¢

$32,72¢ $80,00¢  $145,94¢

The following is a reconciliation of the difence between the actual provision for incomestaxel the provision computed by applying the
federal statutory rate of 35% for 2000, 2001, a@@22to income before income taxes (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
Provision at statutory ra $28,357  $59,66(  $138,54:
Permanent difference

Foreign income taxed at different ra 2,87¢ (4,212) (5,40€)
Acquisition related expens: 17¢ 11,83¢ —
Stocl-based compensatic 12t — —
Subsidiary loss not benefitt 665 5,807 1,052
Tax-exempt interest incornr (4,247 (3,737) (2,37¢)
State taxes, net of federal ben 4,49: 10,46¢ 15,72:
Tax credits — — (2,02))
Other 27¢ 18¢ 434

$32,72¢ $80,00¢ $145,94¢

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reczeyl for the future tax consequences of differefmween the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases usingcéed tax rates
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in effect for the year in which the differences axpected to reverse. Significant deferred taxtasaed liabilities consist of the following (in
thousands):

December 31,
2001 2002
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss and cred $ 129,21: $ 207,27t
Accruals and allowance 21,40t 40,94:
Depreciation and amortizatic 11,38 (5,709
Net unrealized losse 2,37z 2,921
Net deferred tax asse 164,36¢ 245,43(
Valuation allowanct (129,217 (145,18)
35,157 100,24
Deferred tax liabilities
Acquisitior-related intangible (3,629 (111,849

$ 31,52  $ (11,599

As of December 31, 2002, our federal ancestat operating loss carryforwards for income tabppses were approximately $559.4 million
and $133.1 million, respectively. If not utilizetie federal net operating loss carryforwards welyim to expire in 2019, and the state net
operating loss carryforwards will begin to expine2006. The Company'’s federal and state reseaxotrédlit carryforwards for income tax
purposes are approximately $2.1 million and $2.lBani respectively. If not utilized, the federalxtcredit carryforwards will begin to expire
2021. Deferred tax assets of approximately $202li&mat December 31, 2002 pertain primarily tataén net operating loss carryforwards
resulting from the exercise of employee stock ay#tiof $145.2 million and the remainder relate®ssés at certain subsidiaries. We have ¢
valuation allowance against the amounts relatintpéoexercise of employee stock options due tantipact that uncertainties associated with
our future stock price and timing of employee stopkion exercises have on the likelihood that wi nealize future benefits from these
amounts. To the extent that we generate taxabteriadn future years, we will have the ability, ®dtjto carryforward limitations, to benefit
from these amounts. When recognized, the tax keneddited to stock options will be accounted fomasedit to additional paid-ioapital rathe
than a reduction of the income tax provision.

Note 17 — Subsequent Events:

Vancouver Leas

In February 2003, we entered into an opegatinblease for approximately 110,000 square feevwimercial office space in Vancouver,
British Columbia for a customer support center. $hblease commences on July 1, 2003 and ends ob&@0, 2011. Rental commitments
under the sublease total $11.8 million, includipgmting costs and taxes. In addition, we are ssbig approximately 37,000 square feet of
the leased space back to the prime lessee forasulzdly the same lease term. The prime lesseatalreommitments to eBay under the
sublease total $5.2 million, including operatingtscand taxes. The prime lessee has providedewoaable letter of credit for $7.8 million as
security for their obligations under this subleas@angement. The commitment under our subleaseelss the prime lessee’s sublease and
letter of credit, are denominated in Canadian dell@he dollar figures above are in U.S. dollamsvested from Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate as of December 31, 2002.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTI NUED)

Integration of Half.com Platforr

In March 2003, we announced our intentiofutly integrate the platform of Half.com, a whollyvned subsidiary acquired in July 2000,
with the eBay.com platform by the end of 2004. Halfn’s office in Pennsylvania, where 65 of its eaygles work, will be shut down once this
process is complete. Management is in the proddesmalizing an exit and integration plan and estgeo finalize the plan by the end of 20
Based on our preliminary estimates, we anticipastscrelated to employee retention and severarteotal approximately $3 million. If we
decide to exit Half's leased office facility, thenaunt of lease termination costs, excluding ansids sublease income, and fixed asset write-
offs will total approximately $2 million. Costs etéd to our exit plan will be recorded as chargesuwr income statement over the exit and
integration period in accordance with SFAS No. IA&counting for Costs Associated with Exit or Dogal Activities.”

PayPa’s Prior Services to Online Gambling Mercha

PayPal completed its exit from the business of ggeimg payments for online gambling merchants imddther 2002. Approximately 6%
PayPal’s revenues in 2002 were derived from th&rass. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal providedudunts and information related to its
services to online gambling merchants in responseféderal grand jury subpoena issued at the st@fithe U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March 28, 2003, PayPalawed a letter from the U.S. Attorney for the Eastistrict of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’s provision of servicesnbrne gambling merchants violated 18 U.S.C. 8§ 186the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of funds that are kndavhave been derived from a criminal offense origended to be used to promote or support
unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal togdtal civil forfeiture of the amounts it receivedconnection with such activities as well as
potential criminal liability. The letter offeredcmmplete settlement of all possible claims and gésifrom the U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri if Paypal paid the purportechaunt of its earnings derived from online gamblingrchants during the nine-month period
from October 26, 2001 to July 31, 2002, plus irgerBayPal acted in the good faith belief tha¢dsduct did not violate 18 U.S.C. § 1960 and
PayPal calculates that the amount of its earnira@a bnline gaming activities was less than assent¢ige letter. Although the outcome of this
matter is not yet determinable, the monetary anwassociated with this matter are not expecte@ve a material impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Supplementary Data — Quarterly Financial Data-Unaudted:

The following tables present certain unauwtitensolidated quarterly financial information &ach of the 12 quarters ended December 31,
2002. This quarterly information has been preparethe same basis as the Consolidated Financi@rats and includes all adjustments
necessary to present fairly the information for pleeiods presented. The results of operationsrfpraiarter are not necessarily indicative of
results for the full year or for any future periddhe quarterly financial data for the quarters pnésd below have been restated to reflect our
acquisition Half.com in July 2000, which was acdeuhfor as a pooling of interests.

Quarterly Financial Data
(unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2000
Net revenue $ 85,88 $ 98,15: $113,37 $134,00¢
| | | |
Gross profil $ 62,50¢ $ 73,94¢ $ 89,46: $110,05¢
| | | |
Net income $ 1,75¢ $ 7,45¢ $ 15,21 $ 23,86t
| | | |
Net income per sha-basic $ 0.01 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
| | | |
Net income per sha-diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.0z $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢
| | | |
Weighte(-average share
Basic 242,65¢ 249,82¢ 255,74 259,78¢
Diluted 281,34« 280,48 280,29 279,82:
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
2001
Net revenue $154,09( $180,90! $194,42! $219,40:
| | | |
Gross profil $127,08t $148,03: $159,47. $179,41.
| | | |
Net income $ 21,06 $ 24,60¢ $ 18,83¢ $ 25,93t
| | | |
Net income per she-basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢
| | | |
Net income per she-diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢
| | | |
Weightec-average share
Basic 264,27 267,07 271,23t 274,59¢
Diluted 278,73. 283,58: 282,31° 283,56
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
2002
Net revenue $245,10t $266,28" $288,77¢ $413,92¢
| | | |
Gross profil $203,82! $221,72¢ $243,40! $331,26:¢
| | | |
Net income $ 47,58¢ $ 54,30¢ $ 61,00 $ 86,99¢
| | | |
Net income per sha-basic $ 0.17 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2Z $ 0.2¢
| | | |
Net income per she-diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.21 $ 0.2¢




Weightec-average share
Basic 278,33. 280,70° 282,26' 308,64«
Diluted 284,89: 285,41t 286,59: 314,39
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Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2001 Pro Forma fair value stock option expense dilsure
Net income, as reporte $ 21,06’ $ 24,60¢ $ 18,83¢ $ 25,93¢
Add: Amortization of stoc-based compensation expense determ
under the intrinsic value methi 761 747 67€ 907
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expensendeed under fair
value based method for all awards, net of (59,99¢) (49,589 (54,467 (47,479
Pro forma net income (los $(38,16¢) $(24,23) $(34,959) $(20,63))
L] I L] I
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic— as reportet $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢
pro forma $ (0.19 $ (0.09 $ (0.19) $ (0.0¢)
Diluted — as reporte $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢
pro forma $ (0.19 $ (0.09 $ (0.13) $ (0.0¢)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
2002 Pro Forma fair value stock option expense dilsure
Net income, as reporte $ 47,58¢ $ 54,30¢ $ 61,00 $ 86,99¢
Add: Amortization of stock-based compensation espeatetermined
under the intrinsic value methi 91: (77¢€) 59C 5,22¢
Deduct: Total stoc-based compensation expense determined unde
value based method for all awards, net of (47,319 (43,819 (24,82)) (76,959
Pro forma net income (los $ 1,18: $ 9,71¢ $ 36,77: $ 15,26¢
| I | I
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic— as reportel $ 0.17 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.22 $ 0.2¢
pro forma $ 0.0C $ 0.0Z $ 0.1c $ 0.0t
Diluted — as reportet $ 0.17 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.21 $ 0.2¢
pro forma $ 0.0C $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1 $ 0.0t

The 2001 and 2002 quarterly pro forma amobat® been adjusted to reflect the correction e¥ipusly calculated pro forma option
pricing and amortization amounts. These adjustmenatdimited to the footnote disclosure of non-c&8MS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” pro forma expense and do soltiie any changes or impact to our historicalparted statements of income or cash
flows. The previously reported diluted pro formad imeome (loss) per share was $0.00 in the threetinsoended March 31, 2001, $0.01 in the
three-months June 30, 2001, $(0.03) in the threrthhsoSeptember 30, 2001, and $(0.03) in the threetims December 31, 2001. The
previously reported diluted pro forma net income gieare was $0.04 in the three-months ended MakrcB®2, $0.05 in the three-months
June 30, 2002 and $0.06 in the three-months Segiedh 2002.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

The financial statement Schedule Il — VALUAN AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS is filed as part of thiBorm 10-K.

Balance at Charged Charged to Charges Balance at
Beginning to Other Utilized/ End of
of Period Expense Account Write -offs Period
(in thousands)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Authorized
Credits
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 8,40: $18,231 $ — $(12,509) $ 14,13(
Year ended December 31, 2C 14,13( 25,24: — (20,349 29,02«
Year ended December 31, 2C 29,02 25,45t — (23,77°) 30,70:
Allowance for Transaction Losses
Year ended December 31, 2C — — — — —
Year ended December 31, 2C — — — — —
Year ended December 31, 2C — 7,832 8,84& (6,577%) 10,107
Tax Valuation Allowance
Year ended December 31, 2C 83,89¢ 17,69: — — 101,58t
Year ended December 31, 2C 101,58¢ 27,62¢ — — 129,21:
Year ended December 31, 2C 129,21 15,97( — — 145,18:

*  Assumed liability in connection with PayPal acqtiisi on October 3, 200:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rasrded, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtieereunto duly authorized, in the City of Sase]@tate of California, on the 31st day of
March, 2003.

eBay Inc.

/sl MARGARET C. WHITMAN

Margaret C. Whitman
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Directol

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that epehson whose signature appears below constitatea@points Margaret C.
Whitman, Rajiv Dutta and Michael R. Jacobson, amcheor any one of them, each with the power of tgultisn, his or her attorney-in-fact, to
sign any amendments to this report, with exhillieséto and other documents in connection therewith,the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming alltteach of said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitutgubstitutes, may do or cause to be done
by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, as amended, this report has figard below by the following persc
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities @ the dates indicated.

Date: March 31, 2003

Principal Executive Officer: Principal Financial Officer:

By : /sl MARGARET C. WHITMAN By : /s/ RAJIV DUTTA

Margaret C. Whitman Rajiv Dutta

President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer:

By : /s/ MARK J. RUBASH

Mark J. Rubash
Vice President, Finance and Chief Accounting Off

Additional Directors

By : /s/ PIERRE M. OMIDYAR By : /s/ PHILIPPE BOURGUIGNO"
Pierre M. Omidyar Philippe Bourguignon

Founder, Chairman of the Board and Direc Director

By :/s/ SCOTT D. COOk By : /s/ ROBERT C. KAGLE

Scott D. Cook Robert C. Kagle

Director Director

By : /s DAWN G. LEPORE By : /sf HOWARD D. SCHULTZ
Dawn G. Lepore Howard D. Schult.

Director Director
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Margaret C. Whitman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Fof@¥Klof eBay Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repogsdmt contain any untrue statement of a matex@ldr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included iistnnual report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officemsdal are responsible for establishing and maintgimlisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules -14 and 15-14) for the registrant and hax

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedor@ssure that material information relating te thgistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tperiod in which this annual report
is being preparec

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati§slosure controls and procedures as of a datén@0 days prior to the filing
date of this annual report (I Evaluation Dat”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusadyaut the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Da

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have disclosed, based on our most recent &ty to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of registri's board of directors (or persons performing theévedent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies in the design oeation of internal controls which could adversaffect the registrant’s ability to

record, process, summarize and report financia datl have identified for the registrant’s auditmmg material weaknesses in internal
controls; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal controls; an

6. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have indicated in this annual report whetheré were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulgingiicantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard tongfigant deficiencies and material weaknes

/sl MARGARET C. WHITMAN

Margaret C. Whitman
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 31, 2003
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I, Rajiv Dutta, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Fof@¥Klof eBay Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repogsdmt contain any untrue statement of a matex@ldr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included iistnnual report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officemsdal are responsible for establishing and maintgimlisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules -14 and 15-14) for the registrant and hax

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedor@ssure that material information relating te thgistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tperiod in which this annual report
is being preparec

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati§slosure controls and procedures as of a datén@0 days prior to the filing
date of this annual report (I Evaluation Dat”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusadyaut the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Da

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have disclosed, based on our most recent &ty to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of registri's board of directors (or persons performing theévedent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies in the design oeation of internal controls which could adversaffect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financia datl have identified for the registrant’s auditmmg material weaknesses in internal
controls; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal controls; an

6. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have indicated in this annual report whetheré were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulgingiicantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard tongfigant deficiencies and material weaknes

/s RAJIV DUTTA

Rajiv Dutta
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 31, 2003
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Filed
with
this
Ex. No. Exhibit Description 10-K
2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Julyd@22amonc
PayPal, Inc., the Registrant and Vaquita AcquisitBorp.
3.01 Registrar’'s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora
3.0z Registrar’s Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incoration.
3.0¢ Registrant’s Corrected Certificate of Certificafedmendment of
Certificate of Incorporatior
4.01 Form of Specimen Certificate for Registr's Common Stock
4.02 Investor Rights Agreement, dated June 20, 199Wédm1 the
Registrant and certain stockholders nhamed the
10.014 Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registwith each o
its directors and executive office
10.02+ Registrar's 1996 Stock Option Pla
10.03+ Registrar’'s 1997 Stock Option Pla
10.044 Registrar’s 1998 Equity Incentive Pla
10.05+ Registrar’s 2001 Equity Incentive Pla
10.06+ Registrar’s 1998 Directors Stock Option Pl¢
10.074 Amendment No. 1 to Registré s 1998 Directors Stock Option Ple
10.08+ Registrant’'s Amended and Restated 1998 Employesk $torchase
Plan.
10.09- Registrar’s 1999 Global Equity Incentive Ple
10.104 Employment Letter Agreement dated January 16, 1888yeen
Margaret C. Whitman and Registra
10.114 Employment Letter Agreement dated August 20, 1888yeen
Michael R. Jacobson and Registre
10.124 Offer Letter to Maynard G. Webb, Jr. dated July 1999.
10.134 Retention Bonus Plan dated January 10, 2001, batRegistrant anc

Maynard G. Webb, Jr. (Correcte:

Incorporated by Reference

Date

Form File No. Filed
8-K 07/08/0:
16-Q 11/13/9¢
1C-K 03/28/0!
10K 03/28/0!
S-1 335-59097 08/19/9¢
S-1 335-59097 07/15/9¢
S-1 335-59097 07/15/9¢
S-1 335-59097 07/15/9¢
S-1 335-59097 07/15/9¢
S-1 335-59097 07/15/9¢
S-8 33&-9772¢ 08/06/0:
S-1 335-59097 07/15/9¢
1C-K 03/29/9¢
10K 03/25/0:
S-8 33&-9772¢ 08/06/0:
S 333569091 08/19/9¢
S 333569091 09/01/9¢
S-3 33:-8820¢ 09/30/9¢
10Q 08/14/0!
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Filed
with
this
Ex. No. Exhibit Description 10K
10.144 Stock Option Agreement dated June 9, 1998 betwegisRant and X
Scott D. Cook
10.154 Offer Letter to Jeffrey D. Jordan dated July 39!
10.164 Retention Bonus Plan dated May 16, 2000, betwegisRant and
Jeffrey D. Jordar
10.174 Retention Bonus Plan dated April 3, 2001, betweegi&rant and
Jeffrey D. Jordar
10.184 Offer Letter to William C. Cobb dated November 2200.
10.194 Supplemental Retention Bonus Plan dated April 8922 betweel
Registrant and William C. Cob
10.204 Employment Letter Agreement between Registrant@mistopher T
Hjelm, dated as of March 11, 20(
10.214 Special Bonus Plan between Registrant and Matth&arnick, dated
as of September 6, 20C
10.22 Lease dated March 1, 2000, between eBay Realtyt angsRegistran
10.2: Cash Collateral Agreement between Registrant arss€Manhatta
Bank as Agent, dated March 1, 20
21.01 List of Subsidiaries X
23.01 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consi X
24.01] Power of Attorney (see signature pa X

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatamnyqs arrangement

Incorporated by Reference

Date

Form File No. Filed
S-3 335-8820¢ 09/30/9¢
10K 03/28/0!
10Q 08/14/0:
1C-K 03/25/0:
1C-Q 08/06/0:
16¢-Q 11/14/0:
10Q 11/14/0:
1C-K 03/30/0(
1C-K 03/30/0(



Exhibit 10.14
eBAY INC.
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Stock Option Agreement (this "AGREEMENT") isade and entered into outside of the eBay Inc. B36¢k Option Plan (the "PLAN")
of the Date of Grant set forth below (the "DATE GRANT") by and between eBay Inc., a Delaware capon (the "COMPANY"), and the
Participant named below ("PARTICIPANT"). Capitakizeerms not defined herein shall have the mearasgebed to them in the Plan.

Participant: Scott D. Cook
Social Security Number:
Address:

Total Option Shares: Fi fty Thousand Shares

Exercise Price Per Share: $28 OO ------------------------------------
Date of Grant: June 9, 1998
First Vesting Date: June 9, 1999
Expiration Date: June 82008 ______________________________

[unl ess earlier term nated under Section 3 bel ow

Type of Stock Option
(Check one): [ 1 I'ncentive Stock Option

[X] Nonqualified Stock Option

1. GRANT OF OPTION. The Company hereby grants ti¢pant an option (this "OPTION") to purchase th&al number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company set forth above asl Ogéion Shares (the "SHARES") at the ExercisedHer Share set forth above (the
"EXERCISE PRICE"), subject to all of the terms ashditions of this Agreement and, except to therixinconsistent with this paragraph and
with paragraph 2.2 hereof, the Plan. If designatedn Incentive Stock Option above, this Optidntsnded to qualify as an “incentive stock
option" ("ISO") within the meaning of Section 42Ptbe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended'GDE"). The Participant may
transfer the economic or beneficial interest is tBption to an Approved Transferee that agreeg foooind by the terms of the Exercise
Agreement. "APPROVED TRANSFEREE" means bona fidsts or partnerships for the exclusive

1.



benefit of any one or more of the Participant'sc;hatepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, dpanent, spouse, sibling, mother-in-law, father-
in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-laar sister-in-law, including adoptive relationshigo long as the Participant has sole
investment control over such trust or partnersbiny entity in which Participant is, directlyiadirectly, a member, partner or five percent or
more stockholder.

2. EXERCISE PERIOD.

2.1 Exercise Period of Option. This Option is immagely exercisable with respect to all of the Skaedthough the Shares issued upon exercise
of this Option will be subject to the restrictioms transfer and Repurchase Options set forth itid®exc?7, 8 and 9 below. Provided Participant
continues to provide services to the Company antpParent or Subsidiary of the Company, the Shiasesble upon exercise of this Option
will become vested with respect to twenty-five @erc(25%) of the Shares on June 9, 1999 (the "FIREITING DATE") and thereafter at

the end of each full succeeding month after thetMesting Date an additional 2.08333% of the Shaii# become vested until the Shares are
vested with respect to 100% of the Shares, providatif application of the vesting percentage eaus fractional share, such share shall be
rounded down to the nearest whole share. Notwitklétig any provision in the Plan or this Agreementhie contrary; Options for Unvested
Shares (as defined in Section 2.2 of this Agreejneititnot be exercisable on or after Participafigsmination Date.

2.2 Vesting of Shares. Shares that are vested gnirsnithe schedule set forth in Section 2.1 aleSVED SHARES." Shares that are not
vested pursuant to the schedule set forth in Setib are "UNVESTED SHARES." Unvested Shares madypacaold or otherwise transferred
by Participant without the Company's prior writ@msent; provided that Participant may transfehduievested Shares to an Approved
Transferee that agrees to be bound by the tertiedExercise Agreement. "APPROVED TRANSFEREE" mdzs fide trusts, or
partnerships for the exclusive benefit of any oneore of the Participant's child, stepchild, grenitti, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse
sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-ladaughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-lawgluding adoptive relationships, so long as
the Participant has sole investment control ovehdrust or partnership, or any entity in whichtRgvant is, directly or indirectly, a member,
partner or five percent or more stockholder.

2.3 Expiration. This Option shall expire on the Eapion Date set forth above and must be exerciéad all, on or before the Expiration Date,
unless earlier terminated under Section 3 below.

3. TERMINATION.

3.1 Termination for Any Reason Except Death Disgbdr Cause. If Participant is Terminated for aegison, except death, Disability or Ca
this Option, to the extent (and only to the exténdl it is exercisable by Participant on the Tewation Date, may be exercised by Participar

at all, as to all or some of the Vested Shareautatied as of the Termination Date, no later thaedl{3) months after the Termination Date, but
in any event no later than the Expiration Date.



3.2 Termination Because of Death or DisabilityP#rticipant is Terminated because of death or Olisabf Participant (or the Participant dies
within three (3) months after Termination othemttiar Cause) this Option, to the extent that éxercisable by Participant on the Termination
Date, may be exercised by Participant (or Partitipdegal representative), if at all, as to alsome of the Vested Shares calculated as of the
Termination Date, no later than twelve (12) morgfisr the Termination Date, but in any event nerl#tan the Expiration Date. Any exercise
beyond three

(3) months after the Termination Date when the Teation is for any reason other than the Partidigateath or disability, within the meaning
of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code, is deemed to bR@SO.

3.3 Termination for Cause. If Participant is Teratgd for Cause, then this Option will expire ontiegrant's Termination Date, or at such later
time and on such conditions as are determined & timmittee.

3.4 No Obligation to Employ. Nothing in the Plantbis Agreement shall confer on Participant anytrip continue in the employ of, or other
relationship with, the Company or any Parent orsglilry of the Company, or limit in any way thelrigof the Company or any Parent or
Subsidiary of the Company to terminate Particigagployment or other relationship at any timehwit without Cause.

4. MANNER OF EXERCISE.

4.1 Stock Option Exercise Agreement. To exercige@ption, Participant (or in the case of exereifier Participant's death or incapacity,
Participant's executor, administrator, heir or tegaas the case may be) must deliver to the Coyrgnraexecuted stock option exercise
agreement in the form attached hereto as ExhibitrAq such other form as may be approved by thagmy from time to time (the
"EXERCISE AGREEMENT"), which shall set forth, intalia, Participant's election to exercise this @ptithe number of Shares being
purchased, any restrictions imposed on the Shaikary representations, warranties and agreemegsding Participant's investment intent
and access to information as may be required bZtmepany to comply with applicable securities lallsomeone other than Participant
exercises this Option, then such person must sulmaitmentation reasonably acceptable to the Comitatyguch person has the right to
exercise this Option.

4.2 Limitations on Exercise. This Option may notexercised unless such exercise is in compliantie alliapplicable federal and state
securities laws, as they are in effect on the dhexercise. This Option may not be exercised dswer than one hundred (100) Shares, unless
it is exercised as to all Shares as to which thigdd is then exercisable.

4.3 Payment. The Exercise Agreement shall be acaniag by full payment of the Exercise Price for 8feres being purchased in cash (by
check), or where permitted by law:

(a) by surrender of shares of the Company's Conmatock that:
(1) either (A) have been owned by Participant forenthan six (6) months and have been paid forinvttie meaning of SEC Rule 144 (and, if
such shares were purchased from the Company



by use of a promissory note, such note has bebngfaid with respect to such shares) or (B) wenaioled by Participant in the open public
market and (2) are clear of all liens, claims, enlbtances or security interests;

(b) by tender of a full recourse promissory noteig such terms as may be approved by the Committieieh note shall be secured by a
pledge of all of the Shares so purchased; providedgver, that if Participant is not an employedioector of the Company, Participant will
not be entitled to purchase Shares with a promyssote unless the note is adequately secured lgte! other than the Shares;

(c) provided that a public market for the Compasytek exists, (1) through a "same day sale" comenit from Participant and a brokeéeale!
that is a member of the National Association ofusigies Dealers (an "NASD Dealer") whereby Par@eipirrevocably elects to exercise this
Option and to sell a portion of the Shares so pasel to pay for the Exercise Price and whereb®D Dealer irrevocably commits upon
receipt of such Shares to forward the ExerciseeRtiectly to the Company, or (2) through a "matgiommitment from Participant and an
NASD Dealer whereby Participant irrevocably elgotexercise this Option and to pledge the Shargmethased to the NASD Dealer il
margin account as security for a loan from the NAS&aler in the amount of the Exercise Price, andreliy the NASD Dealer irrevocably
commits upon receipt of such Shares to forward=tkercise Price directly to the Company; or

(d) by any combination of the foregoing.

4.4 Tax Withholding. Prior to the issuance of tha&s upon exercise of this Option, Participanttrpag or provide for any applicable federal,
state and local withholding obligations of the Camy. If the Committee permits, Participant may jdevfor payment of withholding taxes
upon exercise of this Option by requesting thatGbenpany retain Shares with a Fair Market Valueaktputhe minimum amount of taxes
required to be withheld. In such case, the Comséuayl issue the net number of Shares to the Raatitibby deducting the Shares retained from
the Shares issuable upon exercise.

4.5 Issuance of Shares. Provided that the Exefgiseement and payment are in form and substanisfegzdory to counsel for the Company,
the Company shall issue the Shares registerecindme of Participant, Participant's authorizethasg, or Participant's legal representative,
and shall deliver certificates representing ther&haith the appropriate legends affixed thereto.

5. NOTICE OF DISQUALIFYING DISPOSITION OF ISO SHARE If this Option is an ISO, and if Participantlselr otherwise disposes of
any of the Shares acquired pursuant to the ISO



on or before the later of (a) the date two (2) gedter the Date of Grant, and (b) the date ongd€aj after transfer of such Shares to Participan
upon exercise of this Option, Participant shall iediately notify the Company in writing of such disftion. Participant agrees that Participant
may be subject to income tax withholding by the @any on the compensation income recognized bydizatit from the early disposition by
payment in cash or out of the current wages orratbmpensation payable to Participant.

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. The Plamd this Agreement are intended to comply with Sec#5102(f) of the
California Corporations Code. Any provision of tligreement which is inconsistent with Section 25f)0ghall, without further act or
amendment by the Company or the Board, be refotmedmply with the requirements of Section 25102[f)e exercise of this Option and"
issuance and transfer of Shares shall be subjecntpliance by the Company and Participant wittapfllicable requirements of federal and
state securities laws and with all applicable regqaents of any stock exchange on which the Comp&gfmmon Stock may be listed at the
time of such issuance or transfer.

7. NONTRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION. Except as providedSection 1 of this Agreement, this Option may lo@ transferred in any
manner other than by will or by the laws of des@amd distribution and may be exercised during ifieéirhe of Participant only by Participant
or in the event of Participant's incapacity, bytiegrant's legal representative. The terms of @ygion shall be binding upon the executors,
administrators, successors and assigns of Participa

8. COMPANY'S REPURCHASE OPTION FOR UNVESTED SHARH®&e Company, or its assignee, shall have the mptigepurchase
Participant's Unvested Shares (as defined in Se2td of this Agreement) on the terms and condstieet forth in the Exercise Agreement (the
"Repurchase Option for Unvested Shares") if Pauaict is Terminated (as defined in the Plan) for @agon, or no reason, including without
limitation Participant's death, Disability (as ¢efd in the Plan), voluntary resignation or termoraby the Company with or without Cause.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shablirethe Repurchase Option for Unvested Sharesamtp that number of Unvested She
(whether or not exercised) that exceeds the nuwsrares which remain exercisable.

9. TAX CONSEQUENCES. The Participant representstibenas consulted his tax advisor regarding tkedasequences associated with the
exercise of this Option and the disposition of $fares, including the filing of the

Section 83(b) election with respect to the UnveShdres. As Participant is not a current or foraraployee of the Company, Participant shall
assume liability for any and all federal and stat®me and self-employment taxes associated wittegercise of the Option and, the
disposition of the Shares.

10. PRIVILEGES OF STOCK OWNERSHIP. Participant shat have any of the rights of a shareholder watbpect to any Shares until the
Shares are issued to Participant.

11. INTERPRETATION. Any dispute regarding the imptetation of this Agreement shall be submitted bytiBipant or the Company to the
Committee for review. The resolution of such a dispby the Committee shall be final and bindingloenCompany and Participant.
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12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. The Plan, except to the ekteoonsistent with this Agreement, is incorporatedein by reference. This
Agreement and, except to the extent inconsistettt this Agreement, the Plan constitute the com@etkexclusive statement of the parties
regarding its subject matter and supersedes all proposals, representations, communicationsagngements of the parties, whether oral or
written regarding the grant of stock options ou@sces of shares to Participant.

13. NOTICES. Any notice required to be given oriviled to the Company under the terms of this Agwe® shall be in writing and addressed
to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at itejpal corporate offices. Any notice required ®diven or delivered to Participant shall be
in writing and addressed to Participant at the eslindicated above or to such other address agsuty may designate in writing from time
to time to the Company. All notices shall be deeitoeldave been given or delivered upon: personalelgt three (3) days after deposit in the
United States mail by certified or registered nfiagturn receipt requested); one (1) business day, afeposit with any return receipt express
courier (prepaid); or one (1) business day afsardmission by facsimile, rapifax or telecopier.

14. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The Company may assigrof its rights under this Agreement, includitgyrights to repurchase Shares
under the Exercise Agreement (and any RepurchaserOgr Right of First Refusal). This Agreementlsba binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the successors and assigns of the Comaiject to the restrictions on transfer setfdwtrein, this Agreement shall be binding
upon Participant and Participant's heirs, executmsiinistrators, legal representatives, successatsissigns.

15. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be govertigdand construed in accordance with the laws ®Rtate of California as such le
are applied to agreements between California retsdentered into and to be performed entirely witbalifornia. If any provision of this
Agreement is determined by a court of law to beg#ll or unenforceable, then such provision wilehéorced to the maximum extent possible
and the other provisions will remain fully effeaiand enforceable.

16. ACCEPTANCE. Participant hereby acknowledgesi®f a copy of the Plan and this Agreement.i€igeint has read and understands
terms and provisions thereof, and accepts thiso@tiibject to all the terms and conditions of tlemRnd this Agreement. Participant
acknowledges that there may be adverse tax conseggi@pon exercise of this Option or dispositiothef Shares and that Participant should
consult a tax adviser prior to such exercise quatgtion.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thigément to be executed in duplicate by its duly @iigkd representative and
Participant has executed this Agreement in dugieatof the Date of Grant.

eBAY | NC. PARTI ClI PANT

By: /s/ Margaret C. \itnman /sl Scott D. Cook

(Signature)

Margaret C. Vit man Scott D. Cook

(Pl ease print nane) (Pl ease print nane)

President and Chief Executive O ficer

(Please print title)



EXHIBIT NO. 21.01

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002

OCO~NOOTAWNPE

O©CO~NOOITAWNPE

DOMESTIC

. Billpoint, Inc., a Delaware corporation

. Blackthorne Software, Inc., a Delaware corporati
. CARad Inc., a Delaware corporation

. Confinity, Inc., a California corporation

. eBay International Inc., a Delaware corporation

. eBay Real Estate Inc., a Delaware corporation

. eBay Real Estate No. 1, Inc., a Delaware cotjmora
. eBay Real Estate No. 2, Inc., a Delaware cotmora
. Half.com, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation

. HBJ Partners, LLC, a California limited liabjlicompany

. HomesDirect.com, Inc., a Delaware corporation

. Jump Incorporated, an Ohio corporation*

. PayPal, Inc., a Delaware corporation

. PayPal Asset Management, Inc., a Delaware catipa

. 111 Potrero Partners, LLC, a California limitiedbility company

. 6700 Cherry Ave Partners, a California gengaainership *d/b/a Up4Sale

INTERNATIONAL

. eBay Australia and New Zealand Pty. Ltd.(Augtjal
. eBay Australia Pty. Ltd. (Australia)

. eBay Belgium Holdings SA (Belgium)

. eBay Canada Limited (New Brunswick)(Canada)
. eBay France SA (France)**

. eBay Global Holdings B.V. (The Netherlands)

. eBay GmbH (Germany)

. eBay International AG (Switzerland)

. eBay lItalia S.r.l. (Italy)

. eBay Japan Inc. (Japan)

. eBay KTA (UK) Limited. (United Kingdom)
. eBay Netherlands B.V. (The Netherlands)
. eBay Promotions (UK) Ltd. (United Kingdom)
. eBay Spain International, S.L. (Spain)

. eBay Sverige AB (Sweden)

. eBay Taiwan Company Ltd. (Taiwan)

. eBay UK Limited (United Kingdom)

. Hortensia B.V. (The Netherlands)

. iBazar Belgium SA (Belgium)

. iBazar Pro NL BV (The Netherlands)

. iBazar Pro SARL (France)

. iBazar Sverige AB (Sweden)

. Inter Bazar (Portugal)

. Internet Auction Co., Ltd.(Korea)***

. MercadoLibre, Inc. (United States)

. NeoCom Technology Co., Ltd. (Taiwan)

. Opendeal (Belgium)

. PayPal (Europe) Ltd. (United Kingdom)
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29. PayPal Panama, Inc. (Panama)

30. Prime Energy Company Ltd. (Hong Kong)
31. Total Sites (Portugal)

32. VAC SARL (France)

** 99.98% held by eBay Inc. subsidiary
*** 50.054% held by eBay Inc. subsidiary
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Exhibit 23.01
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N83:@&054 and 333-69054), Form S-4
(Nos. 333-62050 and 333-97727) and Form S-8 (N83-631179, 333-87593, 333-41944, 333-58046, 333-9ar2 333-100426) of eBay Inc.

of our report dated January 17, 2003, except faeN@, which is as of March 28, 2003 relating ® tlnsolidated financial statements, which
appears in this Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, CA
March 28, 200



